’ Dan Karleskint, City of Lincoln, Chair
“ Robert Weygandt, Placer County
Pauline Roccucci, City of Roseville

(™ “

Bonnie Gore, Placer County
WPWMA Bill Halldin, City of Rocklin

EST. 1©78 Ken Grehm, Executive Director

MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
AGENDA

NOVEMBER 10, 2022 4:00 PM
Materials Recovery Facility Administration Building
3013 Fiddyment Road, Roseville, CA 95747

The WPWMA Board of Directors NOVEMBER 10, 2022 meeting will be open to in-person attendance.
Individuals may also participate in the meeting via Zoom at https://placer-ca-gov.zoom.us/j/99669130235

Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Board of Directors after distribution of the agenda packet are available
for public inspection by emailing the Clerk of the Board at inffo@VWPWMA.ca.gov. The Western Placer Waste Management Authority
is committed to ensuring that persons with disabilities are provided the resources to participate fully in its public meetings. If you
require disability-related modifications or accommodations, please contact the Clerk of the Board at (916) 543-3960 or
inffo@WPWMA.ca.gov. If requested, the agenda shall be provided in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities. All
requests must be in writing and must be received by the Clerk three business days prior to the scheduled meeting for which you are
requesting accommodation. Requests received after such time will be accommodated if time permits.

1. Call Meeting to Order
2. Pledge of Allegiance (Director Halldin)
3. Roll Call
4. Statement of Meeting Procedures (Clerk of the Board)
5. Closed Session
a. Government Code §54957(b)(1) — Public Employee Performance Evaluation
Title: WPWMA Executive Director
b. Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to subdivision (b) of Government
Code §54956.9: one potential case.
6. Public Comment
This is a time when persons may address the Board regarding items not on
this Agenda. It is requested that comments be brief, since the Board is not
permitted to take any action on items addressed under Public Comment.
7. Announcements & Information

a. Reports from Directors —

b. Report from the Executive Director (Ken Grehm) -
c. Financial Reports (Eric Oddo) Pg. 5
d. Monthly Tonnage Reports (Eric Oddo) -
e. Annual Odor Meeting Summary (Emily Hoffman) Pg.7

Western Placer Waste Management Authority

3013 Fiddyment Road, Roseville CA 95747 | (916) 543 | wpwrma.ca.gov



https://placer-ca-gov.zoom.us/j/99669130235
mailto:info@WPWMA.ca.gov
mailto:info@WPWMA.ca.gov

WPWMA BOARD AGENDA

NOVEMBER 10, 2022
PAGE 2

8. Consent Agenda

a. Minutes of the Board Meeting held October 13, 2022 Pg. 9
Approve as submitted.
b. Amendment to the WPWMA'’s Conflict of Interest Code (Eric Oddo) Pg. 21

Adopt Resolution 22-10 which amends the WPWMA'’s Conflict of
Interest Code.

c. Landfill Gas Utilization (Eric Oddo) Pg. 25

Authorize staff to release an RFP for utilization of landfill gas produced
at the Western Regional Sanitary Landfill.

d. First Amendment to the Agreement with Tetra Tech, Inc. for Closure, Pg. 27

Post-Closure Maintenance and Corrective Action Cost Estimate

Services (Eric Oddo)

Authorize the Executive Director or designee, upon review and
approval of WPWMA Counsel, to sign the First Amendment to the
Agreement with Tetra Tech for closure plan review and closure cost
estimate services for the Western Regional Sanitary Landfill (WRSL)
for a total of $30,000, increasing the total not-to-exceed cost of the
Agreement to $67,916.

9. Action Iltems

a. Timed Item 5:05 PM Pg. 33
Renewable Placer Waste Action Plan Final Environmental Impact

Report (Kevin Bell)

1. Adopt Resolution 22-11 certifying the Renewable Placer Waste

Action Plan Final Environmental Impact Report
(SCH#2019039087) and Errata prepared pursuant to the
California Environmental Quality Act and adopt the Mitigation
Monitoring and Reporting Program supported by and
incorporating by reference in its entirety the Findings of Fact and
Statement of Overriding Considerations.

. Select and approve Plan Concept 2 as the Project associated

with the Renewable Placer Waste Action Plan Final
Environmental Impact Report.

. Direct staff to file a Notice of Determination with the State

Clearinghouse and Placer County Clerk consistent with
California Environmental Quality Act Guidelines and direct the
Executive Director, or designee, to take such further actions as
necessary or appropriate to implement Plan Concept 2.

b. Fiscal Year 2022/23 Final Budgets (Eric Oddo) Pg. 167

Approve the Fiscal Year 2022/23 Final Budgets for the Operating
Fund, Closure/Postclosure Fund, Self-Insurance Fund and Odor
Management Fund as presented in Exhibits A, B and C.



WPWMA BOARD AGENDA
NOVEMBER 10, 2022
PAGE 3

10.  Upcoming Agenda ltems
|dentification of any items the Board would like staff to address at a future
meeting.

11.  Adjournment




PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



“Modal ay) uiyym sarouedalosip pajodal ajgejou Ul Jnsal Aew sesuadxa pue senuaAal [enjoe pue pajebpng ay) usamiaq Bulpod ay) ul ssousIalid g
‘sjunouwe [enjoe pue pajebpng usamjaq sarouedalosip pajiodal a|qejou o} pes| Aew siyL
“Hodal ay) Jo ajep 8y} Jo Se pazijeal 9soy) 199]jal Sasuadxe pue SeNUSASI [EN)OE SEaIayM ‘Jeak [BOS BY) JO Yluow yoea Ajjenba pajesoid ale sasuadxa pue sanusass pajebpng |

220z Jequisydas
2)jeQq-0}-Jesa

ajeq 0} Jeap

juswajejs awosu| pung suonesado
juswiaBeuey) 3)SE 190.]d UIB}SOM

(szi'see’LL) 65E'L6Y°L v8p'2e8'2L 6.2'088'SE
(898°250°L1) €26'159'C 16L'v0L'61 ZvL'198'LS
EVLL1L'S (r95¥5171) (20€Z289) (29v°286°12)
810'8V6'S 196'265°Z1L 686'01S5'8L 212'692'69
199 €ee'e8 0008 0008
"pajosloud ueyy semol JuswiAed 440 [enuuy gL'y 182'692 Zry'69T Zry'69T
‘194 pazijeas jou 1oquisides - Anf 1oy sexe) lesodsiQ GyE‘vL L €€0'€C 8/€'L€L ZLS'6vs
- ¥9v'666 ¥9v'666 ¥9v'666
‘Jok pazi|eal jou s99) 9BIeYISIP JOMBS MBU pue [esodsIp Sjeyoes| [enuuy 61/°9Z 18/'GE 00529 000'052
VINMJM 0} PaJiiq AROJIp MOU S}S00 BJDIYBA  GZL'Y G.8'L 000°CH 000'8%
005 - 00S'C 000°0L
0052 - 00S'C 00004
sjuaae yoeanno oljgnd pue sAkeme aAIb o} swayl wniwaid, Jo eseyoind [enuue sepnjou| (G/8°0L) G/8'GL 000G 000'02
00S'C - 005 000°04
‘Buesw zz0z Jequisldes ploy jou pid 005 000'} 00S'} 0009
“JoA apew Jou sjusWwaoe|day "UONEISHIOM M3U SUO pue sapelBdn JaAISS U)IM pajeloosse SJSoD  00G°Z) - 005°2h 00S'Zh
344 6 0se 000'L
14 - 4 00l
4 - 14 00l
10K 10U 51800 || 008‘€E - 008'ce 00zZ'sel
ajep 0} s99} 80IAI8S AUNOY Pajoadxa Uey) 1OMOT 8YE'8S 250'y 00v'29 009'6tC
229'L 8.€'2S 000°09 00009
sjoafold pajejel-yINMdM 03 Paliig awi Jjels Auno) pajoadxe Uey) JOMOT L1685 650'94 000'GL 000°'00€
aBeuwep auly -\ 0} 8NP A4 813US JoA0 pajedionue uey) sejealb sepjuenb lesodsig (162°98) 091'v82 698°269 L1¥'162°T
JOBLJUOD JO PUS Je YodLION 0} pled $}s00 awili-auo sapnjou| (856°€0t) 08S'9EY'L 229'2€0°L 9/9'802'6C
‘Juswisinquial Bupjess Juswabeueyy ysiy Jawoisnd Aq pabewep juswdinbs A109 Jo Jiedey 0z 086'Y 000G 000G
jep 0} s}s00 [asuN0 [ebs| pajoadxe Uey) oMo +6°Z) 920'LC 000°0% 00009}
“pajenul 194 Jou sjoenju0d 9d1AIes [eUOISSajod pauueld [e19ASS 912619 669'vCL SLB'EV. 659'G/6'C
s|qissod eaibsp 0) s1500 Buljiew Adoopiey Bunpey gee 269 120°L oLL'y
"9)ep 0} puewsap Ajddns 8o1j0 1emo7 628‘c Lev'e 0SZ'9 000'SC
"a|qissod 8a16ap 0} s)s00 Bunuud Buonpay $85'Z 99¥'G 050’8 002'ze
0s2 - 0se 000}
(se€) gee - 000'G
0se - 0se 000k
(o¥) ovs 00§ 0002
“a)ep 0} pazijeal s}sod adueusjulew Bu 00S'L - 00S'L 000'0E
‘pazijeal S}S0d 21EM}JOS BULIO}IUOW JIOPO JO UOILIOG "Pazijeal JoA Jou SjS00 asuadl| QyD pue aiemyos Buiddew suoiq 04192 18zl 1G6'8E £08'GS)
659 16 0S. 000°'€
(B52) 9¢1'G8 11¥'S8 L06'L7E
052 - 0S. 000°¢
(vz1) vi€ 052 000}
(¥¥9) G598y 1ze'y z88'9L
00S'} - 00S'L 000'9
“Juswiaoe|dal Joj Buiinioal Ajualind - JueoseA uonisod Juepuany a)S [esodsiq SiseM IS €/9'GL 9/9'c€S BYE'6YS 86€'/61'C
‘pajeniul 194 jou yom [edlpoae [euld “Ajuo josfoid puod jsodwioo o} pajelal SIS0 Bjep O} JBOA 866°20L 069'0€L 889'€€C 0121682
- - - 000°'G69
pazi|eal JoA jou sjuswaroidwl SHIN O} Paje|as OO WOy s}sod pajoadx3 €2G°209°G 657'259'} 2€0'092°L 20S°102'61
pazi[eas joA jou sjuswaroidwi JHN 0} pajejes DD W0l S}sod pajadx3 G10'ZEL'E - SY0'CEL'6 9/€'€09'0€
(s2z'0€2) £ov'8EY’LL 819'899°LL 082°'182'Ly
pazijeal usaq jeA jou sey jey aseyoind ajiyan 10} OO Woly JuawAed awi-auo e sapnjou] (€28°902) 118'G8 0v9'262 09501}
- - - 1€9'80C
sjunouwe pajebpnq aAoge %z 0~ Buiioes) senuansl a9y buiddy [ejoL 5z9'z LLE'9BL LL 989'€6L°L1L SLL'€LL'SY
(oL1) 6L ¥50'8 L19'Le
'100Z ABIau3 woyy sjuswAed Ajedol o syuow om) s1os)jeY (1,95°82) €8G'6L1 iy 115'26S
652 Lv1'8C €51'9 ¥L9'v0L
S3JON 9ouenep s[enjoy jobpng jebpng [enuuy

:SajoN

Spaado0id puog Yjm jejo

SPasooId PUOE 0L L6
:SUOIJORSUEI] JUBWJE)S WIODU| UOU [EUOCHIPPY

awoou| JaN

sasuadx3 [ejo]
salpuabunuo) oy uoneudoiddy:00065
IO Jaysuel] BunesadO:0155S
SIS0 /8-V INO I8jsuel|:06EES
sa1ouaby JayjQ 0} SUOHNQUIU0D:0SZES
SJUBWSSASSY PUE SOXEe]:06LES
SJs0Q douenss| 1g9Q:0S0€S
Sa1IBN:0082S
|oAB1] puE UolelodsUel] 10625
uoneonp3 / buulel] :68/25
asuadx3 swpeds( [e10ads:0852S
BuIsiieApY: 0,525
leusiey Ajajes @ BuubiS:0rszs
5994 S,JUOISSIWWOD:0L5ZS
uolysinboy 0d:08+2S
Sjuswiniisul @ S|oo] |[BWS:09¥2S
sjuawanoidwi g sBuip|ing - seseaT pue sjueY:05H2S
juswdinb3 - saseaT pue sjuay:0ZS
11 - SOAS [e1dadg %@ *Joid:00%72S
Aunog - soAg [eads B *Joid:06£2S
d)se\ snopiezeH gzeeds
S9OIAISS [e0160]003 PUE [BJUSWIUOIIAUT 0ZEEDS
suonesado (IypueT 061€0S
suonesadO JHIN 081€0S
seoInIeg Jiedey pue uone|[eisu| soueusiuleN Buipiing 0vLEDS
‘AUz g ‘Bu3 “yoa] - SOAG [e10ads B *J0Id:08E2S
[e6a7 - se0IAIaS [e10adS pUE [BUOISSBJ0Id:0/E£2S
[eJoUBD) - SOAG [e109dS B "J0Id:09£2S
abesod:0vezs
sal|ddns Jeyl0:0e€2S
Bunuud:0zezs
asuadx3 9SIN:09225
sel|ddng pue s801AI8S:05225
sanq diysiaquialy / [BUOISS801d:0%ZZS
syuswanoidw] @ sbulp|ing - S|eLSIBN:0812S
sjueouqnT @ s|eN4:0L12S
Buip|ing - 9oUBUSIUEBI: L 912G
oUBUBUIBN:0912S
SUed:ovles
90UBINSU:0802S
asuadx3 p|oyasnoH:0902S
P004:0502S
asuadx3 Se0IAI9S UONEDIUNWWOD:0F0ZS
|euosiad pue BuIylo|D:0£02S
seueles pue sabep:0L0LS
:sasuadxg Bunesado

sjuawanoidwi pueT:08yys

QUNJONISeUUL:0LYYS

wawdinb3:05t¥S

syuswanoidw] g sBUIPIING:0EPYS
jassy [eyded
sasuadxgy

anuanay |ejo)
SNOBUE||99SIN:0E08Y
90UBINSU:0E YO
|esodsiq 8)SeM PII0S:05Z9%
JBYIO - SDIAISS UONEBNUES:0FZ9Y
SUOISSOUOD) PUE SJUSY:0L0ZY
BUWIOdU| JUBWISBAUIQL0ZY
anuanay



PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



MEMORANDUM
WESTERN PLACER WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

TO: WPWMA BOARD OF DIRECTORS DATE: NOVEMBER 10, 2022

FROM: KEN GREHM / EMILY HOFFMAN t@@\
SUBJECT: SUMMARY OF COMMUNITY MEETING TO DISCUSS ODORS

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
None. This item is for information purposes only.
BACKGROUND:

On October 4, 2022, the WPWMA held its twelfth annual community meeting to discuss
facility odors. Staff virtually engaged with attendees during a presentation discussing
regional odor sources, WPWMA odor monitoring efforts, regulations related to Senate
Bill 1383, and organics management including aerated static pile composting. Staff also
provided an update on the Renewable Placer Waste Action Plan, highlighting the
potential for enhanced odor mitigation measures that may be incorporated as part of the
selected Plan concept, and the success of the recently implemented Site-Wide Odor
Plan.

The workshop was advertised via a press release; ads on the WPWMA'’s website; an
email to users of the online odor notification system; NextDoor.com; neighborhood
association newsletters; neighborhood association meetings; social media ads; the
Placer Recycles and WPWMA Facebook, Instagram, and Twitter pages; and a banner
placed at the WPWMA's offices on Fiddyment Road at the corner of Athens Avenue.
Additionally, several Member Agency official communications promoted the workshop
including the City of Rocklin, Placer County, and Board Member Gore.

28 people attended this year’s virtual meeting, the majority of whom discovered the
workshop from a community newsletter or WPWMA email. The majority of resident
participants were from Roseville’s Westpark, Amoruso, and Crocker Ranch
neighborhoods. Other attendees included representatives from the Member Agencies
as well as FCC Environmental, the Placer County Air Pollution Control District, and two
members of your Board.

While technical difficulties hindered the question-and-answer portion of the virtual
meeting, WPWMA staff are creating a fact sheet to be shared with attendees and on the
WPWMA website. Staff received feedback from a nearby resident regarding the odors
they experience and noted their appreciation of the WPWMA's efforts to engage with
residents, and one question from another participant; a summary of the question and
response is attached for your Board’s reference.

Future community meetings will be organized to continue communication with local
residents and community members regarding the WPWMA's efforts to monitor and
control facility-related odors.

ATTACHMENT: MEETING Q&A SUMMARY



DAN KARLESKINT, LINCOLN, CHAIR
ROBERT WEYGANDT, PLACER COUNTY
PAULINE Roccuccl, ROSEVILLE
BONNIE GORE, PLACER COUNTY

BiILL HALLDIN, ROCKLIN

WPWMA KEN GREHM, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

T Est. 1978

Odor Workshop Meeting Summary
October 4, 2022 | 6 p.m.

WPWMA staff presented an overview of the following topics: WPWMA Overview and
Evolution; Regional and Facility Odors; Site Wide Odor Plan; SB 1383 Organics
Reduction; and the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan.

The following summarizes the questions posed by participants and responses from
WWPMA staff after the presentation:

Q1 Why are there only odor monitors to the south and east of the landfill and not
to the west?

A1 Off-site odor monitoring devices are located in areas where odors have historically
most frequently been reported.

WESTERN PLACER WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
FOLE Rddymert Roac. Rosoville TASETLT (8007 345 RA00 wpwIraos. Jov
8



WESTERN PLACER WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
Minutes of October 13, 2022

The meeting of the Western Placer Waste Management Authority Board of Directors
was called to order at 5:00 PM by Chairman Karleskint in the WPWMA Administration
Building at the Materials Recovery Facility.

Directors Present: Staff Present:

Dan Karleskint Ken Grehm Keith Schmidt

Robert Weygandt Kevin Bell Jennifer Snyder
Pauline Roccucci Eric Oddo Becky Correa (virtual)
Suzanne Jones Robert Sandman

Bill Halldin Stephanie Ulmer

1. Call Meeting to Order: Chairman Karleskint called the meeting to order at 5:00 PM.

2. Pledge of Allegiance: Director Gore led the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. Roll Call: All Directors were present. Director Halldin arrived at 5:18 PM.

4. Statement of Meeting Procedures: Eric Oddo read the procedures for in-person and
virtual meeting participation.

5. Public Comment: No one from the public addressed the Board in person or virtually.

6. Announcements & Information:

a. Reports from Directors: Director Gore and Director Roccucci commended
staff on its conduct of the recent Odor Workshop.

b. Report from the Executive Director: Kevin Bell provided an update on the
Module 6 soil excavation project and noted that the Central Valley Regional
Water Quality Control Board (Water Board) conducted a site inspection on
October 4, 2022 and issued the WPWMA a Notice of Violation related to
the project. Kevin noted that staff are working Water Board staff to submit
the necessary information to resolve the NOV.

C. Financial Reports: Eric Oddo provided a summary of the financials and
answered questions from the Board.

d. Monthly Tonnage Reports: Eric Oddo provided a summary of the tonnage
reports. A copy of the charts presented to the Board are included as an
attachment to these minutes.

e. FY 2021/22 Energy 2001 Royalty Analysis: Jennifer Snyder summarized the
report and answered questions from the Board.

f. Site Wide Odor Plan Annual Update: Jennifer Snyder summarized the

report and answered questions from the Board. The Board noted that the
reduction in odor notifications during the reporting period suggested the
SWOP appears to be effective and it may be worthwhile to publicize the
WPWMA'’s efforts and successes with respect to reducing facility odors.



WESTERN PLACER WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
MEETING MINUTES OF OCTOBER 13, 2022

PAGE 2

7.

Consent Agenda:
a. Support of the SWANA Legislative Task Force:

Authorize payment of $2,000 to the Solid Waste Association of North
America Legislative Task Force.

b. Support of the California Product Stewardship Council
Authorize payment of $1,500 to the California Product Stewardship

Council.
MOTION TO APPROVE THE CONSENT AGENDA:
Gore/Halldin
ROLL CALL VOTE:
Halldin: YES Karleskint: YES
Roccucci: YES Gore: YES

Weygandt: YES
Vote: 5 In Favor, 0 Opposed — Motion Passed
Action Items:
a. Minutes of the Board Meeting held August 11, 2022
Approve as submitted.
MOTION TO APPROVE ITEM 8a:

Weygandt/Roccucci

ROLL CALL VOTE:
Halldin: YES Karleskint: YES
Roccucci: YES Gore: YES

Weygandt: YES
Vote: 5 In Favor, 0 Opposed — Motion Passed

b. Seventh Amendment to the Agreement with SCS Field Services for
Landfill Gas Operation and Maintenance Services

Staff recommended the Board authorize the Executive Director or
designee, upon review and approval of WPWMA Counsel, to sign the
Seventh Amendment to the Agreement with SCS Field Services for
modification of landfill gas collection infrastructure associated with the
excavation of Module 6 and the stockpiling of final cover soil on Modules 1,
2, 10, and 11 for a total of $340,000, increasing the total not-to-exceed cost
of the Agreement to $5,720,902.

Keith Schmidt summarized the report. Keith Schmidt and Kevin Bell
answered questions from the Board.

The Chair opened public comment on the item; no comments were
received from the public.

10



WESTERN PLACER WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
MEETING MINUTES OF OCTOBER 13, 2022

PAGE 3

10.
11.

MOTION TO APPROVE ITEM 8b:
Weygandt/Halldin

ROLL CALL VOTE:
Halldin: YES Karleskint: YES
Roccucci: YES Gore: YES

Weygandt: YES
Vote: 5 In Favor, 0 Opposed — Motion Passed
Closed Session:

Government Code §54957(b)(1) — Public Employee Performance Evaluation
Title: WPWMA Executive Director

WPWMA Counsel reported out of Closed Session noting the Board voted
unanimously to continue the item to a future meeting.

Upcoming Agenda ltems: None.

Adjournment: Meeting was adjourned at 6:52 PM.

Respectfully Submitted,

Eric Oddo, Secretary
Western Placer Waste Management Authority

1"



unf Ae]N

idy

IeN

[emOy —=—

9o

193png —e—

uer 29  AON

190 dog

gny

mf

A

e\

N

e A

¥

INU21IY

000°000°€$

000°00Z°c$

000°00%°€$

000°009°€$

000°008°€$

000°000°$

000°00C°t'$

000°0077$

(Por°1€)

(6s8°621)
(€9¢%9)
8TLTI91

AdUeLIB A

91L°061°11$

€68°195°¢€$
126°678°¢$
Tr6°86L°cS

[enyoy

(r6¥°1€) douBLIEA
91L061°TT$ [emdy
01T°TTT 1S 13png
(g 01 V2L

T8L9TE9YS S[BI0L
GET'v16'€$ unf
92T'vTT'v$ Ae]N
89/'vv.'€$ 1dy
0v2'0L0'v$ TeN
0S6'€vS'E$ qed
SYE'€06°€$ ue(
8€1L'1€8°€$ 29
¥¥9'070'v$ AON
92G'LLL'e$ 10
TLL169'€$ dag
¥82'v68'c$ Sny
y12'9€9'c$ mr
13png YIUON
NUIAIY paUIqUIO))

£202-220C 1wa] [vost

12



[emdy —m—

unf KeN 1dy RN qQoq

uef

193png —e—

20 AON

10

dag

gny

nr

L

o

MSW

000°0C

000°1¢C

000°CT

000°€T

0007C

000°ST

000°9C

000°LT

(1LsD)

(169)
(€88)
(L6)

QoueLIRA

(18D S0UBLIBA
006°L9 MOV
1L¥'69 1e3png

a( 01 1V

006°L9 81L°C8T S[eI0L
vee'ee unf

9€2'sZ KRN

¥90°ce 1dy

zeL've RN

L8'le Qg

ovL've uef

LEY'VT 29

¥96'€2C AON

91622 190

9€T'CT 828'ze dog
9L0°€T 856'€2 Sny
885°CC g89'ce g
[emoy 13png JIUON
suoj MSW

£202-TCOC 4maf vostd

13



(99¢) QdUBLIEA
8P€°6T ey
Y1L°6C :393png

I 03 D[

[eOY —m— 198png —e—
(99¢) 8¥€°6C €I1Iet S[eIoL
unp Ae]N idy IR Qo4 uer 29 AON 190 dog gny mr
0009

26601 unf
000°L elLv'Ll KeN
G001 1dy
0008 181°01 TN
Wi 0.1'6 Qa4
OOO O _\Oﬁ,m Ew—.
) £88'8 20

/\q\/ A o0
/\ 9ee’0l AON
oy 000°TT crooL 00
(L6€) L81°6 856 dog
000°C1 STl ILY0T 1GE'01 Sny
(¥3) 069°6 vL.'6 g

000°€T
doueLIR A [enoy 193png JIUON
suoy d»)D

a»o
£202-TCOC 4maf vostd

14



[eNOY —m— 1o3png —e—

unf Ae]N idy IR\ Qo4 uer 20 AON 190 dag 3ny mr

e e re s

SpRU] PaXI X 23pn]S

00¢

0SL

000°1

05Tl

00S°1

0SL1

000°C

0STC

00S°C

(494

(z0)
961
86T

QoueLIRA

996

GSs’l
708°1
809°1

[enoy

[4%%

996
veSy

Sro‘el

08g°}
£vS°L
Gee'l
1G6°L
Elad
698°L
L¥S°)
€LL°)
6eY’L
115°)
809°}

0G€‘L

13png

Q0UBLIBA
[emoy
23png

I 03 A2

S[ejo],

ung
Ke]N
1dy
IeN
q9ad
uef
2
AON
100
doag
Sny

mr

uop

Suoy pauf paxipy y aSpnjs

£202-TCOC 4maf vostd

15



[NV —m—  105png —e—
unf AeN dy IR 994 uef 20 AON

10

dog

Sny

me

Q)SBA\ U310

000°C
00S°C
000°¢
00S°€
000
00Sy
000°S
00S°S
000°9
0059
000°L
00S°L

000°8

70T Q0UBLIBA

0v6°€l ey

6ELE] 193png

IV 01 AV

70T 0b6°€l 81L%9 :s[e10],
X4 unf

09Z'9 Ke]N

296's 1dy

18¥'S Te]N

60E'V qod

2LL'S uef

8990 2d

¥9'9 AON

2ee's O

11 €18y 0Ly dog
(L1 069t 108"y Sny
80¢C LEV'Y 62Z'v e
DOENCN A ~NBHO< aowﬁﬂm QHQO—Z

suoyj S uaa.Lxr)

£202-TCOC 4maf vostd

16



[NV —=-—
ung Ke]\ dy IeN \EE|

S Ot

3sodwo)) pooq

0S

001

0SI

00¢

0s¢

00€

0s¢€

00t

yIT Q0UBLIBA

9L ey

1SS :108png

I 03 42

19v°C ‘S[ejo
98l ung
€02 Ke]N
Sl 1dy
g6l IR\
661 goq
66z uef
ziz 22Q
2 AON
6T 190
€02 dag
/81 Sny
(1] g
13png JIUON

SUOJ ISV POOT
£202-TCOC 4maf vostd

17



[eMOY —m— 1o3png —e—
unf Ke]N idy IR 994 uer 20 AON 100 dag Sny mr
P/\ Y
i u
Jouy

000°1

00S°1

000°C

00S°C

000°€

00S°€

0007

00S‘y

000°S

00S°S

0009

9eT

4
s9
069°1

o0UBLIEA

9¢T SoUBLIEA
1S6°11 ey
£09°6 :393png

I 03 D2

15611 SP9°LE -S[BI0L
0zs'y unf

S0€'e Ke]N

€16'C 1dy

s0z'e TN

016C Qg

zes'e uef

600C 29

¥6¥'c AON

€oL'e 190

43 861'c dog
€807 osv'e Sny
999t 916°C g
[emoy 13png JIUON
suoy jiouy

£202-TCOC 4maf vostd

18



uny

Ke]\

idy

e\

[eNOY —=—

9o

1o8png —e—

uef 22 AON 190

dag

Sny

g

poom

001
00T
00¢
00
00¢
009
00L
008
006
000°1
001°1
00T°1
00€°l
00¥°1
00S°1

L8¢E

(s9)
09
18¢

QoueLIRA

4844

S6S
ILL
LYO°T

[enoy

18€ JouelIB A

(4144 ey
ST0°C 103png
I 01 D[

0€8°6 S[eI0L
1G0'L unf
160°) Ke]N
€16 1dy
896 IR\
1v8 qod
86/ uer
€9 220
174 AON
8z. 190
6v9 doag
(0]¥] Sny
999 mg
13png JIUON
Suoy poo

£202-TCOC 4maf vostd

19



ung

AeN

idy

IeN

oY —m— 1o3png —e—

Qo uef 20 AON 190

dog

Sny

mr

anu212Y 22,] 3ulddl] snoaunjjaos1N

000°01$

000°S1$

000°0T$

000°52$

000°0€$

000°5€$

000°0%$

000°st$

(0S9°119)

(951°6%)
(gzsey)
(1L6°C$)

QoueLIRA

s 06$

1€0°8¢C$
SOL°0ES
LOSIES

[enoy

(0S9°119)
TS 06$
T61°T01$

LYL €8S

zs9'ees
ze6'ees
€0z'ze$
§9e°ze$
AN A
8¥8°'0€$
0Le'9z$
Geg'Les
9/9°'L€$
/8L°¢€e$
82Z'veS

8LLVE$

13png

JouBLIBA
ey
:03png

I 01 A2

S1ej0],

ung
Ke]N
1dy
IeN
q9ad
uef
27
AON
100
dag
Sny

mr

uop

INuaadY 22,§ Surddiy snoaunjjaosipyy

£202-TCOC 4maf vostd

20



MEMORANDUM
WESTERN PLACER WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

TO: WPWMA BOARD OF DIRECTORS DATE: NOVEMBER 10, 2022
FROM: KEN GREHM / ERIC ODDO =0
SUBJECT: AMENDMENT TO THE WPWMA'’S CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Adopt Resolution 22-10 which amends the WPWMA's Conflict of Interest Code.
BACKGROUND:

In August 2002, your Board adopted the Model Conflict of Interest Code as set forth in
the California Code of Regulations and in conformance with the California Political
Reform Act of 1974 (Act). Your Board subsequently amended the WPWMA's Conflict of
Interest Code on September 9, 2010 and September 17, 2020 to reflect changes to the
designated positions.

The Act requires that every municipal agency review its conflict of interest code on a
biennial basis to determine if it complies with current law, accurately depicts the
appropriate list of designated positions and disclosure levels, and clearly indicates the
agency filing officer. After reviewing the WPWMA's Conflict of Interest Code, staff
determined that the list of designated positions require revision. Specifically, at the
July 21, 2022 meeting your Board adopted Resolution 22-04 which formally designated
the WPWMA'’s Program Manager as the WPWMA Secretary. WPWMA Counsel has
advised staff that this change in designation warrants a revision to the WPWMA'’s
Conflict of Interest Code.

The attached Resolution 22-10 amends the WPWMA'’s Conflict of Interest Code by
specifying the revised list of designated positions to include the WPWMA Secretary.
Approval of the Resolution is required to comply with the Act; the approved Resolution
is due to Placer County Counsel’s office no later than December 1, 2022.

ENVIRONMENTAL CLEARANCE:

Amending the WPWMA's Conflict of Interest Code is not considered a “project” under
the California Environmental Quality Act.

FISCAL IMPACT:

There is no fiscal impact associated with the recommended action.
ATTACHMENT: RESOLUTION 22-10

21



Before the Board of Directors
Western Placer Waste Management Authority

In the matter of: Resolution No. 22-10

DESIGNATION OF POSITIONS REQUIRING
DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO THE FAIR POLITICAL
PRACTICES COMMISSION MODEL CONFLICT

OF INTEREST CODE

The following RESOLUTION was duly passed by the Board of Directors of the Western
Placer Waste Management Authority at a regular meeting held_November 10, 2022, by
the following vote on roll call:

Ayes:
Noes:
Abstain:
Absent:
Signed and approved by me after its passage.

Chair, Western Placer
Waste Management Authority

Clerk of said Board

WHEREAS, the Political Reform Act of 1974, as amended (“the Act”) requires that each
municipal agency subject to the Act, including the Western Placer Waste Management
Authority, adopt a local Conflict of Interest Code; and

WHEREAS, the Act requires the designation of positions within each agency subject to the
adopted Conflict of Interest Code and the types of reportable interests which must be
disclosed by any such designated position; and

WHEREAS, the Fair Political Practices Commission in administering the Act has adopted a
regulation (2 California Code of Regulations §18730) which permits agencies subject to the
Act to adopt, by reference, the Model Conflict of Interest Code developed by the Fair Political
Practices Commission; and

WHEREAS, in 2002 pursuant to Resolution 02-04, the Western Placer Waste Management
Authority adopted said Model Conflict of Interest Code and designated those persons in the
service of the Western Placer Waste Management Authority occupying designated positions
requiring disclosure pursuant to the Act; and

22



RESOLUTION 22-10
NOVEMBER 10, 2022
PAGE 2

WHEREAS, in 2010 pursuant to Resolution 10-07, the Western Placer Waste Management
Authority amended Resolution 02-04 revising the list of designated positions and their
disclosure level and designating the agency filing officer; and

WHEREAS, in 2020 pursuant to Resolution 20-03, the Western Placer Waste Management
Authority amended Resolution 10-07 revising the list of designated positions and their
disclosure level and designating the agency filing officer; and

WHEREAS, the designated positions listed in Resolution 20-03 now requires modification.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Western Placer
Waste Management Authority that:

1. That the adopted Conflict of Interest Code of the Western Placer Waste Management
Authority shall apply and be applicable to those persons in the service of the Western
Placer Waste Management Authority as listed below. Each person occupying each
designated position shall be assigned the disclosure category set forth below.

2. That each person in each designated position, as listed below, shall report, as required
by the Western Placer Waste Management Authority’s adopted Conflict of Interest
Code, all reportable interests for their particular disclosure category.

3. Designated Positions Disclosure Category

Board of Directors

Board of Directors — Alternate

Executive Director

Deputy Executive Director

Program Manager/WPWMA Secretary
Administrative & Fiscal Operations Manager
Senior Civil Engineer

WPWMA Counsel

Deputy WPWMA Counsel

_e A S D A

4. Disclosure Category 1: Persons in this category shall disclose (i) all income including
gifts, loans and travel payments, (ii) all investments, (iii) interests in real property
located within the jurisdiction or within two miles of the boundaries of the jurisdiction of
any land owned or used by the Western Placer Waste Management Authority, and (iv)
all positions in business entities.

5. Designated Filing Officer: WPWMA Secretary

23



PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

24



MEMORANDUM
WESTERN PLACER WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

TO: WPWMA BOARD OF DIRECTORS DATE: NOVEMBER 10, 2022
FROM: KEN GREHM / ERIC ODDO &0
SUBJECT: LANDFILL GAS UTILIZATION REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Authorize staff to conduct a Request for Proposals (RFP) for future utilization of the
landfill gas generated by the Western Regional Sanitary Landfill (WRSL).

BACKGROUND:

On August 8, 1996, your Board authorized staff to conduct an RFP for landfill gas
recovery and energy utilization services. The RFP was released on September 18,
1996, which resulted in one of eight proposers, Energy 2001, Inc. responding with a
proposal. On April 10, 1997, your Board approved the Agreement between the
Authority and Energy 2001, Inc. for the construction and operation of a landfill gas
cogeneration system.

The Agreement consisted of the following terms:

1. Aterm of 20 years, commencing on April 10, 1997.

2. Royalties to be paid to the Authority based on electricity sales to PG&E or other
utility companies.

3. Energy 2001, Inc. shall be responsible for all maintenance and all costs
associated with the operation of the system.

4. Energy 2001, Inc. shall be responsible for all costs associated with the design
and construction of the system and shall procure all required permits.

5. The Authority reserves the right to terminate the agreement in the event that
Energy 2001, Inc. fails to generate for a minimum 7,000 hours during any twelve-
month period, except for catastrophic failures which are not the result of Energy
2001, Inc.’s design or maintenance of the system.

The length of the Agreement has been extended from the original 20-year term of

April 10, 1997 to April 10, 2007, by three separate amendments: 1) the Seventh
Amendment authorized by your Board on March 10, 2016 extended the lease term from
April 10, 2017 to June 30, 2020, 2) the Eighth Amendment authorized by your Board on
December 13, 2018 extended the lease term to June 30, 2022, and 3) the Ninth
Amendment authorized by your Board on June 16, 2021 extended the lease term to
June 30, 2023. Based on the age of the lease and timeframe of the last RFP, as well
as evolving technologies for the beneficial utilization of landfill gas, staff propose to
conduct a new RFP to ensure that the gas generated by the WRSL is recovered and
utilized to the greatest extent possible.

Staff met with Energy 2001 on October 28, 2022 to discuss the proposed RFP process,
who was amenable to month-to-month lease extensions of the current Agreement which
would provide continued benefit to both parties and maximize the utilization of landfill

25



WPWMA BOARD OF DIRECTORS

LANDFILL GAS UTILIZATION REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
NOVEMBER 10, 2022

PAGE 2

gas through any change of tenant and equipment. Continuation of the lease on a
month-to-month basis is provided in Section 17.11 Holding Over, of the Agreement.
Pursuant to this section, if either party desires to terminate such month-to-month
leasing, it shall give the other party a minimum of thirty (30) days advance written notice
of the date of termination. Monthly royalties and rent owed to WPWMA during this
month-to-month lease will follow those specified in the Eighth and Ninth Amendments,
respectively.

ENVIRONMENTAL CLEARANCE:

Authorizing staff to conduct an RFP is not considered a “project” under the California
Environmental Quality Act. Any subsequent modifications or changes to the landfill gas
recovery and utilization infrastructure may be subject to environmental review.
Following the procurement process, staff will initiate the appropriate level of
environmental review and return to your Board as appropriate.

FISCAL IMPACT:

There is no direct fiscal impact to the WPWMA associated with the recommended
action for the landfill gas utilization RFP. Subsequent to June 30, 2023, Energy 2001
month-to-month rent will remain at $1,286/month and the royalty rate will remain
unchanged from the table established in the Eighth Amendment.

26



MEMORANDUM
WESTERN PLACER WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

TO: WPWMA BOARD OF DIRECTORS DATE: NOVEMBER 10, 2022
FROM: KEN GREHM / ERIC ODDO )

SUBJECT: FIRST AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT WITH TETRA TECH FOR
CLOSURE, POSTCLOSURE MAINTENANCE AND CORRECTIVE
ACTION COST ESTIMATE UPDATES

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Authorize the Executive Director or designee, upon review and approval of WPWMA
Counsel, to sign the First Amendment to the Agreement with Tetra Tech for closure plan
review and closure cost estimate services for the Western Regional Sanitary Landfill
(WRSL) for a total of $30,000, increasing the total not-to-exceed cost of the Agreement to
$67,916.

BACKGROUND:

At the September 9, 2021 Board Meeting, your Board approved an agreement with Tetra
Tech to update the WRSL closure, postclosure maintenance and corrective action cost
estimates required by CalRecycle for the 5-year permit review. Revised estimates are
required to ensure sufficient funding’ to: 1) install final cover and remaining landfill gas
system components (closure cost), 2) provide for all required monitoring and maintenance
during the statutory 30-year postclosure period (postclosure) and 3) provide funding for any
necessary corrective action at the WRSL due to a release from the landfill (corrective action).

Tetra Tech reviewed the existing Closure/Postclosure Maintenance Plan developed for
Modules 1, 2, 10 and 11 in 1997 and for Modules 15 and 16 in 2015 and revised the cost
estimates accordingly. The WPWMA submitted the revised cost estimates to the State and
Local Enforcement Agency on October 31, 2022.

October 6, 2022, the Water Board notified the WPWMA that the Closure/Postclosure
Maintenance Plan for closed Modules 1, 2, 10 and 11 would need to be revised to reflect the
soil stockpile being placed in that area. As Tetra Tech was knowledgeable and responsive in
preparing the closure/postclosure cost estimates, staff requested a proposal to revise the
Closure/Postclosure Maintenance Plan per the Water Board’s direction. The attached scope
of work will rely on the Seismic Stability Analysis developed by Golder and submitted to the
Water Board and the landfill gas system renovation plan for Modules 1, 2, 10 and 11
currently being finalized by SCS Engineers.

" This funding is required to be made available to the state in the unlikely event the WPWMA abandoned the WRSL without conducting
the required closure/postclosure activities. While the WPWMA cannot utilize these funds directly for the required activities, as
portions of the WRSL are “closed” and postclosure activities occur (in the future), the WPWMA's liability will be reduced.
Theoretically, at the end of the 30-year postclosure period, all funding set aside in conformance with the regulations will be recovered
by the WPWMA and available for other non-landfill related uses.

27



WPWMA BOARD OF DIRECTORS
NOVEMBER 10, 2022
PAGE 2

ENVIRONMENTAL CLEARANCE:

Revising closure plans or associated cost estimates is categorically exempt under
California Environmental Quality Act guidelines, Article 19, Section 15306: “Information
Collection” which involves data collection, research and evaluation activities.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The cost of providing the work in the proposed First Amendment is $30,000. The
proposed First Amendment would increase the total not-to-exceed cost of the Agreement
to $67,916. Sufficient funding for these services is included in the FY 2022/23 Budget.

ATTACHMENT: FIRST AMENDMENT

28



ADMINISTERING AGENCY: Western Placer Waste Management Authority

AGREEMENT: SCN104944

DESCRIPTION: First Amendment to Agreement for Closure, Post-Closure
Maintenance and Corrective Action Cost Estimate Updates

This FIRST Amendment is made to be effective as of, from and after the day of

, 2022 and between the WESTERN PLACER WASTE MANAGEMENT
AUTHORITY, a joint powers authority organized under California law (hereinafter
referred to as the "WPWMA"), and Tetra Tech, Inc. (“Consultant”), a California
Corporation.

RECITALS

1. The WPWMA and Consultant have entered into that certain "Agreement” for the
Closure, Post-Closure Maintenance and Corrective Action Cost Estimate Updates as
of May 31, 2021.

2. Beginning on September 12, 2022, De Silva Gates Construction, under separate
contract with the WPWMA, began excavating soil in preparation for subsequent
construction of the of WRSL Module 6 liner system. The WPWMA's soil excavation
and stockpiling design specified stockpiling 1,000,000 cubic yards of soil on top of
closed Modules 1, 2, 10, and 11 for long-term storage.

3. On October 6, 2022, as a result of the Module 6 excavation project, the Water Board
requested the WPWMA update the Preliminary Closure/Postclosure Maintenance
Plan (PCPCMP) and related cost estimates to reflect the existence of the stockpile
on Modules 1, 2, 10 and 11.

4. The Consultant proposed a revised fee and scope of work and the WPWMA agrees
to increase the Agreement budget by $30,000, for a total not to exceed maximum
cost of $67,916, to account for this additional work.

5. The WPWMA has determined, that given the administrative need to perform this
work as soon as possible it is in the WPWMA'’s and the public’s best interest to
require Consultant to conduct the necessary work and forego the public procurement
process for this work.

6. The WPWMA and Consultant desire to amend the Agreement to reflect the revised
understanding between the parties as set forth below. All references in this First
Amendment to a Section, to an Appendix, or to an Exhibit shall refer to that Section
or Exhibit of the Agreement, and all terms defined in the Agreement shall have the
same meaning herein.

NOW THEREFORE, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

a. The last sentence in item 2. Payment, shall be replaced with the following sentence:

29



“The total amount payable for all services provided under this Agreement,
including Additional Services, shall not exceed Sixty-Seven Thousand Nine
Hundred Sixteen Dollars ($67,916) without the prior written approval of the
WPWMA.”

c. Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Task 4 Preliminary Closure/Post-Closure Maintenance
Plan Update — Modules 1, 2, 10 and 11 shall be added, including the following text:

“TASK 3 PRELIMINARY CLOSURE/POST-CLOSURE MAINTENANCE PLAN
UPDATE - MODULES 1, 2, 10 AND 11

Confirm Approach with Water Board

Consultant shall schedule, prepare an agenda for, and lead an online meeting with
WPWMA and Water Board staff to solidify objectives and expectations of the
Preliminary Closure/Post Closure Maintenance Plan (PCPCMP). Consultant shall
prepare and submit a meeting summary and minutes and provide a list of
documents requested from the WPWMA for review. Consultant shall review and
evaluate the requested WPWMA facility documents and summarize the combined
Water Board/WPWMA objectives and expectations in meeting minutes emailed to
WPWMA staff.

Draft Addendum to PCMP

Based on the confirmed approach, above, Consultant shall prepare an Addendum to
the existing PCPCMP for Modules 1, 2, 10 and 11. The Addendum shall consist of
supplementary information layered onto the existing PCPCMP as a stand-alone
modification; there will be no changes to the existing PCPCMP other than the cover
sheet to reflect the addendum date. As noted in Exhibit C, the WPWMA will provide
the seismic analysis done by Golder Associates, a conceptual Landfill Gas (LFG)
Plan done by SCS Engineers to re-establish effective LFG collection in the stockpile
area along with costs to design and construct upgrades. The WPWMA will also
provide an erosion control plan showing placement of erosion control infrastructure
(e.g. wattles, silt fences etc.).

Consultant shall also update the PCPCMP cost estimate based on: a) Stockpile
Maintenance based on the Module 1, 2, 10 and 11 stockpile plans provided to
Consultant, and; b) LFG upgrade plan implementation costs from SCS’ estimates or
actual billings. Consultant shall confirm this approach with the Water Board as the
Water Board may consider the cost part of Corrective Action or a post-closure cost.

Deliverables Due Format

One (1) week after meeting with Water

Board staff PDF

Water Board Meeting Minutes

Draft Addendum to Module 1, 2, 10 and 11 Nine (9) weeks after Amendment

PCPCMP execution PDF

30



Deliverables Due Format

Final Addendum to Module 1, 2, 10 and 11 Two (2) weeks after WPWMA PDE
PCPCMP comment/review

b. To Exhibit C, Facilities, Equipment, and Other Materials and Obligations of the
WPWMA, add the following text:

“4. Seismic Stability Analysis by Golder Associates.
5. Stockpile Stormwater Management Plan by Golder Associates

6. LFG System Upgrade Plans for the Module 1, 2, 10 and 11 area by SCS
Engineers.”

Except as expressly provided in this First Amendment, the Agreement shall remain
unchanged and in full force and effect. After this First Amendment is duly executed and
delivered by WPWMA and Consultant, this First Amendment shall be and constitute an
integral part of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the WPWMA and Consultant have executed this First
Amendment as of the day and year first above written.

Western Placer Waste Management Authority

By: Date:

Ken Grehm, P.E.
Executive Director

Tetra Tech, Inc.

By: By:

Paul Willman, Principal Solid Waste Planner Jeff Williams, Vice President

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By:
WPWMA Counsel

31



EXHIBIT B.1
PAYMENT FOR SERVICES RENDERED

Payment to Consultant will be made by the WPWMA on an hourly basis in accordance

with Exhibit B-1 — Fee Schedule.

Consultant shall submit invoices monthly for work performed. Such invoices shall

describe in detail the work and work hours performed, the person(s) performing the
work, his/her hourly rate, and the expenses for which reimbursement is claimed. The
invoices shall also include a spreadsheet that shows task budgets, charges by task for

the current invoice, cumulative charges to date by task, and percent of budget

remaining by task. Hourly time shall be stated in increments of no less than one-

(1/4) of an hour.

quarter

Provided the work has been satisfactorily performed, the WPWMA shall pay invoices
within thirty (30) days after approval of the invoice. Consultant shall provide such
additional information as the WPWMA may request to verify any of the amounts claimed
for payment in any invoice. Consultant shall not exceed the individual task budgets set
forth in Exhibit B-1. Such task budgets may be formally amended by written agreement
of Consultant and the WPWMA Executive Director or designee. The total amount
payable for all services provided under this Agreement shall not exceed sixty-seven

thousand, nine hundred sixteen dollars ($67,916).

Table 1: Not-To-Exceed Task Budgets

Task | Description

Not-to-Exceed
Task Budget

1 Kick-off Meeting, Data Review, and Project Administration $4,040

2 Corrective Action Plan Recertification and Update Cost Estimates $9,421

3 Closure/Post-Closure Maintenance and Monitoring Cost Updates $19,455

4 Preliminary Closure/Postclosure Maintenance Plan for Modules 1, 2, $30,000
10 and 11

A1 | Additional Services $5,000

Total $67,916

The WPWMA may, in its sole discretion, withhold up to ten percent (10%) of any
payment as security for the completion of the work. Within thirty (30) days after

approval of Consultant’s final invoice, and provided all services have been satisfactorily

completed, the WPWMA shall release and pay any withheld retention.

32




MEMORANDUM
WESTERN PLACER WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

TO: WPWMA BOARD OF DIRECTORS DATE: NOVEMBER 10, 2022
FROM: KEN GREHM / KEVIN BELL

SUBJECT: RENEWABLE PLACER WASTE ACTION PLAN FINAL
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT

RECOMMENDED ACTIONS:

1. Adopt Resolution 22-11 certifying the Renewable Placer Waste Action Plan Final
Environmental Impact Report (SCH#2019039087) and Errata prepared pursuant to
the California Environmental Quality Act and adopt the Mitigation Monitoring and
Reporting Program supported by and incorporating by reference in its entirety the
Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations.

2. Select and approve Plan Concept 2 as the Project associated with the Renewable
Placer Waste Action Plan Final Environmental Impact Report.

3. Direct staff to file a Notice of Determination with the State Clearinghouse and Placer
County Clerk consistent with California Environmental Quality Act Guidelines and
direct the Executive Director, or designee, to take such further actions as necessary
or appropriate to implement Plan Concept 2.

BACKGROUND:

At the July 9, 2015 meeting, staff presented your Board with potential modifications and
enhancements intended to maintain the long-term viability of the WPWMA's facilities by:
1) responding to changes in applicable regulations, 2) addressing anticipated regional
growth, 3) optimizing material diversion rates, 4) maximizing operational efficiencies to
improve customer safety and maintain a stable cost structure, and 5) enhancing
compatibility between operations and current and future adjacent land uses.

At the October 13, 2016 meeting, your Board approved an agreement with Jacobs
Engineering Group, Inc. (Jacobs) to conduct a master planning effort to identify potential
projects intended to address the aforementioned items (Phase 1) and prepare the
appropriate California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) documents to evaluate a
project (Phase 2).

In Phase 1, Jacobs conducted a series of technical evaluations and analyses for the
purpose of developing potential project concepts. Based on feedback from Member
Agency representatives and from your Board at the December 14, 2017, May 10, 2018,
September 13, 2018, and November 8, 2018 meetings, Jacobs developed two distinct
project plan concepts. A high-level comparative summary of these concepts is attached
as Attachment A.

At the December 13, 2018 meeting, staff initiated Phase 2 with the presentation of the
plan concepts to your Board and sought authorization to initiate environmental review of
Plan Concept 1 as the preferred option. At that time, your Board directed staff to
conduct equal environmental review of both plan concepts.

33



WPWMA BOARD OF DIRECTORS

RENEWABLE PLACER WASTE ACTION PLAN FINAL EIR
NOVEMBER 10, 2022

PAGE 2

Environmental Review

A Notice of Preparation (NOP) for the EIR was issued by the WPWMA on

March 15, 2019 for a 30-day public comment period that ended on April 15, 2019. The
NOP was sent to the California State Clearinghouse, state and local agencies, and
members of the public. The WPWMA held a scoping meeting on April 1, 2019 to inform
and solicit input from agencies and the public on the Waste Action Plan and scope and
content of the EIR.

During development of the Draft EIR, Jacobs recommended the WPWMA identify a
“preferred project” in the Draft EIR even when conducting equal analysis of two project
concepts. Provided that both plan concepts were developed to meet the WPWMA'’s
operational needs and goals, determination of a “preferred project” was primarily based
on significant, near-term financial differences and assumptions regarding implementation
of the plan concepts based on 2018 operational conditions. Plan Concept 1 presented
the lower cost and, as a result, the WPWMA selected Plan Concept 1 as the “preferred
project”. The predominant economic differentiator between the plan concepts was
related to the timing of waste relocation from closed Modules 1, 2, 10 and 11 to
accommodate facility operations.

The WPWMA released the Draft EIR prepared by Jacobs on October 29, 2021 for a
45-day public review and comment period and on December 7, 2021 extended the
comment period to January 12, 2022 for a total of 75 days. The Draft EIR was made
available for review online at RenewablePlacer.com, at the WPWMA'’s administrative
offices, and at the following public libraries: Auburn (350 Nevada Street); Granite Bay
(6475 Douglas Boulevard); Lincoln (485 Twelve Bridges Drive); Rocklin (4890 Granite
Drive); and Roseville (1530 Maidu Drive).

During the public comment period, two public meetings were held at the WPWMA'’s
administrative offices on December 7, 2021 (morning and evening sessions) to solicit
comments from the public and responsible agencies on the Draft EIR. No comments
were received during these meetings.

The WPWMA received 19 comment letters on the Draft EIR during the public comment
period. Copies of these letters and the associated responses are included in the Final
EIR released October 25, 2022.

The Draft EIR and Final EIR together constitute the Final EIR for the Renewable Placer
Waste Action Plan.

Revision to the Preferred Project Alternative

The factors informing staff's recommendation of a preferred plan concept have evolved
since release of the Draft EIR in October 2021, including finalization of SB 1383
regulations and transition of MRF and landfill operations to FCC Environmental Services
on July 1, 2022.

As originally conceptualized, based on 2018 operational conditions, waste relocation
under Plan Concept 2 was identified as necessary within the first several years of
project implementation to accommodate expanded composting and construction and

34



WPWMA BOARD OF DIRECTORS

RENEWABLE PLACER WASTE ACTION PLAN FINAL EIR
NOVEMBER 10, 2022

PAGE 3

demolition (C&D) processing operations, whereas waste excavation under Plan
Concept 1 could be conducted farther in the future.

However, considering FCC’s proposed facility design modifications and contractual
requirements, both of which are anticipated to drastically increase diversion, sufficient
space exists within the current MRF boundary to accommodate composting and C&D
processing levels contemplated in the Draft EIR for a minimum of 10 years.
Consequently, Plan Concept 2 no longer requires immediate relocation of waste from
closed Modules 1, 2, 10 and 11 to realize the economic and operational benefits
presented by that concept. Jacobs estimated a cost between $80 million and $100
million to relocate waste from the closed area; avoiding or delaying this cost while
realizing the project benefits lessens the economic burden on the WPWMA's current
and future customers.

In contrast, to fully realize the future landfill capacity associated with Plan Concept 1,
the relocation of waste must occur before the northern portion of the eastern property
can be developed for landfill operations. This is a result of Subtitle D of the Resource
Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA), approved by Congress in 1991, which
requires all new or expanded landfill areas to include a geocomposite liner system.
Modules 1, 2, 10 and 11 were designed, constructed, and filled prior Subtitle D and do
not contain a geocomposite liner system.

As waste relocation is no longer imminent, near-term financial analysis suggests that
the costs of the two concepts is essentially equal. In light of this new information, staff
reevaluated the initial plan concept recommendation considering the operational and
design elements of both plan concepts to determine a final recommended concept for
your Board’s consideration.

Staff recommend your Board select and approve Plan Concept 2 for the following
reasons:

Landfill Capacity

As noted in Section 3 of the Draft EIR, Plan Concept 2 could provide approximately
5 million cubic yards of additional airspace compared to Plan Concept 1 assuming
waste excavation and relocation occurs under both plan concepts. The estimates
provided in the Draft EIR suggest the additional landfill airspace under Plan
Concept 2 could extend the life of the WRSL by up to 9 years compared to Plan
Concept 1. Both plan concepts suggest sufficient landfill capacity would be
available for at least an additional 80 years.

However, the maximum landfill airspace under Plan Concept 1 would only be
realized if the waste in Modules 1, 2, 10 and 11 was relocated, which could cost
the WPWMA an additional $80 to $100 million. Staff performed subsequent
analysis, included as Attachment B, to estimate the change in available airspace
under Plan Concept 1 if waste was not relocated’. The analysis suggests that this

" Airspace capacity under Plan Concept 2 is not significantly or adversely impacted by excavation and relocations of wastes from
Modules 1, 2, 10 and 11.

35



WPWMA BOARD OF DIRECTORS

RENEWABLE PLACER WASTE ACTION PLAN FINAL EIR
NOVEMBER 10, 2022

PAGE 4

change would reduce the potential airspace of Plan Concept 1 by approximately 20
million cubic yards and reduce future landfill life by approximately 20 years or
more.

Preservation of Biological Resources

Siting future landfill on the western property under Plan Concept 2 has the
potential to impact fewer wetland and vernal pool areas compared to siting the
landfill on the eastern property under Plan Concept 1. Utilizing the eastern
property for compatible manufacturing could allow for more opportunities to
minimize impacts to sensitive biological areas through design and operational
practices compared to developing the area for future landfill.

Compatibility with Planned and Existing Neighboring Land Uses

With the exception of the mitigation bank preserve immediately north of the
WPWMA'’s center property, future development is anticipated on all properties
surrounding the WPWMA. Current construction of The Venue at Thunder Valley,
the October 21, 2022 Placer One groundbreaking, and the proposed Buzz Oates
Placer Commerce Center project indicate that properties south and east of the
WPWMA'’s will be developed well before those to the north and west. As such,
Plan Concept 2 would provide for greater distance between landfill operations and
sensitive receptors for a longer period of time compared to Plan Concept 1.

Design and Operational Flexibility

Greater developable acreage of the western property (~459 acres) versus the
eastern property (~155 acres) provides increased opportunity for design and
operational flexibility in developing the western property for landfilling under Plan
Concept 2. This flexibility also provides more options when considering setbacks
from the property line, locations of supporting elements, and operational or
physical buffers.

Landfill Design and Construction

Developing future landfill on the eastern property under Plan Concept 1 would
require a tie-in to the existing liner systems on the center property, extension and
modification of landfill leachate sump risers and pumping/piping systems along the
eastern edge of the center property, and installation of a separation liner system
between future Class Il and current Class Ill modules. While engineering solutions
could be developed to address these challenges, they would result in increased
design and long-term operational costs. Development of a new, separate landfill on
the western property under Plan Concept 2 would avoid these design and
operational costs and challenges.

While both plan concepts meet the WPWMA's long-term operational goals and
objectives, for the reasons noted above, staff recommend that your Board approve Plan
Concept 2 as the Project. Should your Board elect to take other action, staff will return to
your Board at a subsequent meeting as necessary.

36



WPWMA BOARD OF DIRECTORS

RENEWABLE PLACER WASTE ACTION PLAN FINAL EIR
NOVEMBER 10, 2022

PAGE 5

FISCAL IMPACT:

While there is no direct fiscal impact associated with the recommended actions, staff
included $100,000 in the FY 2022/23 Final Budget (presented as a separate item on
this agenda for your Board’s consideration) for planning and administrative efforts
associated with preliminary implementation of the Waste Action Plan.

ATTACHMENTS: ATTACHMENT A: PLAN CONCEPT SUMMARIES

ATTACHMENT B: PLAN CONCEPT 1 FILL PLAN WITHOUT WASTE EXCAVATION

ATTACHMENT C: RESOLUTION 22-11
EXHIBIT A: DRAFT ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT (Available online at
www.renewableplacer.com, and on file with the WPWMA Clerk of the Board)
EXHIBIT B: FINAL ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT (Available online at
www.renewableplacer.com, and on file with the WPWMA Clerk of the Board)
EXHIBIT C: FINDINGS OF FACT AND STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONSIDERATIONS

37


http://www.renewableplacer.com/
http://www.renewableplacer.com/

General Description

The majority of the 158-acre eastern
property will be reserved for future
landfill capacity. MRF and C&D
operations will remain proximate to
each other on the existing 320-acre
property. Composting and other
organics management will occur on
the 480-acre western property.
Portions of the western property will
be reserved for compatible third-party
operations.

Processing and Recycling
Operations

Systems will be sized to
accommodate anticipated material
growth rates over the next 25 years.
Placement on the western property
provides additional space specifically

PLAN CONCEPT 1
LANDFILL EAST

ATTACHMENT A

Easl Callett Road

Alhens Avenue

PLAN CONCEPT 1

LEGEND

(1) Curent And Future Landfil

(2) Waste Excavation Area

(3) Landiill Expansion Area

(4) Compost Area

(5) Construction & Demolition Area
(&) Public Waste Drop-Off

Complementary/Programmatic Elements

‘Sunset Boulevard West
WESTERM PROPERTY

EASTERN

CENTER PROPERTY PROPERTY

Size and location of slements are approximate

(@) Gompati

(B) Pilot Study Area

(&) University Research Area

(1)) Landfill Gas To Campressed Natural Gas Area
@ Recovered Materials Storage Area
@ Stormwater Ponds

@ Road Crossing

@ Maintenance Areas

@ Administrative Building Areas

@ Parking

0 Ilaterials Recovery Facility

@ Household Hazardous Waste Facility
@ Entrances

&) Landiil Gas-to-Energy Plant

% Project Boundary

.......

O Lendill Footprint

Waste Excavation Area

; - A
. ‘

s

Figure 4. Plan Concept 1

JACOBS

allowing for expansion of composting operations as necessitated by current and anticipated

future organics regulations.
Landfill Operations

Future filling operations could occur on the eastern property. Modules 1, 2, 10 and 11 (closed,
unlined modules) will be excavated and relocated to a lined module to facilitate expansion of
processing, recycling operations and additional landfill space if necessary. Excavation and
relocation can be phased as needed or as finances allow. The space currently allocated for
future Module 9 will be utilized for processing and recycling operations and no longer available
for landfilling. Landfill capacity will increase from ~36.5 million cubic yards to ~75.8 million cubic
yards, yielding an estimated remaining landfill life of approximately 90 years.

Compatible Operations and Opportunities for Innovation
A significant portion of the western property will be available for compatible operations,
emerging technology pilot studies and collaboration with universities. Doing so will serve to
increase the recovery and marketability of materials and produce alternative fuels and energy.

Enhanced Compatibility

Concept 1 provides the WPWMA the greatest opportunity to employ new odor-reducing waste
processing technologies such as ASP composting. Landfill odors could persist for a longer

period compared to Concepts 0 and 2 due to a longer projected remaining life.

38




General Description

Over half of the 480-acre western
property will be reserved for future
landfill capacity. All non-landfill solid
waste activities will occur exclusively
on the existing permitted 320-acre
parcel. Portions of the eastern
property will be reserved for
compatible third-party operations and
could also include a biological reserve
area.

Processing and Recycling
Operations

Systems will be sized to
accommodate anticipated material
growth rates over the next 25 years.
Maintaining relatively close and
compact proximity of these operations
to each other should initially yield
increased operational efficiencies and

PLAN CONCEPT 2
LANDFILL WEST

ATTACHMENT A

East Catiett Road

@®

Athens Avenue

PLAN CONCEPT 2

LEGEND

(1) Curent And Future Landfill

(2) Waste Excavation Area

(3) Landfill Expansion Area

(4) Compost Area

(5) Construction & Demaiition Area
(B) Public Waste Drop-Off

Complementary/Programmatic Elements

® &, ©

.........................................

Sunset Boulevard West
WESTERN PROPERTY

EASTERN
PROPERTY

CENTER PROPERTY

Size and location of elements are approximate

o mpatibl

(E) Pilot Study Area

g University Research Area

(1)) Landfll Gas To Compressed Natural Gas Area

@ Recovered Materials Storage Area

@ Stormwater Ponds

{® Road Crossing

@ Waintenance Areas

@ Administrative Building Areas

@ Parking

@ Materials Recovery Facility

P Housshold Hazardous Waste Facility
Entrances

@9 Landfill Gas-to-Energy Plant

T Project Boundary
....... i

( ' Landfill Foatprint

Waste Excavation Area

u : A
L

Figure 5. Plan Concept 2

JACOBS

reduce operating costs. Flexibility to further expand or modify these operations in the future may
be hampered by the lack of available, unencumbered space between the individual operations.

Landfill Operations

Future filling operations could occur on the western property. Modules 1, 2, 10 and 11 (closed,
unlined modules) will be immediately excavated and relocated to a lined module to facilitate
expansion of processing and recycling operations. The space currently allocated for future
Modules 8 and 9 will be utilized for processing and recycling operations and no longer available
for landfilling. Landfill capacity will increase from ~36.5 million cubic yards to ~54.3million cubic
yards, yielding an estimated remaining landfill life of approximately 70 years.

Compatible Operations and Opportunities for Innovation
A significant portion of the eastern property will be available for compatible operations, emerging
technology pilot studies and collaboration with universities, which could serve to increase

recycling rates and produce alternative fuels and energy.

Enhanced Compatibility

Concept 2 provides the WPWMA some opportunity to employ new odor-reducing waste
processing technologies such as ASP composting. Landfill odors could persist for a longer
period compared to Concepts due to a longer project remaining life.

39




ATTACHMENT B

PLAN CONCEPT 1 FILL PLAN WITHOUT WASTE EXCAVATION

MODULES 1,2, 10, & 11
REMAIN UNEXCAVATED

MASTER FILL PLAN
FINAL GRADES

. EXISTING LANDFILL
BOUNDARY

CONCEPT 1 ADDITION .
23,824,833 CUBIC YARDS

/.

Jormee: e [

hpprowel dole T EI
flnn ter bt
e

WESTERN PLACER
WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
3M3 Flddyment Rood — Roseslle, Collfornla 865747
(916) 543-3960  www.Npwm.CO.q0V

o
CONCEPT 1 (NO EXCAVATION)

FIG 1

40



Before the Board of Directors
Western Placer Waste Management Authority

In the matter of: Resolution No. 22-11

A RESOLUTION CERTIFYING THE FINAL
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT AND ERRATA
FOR THE RENEWABLE PLACER WASTE ACTION
PLAN AND ADOPTING THE MITIGATION
MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM AND
FINDINGS OF FACT AND STATEMENT OF
OVERRIDING CONSIDERATIONS.

The following resolution was duly passed by the Board of Directors of the Western Placer
Waste Management Authority at a regular meeting held November 10, 2022, by the
following vote on roll call:

Ayes:
Noes:
Abstain:
Absent:
Signed and approved by me after its passage.

Chair, Western Placer
Waste Management Authority

Attest:

Clerk of said Board

WHEREAS, the Western Placer Waste Management Authority (WPWMA) acting as
lead agency to the California Environmental Quality Act (Public Resources Code
sections 21000 et seq.) (“CEQA”) prepared an environmental impact report (“EIR”) and
Errata for the “Renewable Placer Waste Action Plan” project (SCH# 2019039087); and;

WHEREAS, for the purposes of the WPWMA acting as the lead agency pursuant to
CEQA, the EIR analyzed the following:

1. Increasing the capacity of the Western Regional Sanitary Landfill (WRSL) to
accommodate existing and future solid waste disposal demands of western
Placer County jurisdictions;

41



RESOLUTION 22-10
NOVEMBER 10, 2022
PAGE 2

2. Excavating closed pre-Subtitle D portions of the WRSL and relocating excavated
waste to Subtitle D-compliant landfill modules;

3. Redesigning and expanding composting operations capacity to accommodate
growth in the waste stream and increased organics diversion required by state
regulations, to accept additional compostable waste streams, and to improve
odor controls;

4. Redesigning and expanding construction and demolition waste operations
capacity to accommodate growth in the waste stream and respond to increased
state diversion mandates;

5. Redesigning and expanding public waste receiving operations capacity to
accommodate population growth and associated facility use, support customer
safety and convenience, and provide opportunities for increased material
diversion.

(Hereinafter collectively referred to as “Project” or “Project Approvals”).
WHEREAS, the EIR analyzed the Project at the programmatic and project level; and

WHEREAS, the Project Approvals constitute a “Project” for purposes of CEQA and
CEQA Guidelines section 15378 and these determinations of the WPWMA Board of
Directors (“Board”); and

WHEREAS, a notice of preparation for the Project was issued on March 15, 2019; and

WHEREAS, on October 29, 2021, the WPWMA released the Draft EIR prepared for the
Project under the direction of the Board; and

WHEREAS, the WPWMA made the Draft EIR available for public review and comment
in accordance with CEQA from October 29, 2021 through January 12, 2022; and

WHEREAS, the WPWMA received written comments on the Draft EIR, in response to
which the WPWMA prepared and released a Final EIR on October 25, 2022; and

WHEREAS, the Board gave full and legal notice of a public hearing to consider and act
upon the Project Approvals and the Final EIR and Errata, which was held on November
10, 2022; and

WHEREAS, the Board has duly considered the Final EIR for the Project, which consists
of the Draft EIR, Final EIR and Errata, Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program, the
appendices and references thereto, the comments of the public, and all written
materials in the administrative record connected therewith; and

WHEREAS, the Board has duly considered the Findings of Fact and Statement of
Overriding Considerations prepared for certification of the Final EIR.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
WESTERN PLACER WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY:

1.  The Final EIR (Exhibits A and B) has been prepared in accordance with all
requirements of CEQA and the CEQA Guidelines.

42



RESOLUTION 22-10
NOVEMBER 10, 2022
PAGE 3

2. The Final EIR was presented to and reviewed by the Board. The Final EIR was
prepared under supervision by the WPWMA and reflects the independent judgement
of the WPWMA. The Board bases its findings on such review and other substantial
evidence in the record.

3. The Board hereby certifies the Final EIR as complete, adequate and in full compliance
with CEQA and considered justification as a basis for considering and acting upon the
Project Approvals and exercising its independent judgement.

4. The Board has considered and hereby adopts the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting
Program contained in the EIR and the Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding
Considerations as set forth in Exhibit C, attached hereto and incorporated herein by
reference.

5. The Clerk of the Board is the custodian of record of the Final EIR.
6. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED: That notwithstanding the mitigation measures identified in the
Final EIR, not all significant impacts of the Project have been reduced to a level of insignificance
or eliminated by changes in the Project. The Board finds that the Project will bring substantial
benefit to western Placer County and that the Project’s benefits outweigh the Project’s
significant unmitigated adverse impacts and pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 15093
adopts and makes the Statement of Overriding Considerations as set forth in Exhibit C, attached
hereto and incorporated herein by reference, to explain why the Project’s benefits override its
unavoidable impacts. Having carefully considered the Project, its impacts and the foregoing
benefits, the Board finds, in light of the important environmental, economic and other benefits
that the Project will bring as set forth in the Statement of Overriding Considerations, the adverse
environmental impacts of the Project that are not fully mitigated are acceptable.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED: That WPWMA staff is directed to file a Notice of Determination
with the Placer County Clerk with in five (5) working days in accordance with Public Resources
Code section 21152(a) and CEQA Guidelines section 15094.

43



RESOLUTION 22-10
NOVEMBER 10, 2022
PAGE 4

EXHIBIT A

Draft Environmental Impact Report (“EIR”) for the “Renewable Placer Waste Action Plan”

SCH# 2019039087

NOTE: The above document is available online at www.RenewablePlacer.com, on file with
the WPWMA Clerk of the Board, and attached to the original resolution.

44


http://www.renewableplacer.com/

RESOLUTION 22-10
NOVEMBER 10, 2022
PAGE 5

EXHIBIT B

Final Environmental Impact Report (“EIR”) for the “Renewable Placer Waste Action Plan”

SCH# 2019039087

NOTE: The above document is available online at www.RenewablePlacer.com, on file with
the WPWMA Clerk of the Board, and attached to the original resolution.

45


http://www.renewableplacer.com/

RESOLUTION 22-10
NOVEMBER 10, 2022
PAGE 6

EXHIBIT C

Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations for the
“‘Renewable Placer Waste Action Plan” Final Environmental Impact Report (“EIR”)

SCH# 2019039087

46



California Environmental Quality Act Findings of Fact and
Statement of Overriding Considerations Regarding the
Final Environmental Impact Report for the

Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

State Clearinghouse Number 2019039087

November 2022

Western Placer Waste Management Authority

47



PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

48



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Acronyms and Abbreviations ii
1. Introductory Findings 1-1
2. Potential Environmental Impacts that were Determined to be Less Than Significant During the
Scoping Process 2-1
3. Potential Environmental Impacts that are Not Significant (No Mitigation Required) .........c.eeuu. 3-1
Potential Environmental Impacts that have Been Mitigated to a Level of Insignificance .......... 4-1
Unavoidable Significant Environmental Impacts that Cannot be Mitigated to a Less-than-
Significant Level 5-1
6. Growth-Inducing Impacts of the Action 6-1
7. Findings Regarding Alternatives to the Project 7-1
8. Findings Regarding Monitoring Program 8-1
9. Location and Custodian of Record of Proceedings 9-1
10. Lead Agency’s Independent Judgment 10-1
11. Nature of Findings 11-1
12. Reliance on Record 12-1
13. Statement of Overriding Considerations 13-1
14. References 14-1
FES1026220700SAC i

49



PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

50



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

Acronyms and Abbreviations

pin/sec microinch(es) per second

AB Assembly Bill

ADC alternative daily cover

AERMOD American Meteorological Society/U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Regulatory
Model

AMSL above mean sea level

APE Area of Potential Effects

ASP aerated static pile

ASTM American Society for Testing Materials

BACT Best Available Control Technology

BMP best management practice

Board Western Placer Waste Management Authority Board of Directors

C&D construction and demolition

CAAQS California Ambient Air Quality Standards

Cal/OSHA California Division of Occupational Safety and Health

CalEEMod California Emissions Estimator Model

CalFire California Department of Forestry and Fire

CALGreen California Green Building Standards

Cal OES California Office of Emergency Services

CalRecycle California Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery

Caltrans California Department of Transportation

CARB California Air Resources Board

CARP Western Placer County Aquatic Resources Program

CAP Corrective Action Program

CAPCOA California Air Pollution Control Officers Association

CASP covered aerated static pile

CBC California Building Standards Code

CCR California Code of Regulations

CDFW California Department of Fish and Wildlife

CESA California Endangered Species Act

CEQA California Environmental Quality Act

CFD Community Facilities District

CFR Code of Federal Regulations

CGS California Geological Survey

i FES1026220700SAC

51



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

CGP

CH4
cm/sec
CNDDB
co

CO:

COze
County
CRHR
CVRWQCB
CWA

dB

dBA
Draft EIR
EIR

EPA

ESA
Final EIR
FESA
FGC
FHWA
GHG
GHG Rx
H:V

HCP
HHW
HHWF
HI

HIA

HIC

HRA

IGP

ILF Program
Jacobs

Ib/day

FES1026220700SAC

Construction General Permit
methane

centimeter(s) per second

California Natural Diversity Database
carbon monoxide

carbon dioxide

carbon dioxide equivalent

County of Placer

California Register of Historical Resources

Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board

Clean Water Act

decibel(s)

A-weighted decibel(s)

Draft Environmental Impact Report
Environmental Impact Report

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
environmental site assessment
Final Environmental Impact Report
Federal Endangered Species Act
Fish and Game Code

Federal Highway Administration
greenhouse gas

Greenhouse Gas Reduction Exchange Program
horizontal to vertical

Habitat Conservation Plan
household hazardous waste
household hazardous waste facility
hazard indices

acute hazard index

chronic hazard index

health risk assessment

Industrial General Permit

In-Lieu Fee Program

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc.

pound(s) per day

52

iii



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

LFG landfill gas

LFGTE landfill gas to energy

LHMP Local Hazard Mitigation Plan

LID low-impact development

LOS Level of Service

MBI Michael Baker International

MBTA Migratory Bird Treaty Act

MEIR maximally exposed individual at a residential location
MEIW maximally exposed individual at a workplace location
mgd million gallons per day

mgy million gallons per year

MLD Most Likely Descendant

MMP Mitigation and Monitoring Plan

MOU memorandum of understanding

MPE maximum probable earthquake

MRF materials recovery facility

msl mean sea level

MSW municipal solid waste

MT metric ton(s)

N20 nitrous oxide

NAHC Native American Heritage Commission

NAAQS National Ambient Air Quality Standards

NCCP Natural Community Conservation Plan

NPDES National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System
NOP Notice of Preparation

NOx oxides of nitrogen

NRHP National Register of Historic Places

OEHHA Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment
OES Office of Emergency Services

OIMP Odor Impact Minimization Plan

OFMSW organic fraction of municipal solid waste

OPR Office of Planning and Research

OSHA Occupational Safety and Health Administration
PCAPCD Placer County Air Pollution Control District

PCCP Placer County Conservation Program

iv FES1026220700SAC

53



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

PCWA Placer County Water Agency

PG&E Pacific Gas & Electric Company

PM2.5 particulate matter with diameter 2.5 micrometers and smaller
PM10 particulate matter with diameter 10 micrometers and smaller
PMI point of maximum impacts

ppmv parts per million by volume

PPV peak particle velocity

PRC (California) Public Resources Code

Project Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

PRSP Placer Ranch Specific Plan

REL reference exposure level

RMS root mean square

ROG reactive organic gases

SACOG Sacramento Area Council of Governments

SAP Sunset Area Plan

SB Senate Bill

scfm standard cubic feet per minute

sf square feet

SHPO State Historic Preservation Officer

SR State Route

State CEQA Guidelines  California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Section 15091

SVAB Sacramento Valley Air Basin

SWOP Site-Wide Odor Plan

SWPPP Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan

SWRCB State Water Resources Control Board

TAC toxic air contaminant

UAIC United Auburn Indian Community of the Auburn Rancheria
USACE U.S. Army Corps of Engineers

USFWS U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service

USGS U.S. Geological Survey

UWMP Urban Water Management Plan

VDECS Verified Diesel Emission Control Strategy

VEE Visible Emissions Evaluation

VMT vehicle miles traveled

WDR Waste Discharge Requirement

FES1026220700SAC \4

54



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

WPWMA Western Placer Waste Management Authority

Waste Action Plan Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

WRSL Western Regional Sanitary Landfill

WSA Water Supply Assessment

WWTP wastewater treatment plant

vi FES1026220700SAC

55



PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

56



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

1. Introductory Findings

Pursuant to California Public Resources Code (PRC) Section 21081 and California Code of Regulations, Title
14, Section 15091 (State CEQA Guidelines), no public agency shall approve or carry out a project for which an
Environmental Impact Report (EIR) has been certified, which identifies one or more significant impacts on
the environment that would occur if the project is approved or carried out, unless the public agency makes
one or more findings for each of those significant impacts, accompanied by a brief explanation of the rationale
of each finding. The possible findings, which must be supported by substantial evidence in the record, are:

1) Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into, the project that mitigate or avoid
the significant impact on the environment (hereinafter Finding 1).

2) Changes or alterations are within the responsibility and jurisdiction of another public agency and
have been, or can and should be, adopted by that other agency (hereinafter Finding 2).

3) Specific economic, legal, social, technological, or other considerations make infeasible the mitigation
measures or project alternatives identified in the EIR (hereinafter Finding 3).

For those significant impacts that cannot be mitigated to below a level of significance to approve the project,
the public agency is required to find that specific overriding economic, legal, social, technological, or other
benefits of the project outweigh the significant impacts on the environment.

The Western Placer Waste Management Authority (WPWMA) Board of Directors (Board) hereby approves
the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan (Project) and certifies the Project Final EIR (Final EIR), State
Clearinghouse Number 2019039087, consisting of the Draft EIR, Responses to Comments, and other
supporting documents. The Board finds that the Final EIR reflects the independent judgment and analysis of
the WPWMA and has been completed in compliance with CEQA (PRC Section 21000-21177), and the Board
has received, reviewed, and considered the information contained in the Final EIR, all testimony at public
hearings, and submissions from public agencies, local landowners, residents and others, and all other
information in the record prior to its approval of the Project.

Having received, reviewed, and considered the foregoing information, as well as any and all other information
in the record, the Board hereby makes findings pursuant to, and in accordance with, Section 21081 of the
Public Resources Code.
This document consists of the following sections:
e Section 2 of these findings discusses those potential environmental impacts of the Project that were
reviewed during the scoping process prior to preparation of the Draft EIR, but were found to be less

than significant.

e Section 3 discusses those potential environmental impacts of the Project that were evaluated in the
Draft EIR and are not significant.

e Section 4 discusses those potential environmental impacts that have been mitigated to a level of
insignificance.

e Section 5 discusses those unavoidable environmental impacts that cannot be mitigated to a level of
insignificance.

e Section 6 discusses the potential growth-inducing impacts of the Project.

FES1026220700SAC 1-1
57



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

e Section 7 discusses the alternatives to the Project as discussed in the Final EIR.

e Section 8 contains findings regarding the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program.

e Section 9 contains findings regarding the location and custodian of the record of proceedings.
e Section 10 contains findings regarding the independent judgment of the WPWMA.

e Section 11 contains findings regarding the nature of the findings.

e Section 12 contains findings regarding the reliance on the record.

e Section 13 contains the Statement of Overriding Considerations. The findings set forth in each section
are supported by substantial evidence in the record of the approval of the Project.

In accordance with the provisions of CEQA and the State CEQA Guidelines, the Board adopts these findings as
part of its certification of the Final EIR for the Project.

1.1 Project Selection

The Draft EIR evaluated two concepts (Plan Concepts 1 and 2) at an equal level of detail for implementing the
Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan and identified Plan Concept 1 as the preferred Project. However, based

on the information contained in the Final EIR, all testimony at public hearings, information submitted during

the public review process, and all other information in the record, the WPWMA identified Plan Concept 2 for

approval as the Project. This section details the rationale behind the WPWMA'’s selection of Plan Concept 2 as
the Project referenced in these Findings.

The WPWMA developed Plan Concepts 1 and 2 based on operational performance related to space utilization
and material diversion rates at the time. While both Plan Concepts would meet the WPWMA's Project
objectives, the Draft EIR identified Plan Concept 1 as the Preferred Project predominantly due to economic
factors. Since then, due in part to the implementation of Senate Bill (SB) 1383 and award of MRF and Landfill
operations to FCC Environmental Services (FCC) effective July 1, 2022, the factors influencing specific
elements of Plan Concepts 1 and 2 have evolved from the Draft EIR’s designation of the Preferred Project.

In particular, based on FCC’s proposed facility design modifications and contractual diversion requirements,
sufficient space has been identified to accommodate aerated static pile (ASP) composting and a new
construction and demolition (C&D) debris processing area without the need to immediately develop a new
organics area or excavate portions of the existing closed, pre-Subtitle D-lined, landfill to site these facility
elements.

As a result, Plan Concept 2 no longer requires immediate excavation and relocation of waste from closed, pre-
Subtitle D-lined, Modules 1, 2, 10 and 11 to realize the economic and operational benefits presented by that
concept. The cost estimate prepared by Jacobs Engineering Group Inc (Jacobs) is between approximately $80
million and $100 million to excavate and relocate waste from the closed, pre-Subtitle D-lined, modules;
avoiding or delaying this cost while realizing the project benefits serves to lessen the economic burden on the
WPWMA's current and future customers. In contrast, to fully realize the project benefits of Plan Concept 1 -
particularly to maximize future landfill capacity, the excavation and relocation of waste must occur.

As originally conceptualized, it was believed that waste excavation under Plan Concept 2 would need to occur
within the first several years of project implementation whereas waste excavation under Plan Concept 1
could be conducted further in the future. Initial analysis focused on the relative cost of each project over the
first 10 years of implementation when considering which project was more economically sound, and Plan

1-2 FES1026220700SAC
58



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

Concept 1 was identified as economically superior and therefore selected as the Preferred Project. As noted
previously, since an immediate operational need to excavate and relocate waste no longer exists and the full
benefits of Plan Concept 2 can be realized without excavation, the WPWMA determined that Plan Concept 2 is
superior and has been selected as the Project, referenced herein. The following summarizes additional
findings by the WPWMA supporting the selection of Plan Concept 2 as the Project.

111 Landfill Capacity

As noted in Chapter 3 of the Draft EIR, Plan Concept 2 could provide approximately 5 million cubic yards of
additional airspace compared to Plan Concept 1, assuming waste excavation and relocation occurs under both
plan concepts. The estimates provided in the Draft EIR suggest this additional landfill airspace could extend
the life of the Western Regional Sanitary Landfill (WRSL) under Plan Concept 2 by up to 9 years compared to
Plan Concept 1. The estimated landfill closure date identified in the Draft EIR under Plan Concept 1 would be
2101 and under Plan Concept 2 would be 2110.

Subsequent analysis by the WPWMA suggests that if waste excavation and relocation operations do not occur,
Plan Concept 2 could provide approximately 31.6 million cubic yards of additional airspace compared to Plan
Concept 1. This is a result of a net decrease in the overall landfill capacity associated with Plan Concept 1 by
not realizing the additional capacity within the footprint of closed, pre-Subtitle D-lined, modules on the center
property and the ability to fill between the northeastern portion of the Plan Concept 1 landfill expansion and
the closed, pre-Subtitle D-lined, modules on the center property. At an average disposal rate of 500,000 cubic
yards per year, which represents current trends, this subsequent analysis suggests that the operational life of
the WRSL under Plan Concept 2 could be approximately 63 years longer than that of Plan Concept 1.

1.1.2 Avoidance of Biological Disturbances

Siting future landfill on the western property under Plan Concept 2 has the potential to impact fewer wetland
and vernal pool areas compared to siting the landfill on the eastern property under Plan Concept 1. Utilizing
the eastern property for compatible manufacturing could also allow for more opportunities to minimize
impacts to biological resources compared to developing the entire area as a landfill.

1.1.3 Compatibility with Planned and Existing Neighboring Land Uses

Development is anticipated to occur on all properties bordering the WPWMA's, other than the preserve
immediately north of the WPWMA'’s center and eastern properties. The Placer One development project
broke ground on Friday, October 21, 2022, indicating that development along the WPWMA's eastern and
southern boundaries is more imminent than future developments considered to the north and west.

Considering the potential receptor proximity resulting from these anticipated developments to solid waste
operations, particularly landfilling, Plan Concept 2 is expected to provide a greater distance between landfill
operations and sensitive receptors for a longer period of time compared to Plan Concept 1.

1.1.4 Design and Operational Flexibility

Greater developable acreage of the western property (459 acres) versus the eastern property (155 acres),
provides increased opportunity for design and operational flexibility in developing the western property for
landfilling under Plan Concept 2 than the eastern property under Plan Concept 1. This additional flexibility
also provides more options when considering landfill setbacks from property lines, locations of supporting
elements, and locations of operational or physical buffers.

FES1026220700SAC 1-3
59



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

1.1.5 Landfill Design and Construction Challenges

Developing future landfill on the eastern property under Plan Concept 1 would require a tie-in to the existing
liner systems on the center property, extension and modification of module sump risers and pumping
systems along the eastern edge of the center property, and installation of a separation liner system between
Class II and Class III modules. While engineering solutions could be identified to address these challenges,
they would result in increased design and operational costs. Development of a physically separated landfill on
the western property under Plan Concept 2 would avoid these design and operational costs.

For these reasons, Plan Concept 2 as described in the Draft EIR constitutes the Project referenced in this
document.

1.2 Project Description

The Project (Plan Concept 2) includes the following elements: solid waste project elements,
complementary/programmatic elements, and supporting elements. The following paragraphs describe how
these elements are proposed to be located on the project site.

Expanded Landfill Capacity—The expanded landfill area would be located entirely on the western property,
separated from the existing landfill by Fiddyment Road. Within the center property, the landfill’s peak
elevation would not exceed 295 feet above mean sea level, the current permitted elevation, which is 99 feet
greater than the landfill’s existing height of 196 feet (as of aerial mapping dated Jan 2, 2019). The proposed
height of the landfill expansion area on the western property would be 325 feet above mean sea level.

Existing Solid Waste Excavation—The northern closed, pre-Subtitle D-lined, portions of the existing landfill
are proposed to be excavated and relocated to a Subtitle D-compliant lined module. The relocation would
facilitate expansion of processing and recycling operations in the northern portion of the center property.

Expanded and Redesigned Compost Operations—Composting operations and other organics management
would be located in the northern portion of the center property. The composting operations would be sized
to accommodate anticipated material growth rates. The relocation of waste from the northern portion of the
existing landfill would provide the additional space needed to accommodate these operations.

Expanded and Redesigned Construction and Demolition Waste Operations—Expanded C&D would be
located within the northern portion of the center property near the redesigned composting and public waste
drop-off areas.

Expanded and Redesigned Public Waste Drop-Off Area Operations—The expanded public waste drop-off
area would be located within the northern portion of the center property near the redesigned composting
and C&D areas. These operations would be designed to ensure separation from the other waste management
operations to ensure the safety and convenience of public customers.

Complementary/Programmatic Elements—The complementary/programmatic elements include
compatible manufacturing, pilot study areas, university research areas, and a landfill gas to renewable fuels
area. For the compatible manufacturing uses, areas have been designated in the southern portions of the
western property and on the entire eastern property. The same area in the southern portion of the western
property would also be designated for university research uses. Areas for pilot studies and a landfill gas to
renewable fuels facility are designated in the northeastern portion of the center property. Although space has
been initially reserved for these elements primarily within the southern portions of the western property and
on the eastern property, opportunities may arise that would support locating some of these
complementary/programmatic elements in closer proximity to the solid waste project elements or within
areas not yet developed with solid waste project elements. Therefore, this plan concept assumes these
complementary/programmatic elements could be located throughout the project site.

1-4 FES1026220700SAC
60



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

Supporting Elements—The supporting elements for the Project are primarily located in the northern
portion of the center property where the majority of supporting activities currently occur. These elements
include recovered materials storage areas, administration buildings, facility parking, and existing Materials
Recovery Facility (MRF), Household Hazardous Waste Facility (HHWF) and landfill gas-to-energy (LFGTE)
plant. Within this area, the existing waste delivery entrance on Athens Avenue is proposed to be realigned to
better accommodate customers. In addition, a new site entrance is proposed to be installed near the
southwest corner of Athens Avenue and Fiddyment Road to provide vehicle access to the western property. A
new road crossing near the south end of the MRF would consist of a tunnel, bridge, or conveyor system to
connect the waste operations on the center property to those proposed on the western property. Stormwater
ponds are proposed to be located in two locations to capture stormwater runoff from site operations,
including at the northern end of the western property and at the southwestern end of the center property. A
maintenance area is proposed to be located in the northern portion of the western property to support
landfill-related operations.

1.3 Project Objectives

Placer County, the majority of which is included in the WPWMA's service area, was the second-fastest
growing county in California in 2018, according to the California Department of Finance, State Population
Projections (May 2020). Based on land use projections included in the general plans of the Participating
Agencies, the population served by the WPWMA is expected to nearly double over the next 30 years. In
addition to projected population increases, the Participating Agencies are seeking ways to respond to
simultaneous restrictions in global recycling markets and increasingly stringent state-mandated limitations
on materials that can be disposed in California’s landfills.

In anticipation of this projected growth, the WPWMA initiated a master planning effort in 2015 identified as
the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan. The purpose of the Waste Action Plan is to identify the physical and
operational changes needed at the WPWMA facility to support future Waste Recovery and Waste Disposal
needs for the rapidly growing communities it serves while complying with an increasingly complex
regulatory environment and fluctuating global recyclables markets. The Waste Action Plan was also
developed to maintain a stable cost structure for the Participating Agencies, improve operational efficiencies
and customer safety, and continue to enhance compatibility between ongoing operations and current and
future adjacent land uses.

The WPWMA developed the Waste Action Plan to articulate a long-term vision for optimizing the ongoing
Waste Recovery and Waste Disposal services provided to the Participating Agencies. The objectives of the
Waste Action Plan that would help achieve this vision are described as follows:

* Maintain a stable and relatively predictable cost structure through continued local-government control of
solid waste management operations, improve operational efficiencies, and extend the operational life of
the current WPWMA facility.

= Expand the site’s capacity to divert materials from landfill disposal and contribute to greenhouse gas
emission reductions through expanded organics management, improved recovery of C&D materials,
recycling, and public buy-back activities.

* Increase the WRSL'’s permitted footprint and height to optimize the efficient use of land for Waste
Disposal and so that sufficient Waste Disposal capacity is available to accommodate anticipated long-
term growth in the Participating Agencies’ waste streams.

= Enhance customer safety by improving site access and internal circulation, which would minimize
potential conflicts between commercial vehicles and public users.

*  Provide the WPWMA with operational flexibility to accommodate an increasingly complex and evolving
regulatory environment and verify that operations associated with Waste Action Plan implementation
are conducted in the most environmentally responsible manner possible.

FES1026220700SAC 1-5
61



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

= Facilitate the siting and development of compatible technologies that would benefit from proximity to the
WPWMA.

- Compatible technologies could include both proven and innovative recycling strategies intended to
capitalize on an evolving local recyclable materials market and potentially reduce dependence on
foreign markets.

- Developing compatible technologies could promote state-mandated waste diversion goals, offset
costs associated with ongoing solid waste operations, and generate innovative and creative economic
opportunities within the County consistent with the Sunset Area Plan (SAP) objectives (Placer
County 2019).

=  Continue to improve compatibility between current and future WPWMA operations and existing and
proposed adjacent land uses based on the surrounding area’s anticipated transition to a more urban
environment.

*= Encourage implementation of the Placer County Conservation Program and the integration of
environmentally conscious practices into the facility operations.

= Develop WPWMA properties consistent with the goals, policies, and implementation programs identified
in the SAP (Placer County 2019).

= Position the WPWMA facility as a hub of innovation that promotes the development of a circular
economy' in Placer County.

1.4 Background

The WPWMA issued a Notice of Preparation (NOP) on March 15, 2019 with a review period from March 15,
2019 to April 15, 2019, and a scoping meeting was held on April 1, 2019. The WPWMA circulated the Draft
EIR for public review and comment from October 29, 2021 to January 12, 2022, and held two public meetings
on December 7, 2021 (morning and evening sessions).

The Draft EIR for the Project was prepared in accordance with CEQA and the State CEQA Guidelines. The
WPWMA has analyzed, reviewed and edited the Draft EIR circulated for public review and subsequently
circulated the responses to comments received on the Draft EIR on October 26, 2022. The Draft EIR and the
Final EIR reflect the Board’s independent judgment.

' A circular economy aims to redefine growth, focusing on positive societywide benefits. It entails gradually decoupling economic activity from the
consumption of finite resources, and designing waste out of the system. Underpinned by a transition to renewable energy sources, the circular
model builds economic, natural, and social capital. It is based on three principles: design out waste and pollution, keep products and materials
in use, regenerate natural systems. (https://www.ellenmacarthurfoundation.org/circular-economy/concept)

1-6 FES1026220700SAC
62



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

2. Potential Environmental Impacts Determined to be Less
Than Significant During the Scoping Process

Upon completion of the scoping process, the WPWMA determined that the Project would have no significant
impact on agricultural resources, mineral resources, population and housing, and recreation and that no
further analysis was needed. Impacts on agricultural resources and recreation associated with project
implementation were found not to be significant. Although the project site currently includes areas of grazing
land on the eastern property and parts of the western property, the project site does not include any
designated prime farmland, unique farmland, or farmland of statewide importance. Additionally, the land use
and zoning designations established by Placer County for these lands supports solid waste and industrial
uses. No lands within the project site are designated for agricultural uses, and the Project would not conflict
with existing zoning for agriculture use or with a Williamson Act contract. The Project does not include uses
that would disturb or disrupt existing recreational uses and would not be expected to substantially increase
the demand on existing recreational resources. Although the Project would increase employment within the
region, this increase in employment would not be expected to result in the substantial physical deterioration
of recreational facilities. The project site does not contain any known mineral resource and there are no
known mines on or near the project site. Therefore, no further analysis of these topics was included in the
Draft EIR.

The Project would provide for ongoing waste disposal and recovery operations and could increase local
employment to accommodate these operations. However, workers would be expected to come from the
existing workforce within the surrounding communities. The implementation of the complementary and
programmatic elements would further expand the demand for workers. Depending upon how quickly the
complementary and programmatic elements are developed, the increased demand for workers could increase
the demands on the local housing supply. However, the Project is consistent with the land use and zoning
designation in the SAP, and by extension, the employment, public facility development, and housing
assumptions evaluated in the SAP EIR. Implementation of the Project would be expected to generate
employment opportunities for current and future residents consistent with the SAP’s goals and policies.
Therefore, the Project would not be expected to induce substantial unplanned population growth or housing
demand in the County and would not be expected to be growth inducing.

FES1026220700SAC 2-1
63



PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

64



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

3. Potential Environmental Impacts that are Not Significant
(No Mitigation Required)

The Final EIR evaluated impacts in thirteen major environmental categories and concluded that certain
impacts in each of the following issue areas would be less than significant without imposition of mitigation.

3.1 Aesthetics—Light or Glare

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 5 for an analysis of impacts to aesthetics, including potential impacts from
light or glare (Impact 5-2).

3.1.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding

The Project will reconfigure the existing WPWMA facility layout, including the construction of several new
facilities, and as such, will result in new sources of light and glare during project construction and operation.
All temporary construction lighting and permanent facility lighting will be consistent with related local
regulations, which are generally intended to control and reduce impacts associated with light and glare on
neighboring properties.

Impacts of new light and glare sources associated with construction are limited by their nature because they
are temporary. Construction of new facilities associated with the Project will occur in phases over a period of
years, after which these sources of light and glare will be removed. To the extent feasible, project construction
will be limited to daytime hours, further reducing the impacts of temporary lighting, which will be less than
significant.

With the construction of several new facilities, there will be a net increase in the amount of permanent
lighting required. However, the WPWMA facility is in close proximity to several cities, each a considerable
source of existing light. New facility lighting will not be out of scale with surrounding development and will
represent an incremental increase in the total amount of lighting used in the vicinity. Impacts to day and
nighttime views from light or glare would be less than significant.

3.1.2 Finding

For the foregoing reasons, the Project will have a less-than-significant impact on aesthetics resulting from
light or glare.

3.2 Aesthetics—Cumulative (Glare)
Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 19 for an analysis of cumulative impacts on aesthetics.

3.2.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding

The Draft EIR tiers off the analysis included in the SAP EIR for the cumulative impacts analysis. The Project
will not create new cumulatively considerable aesthetic resource impacts that were not considered in the SAP
EIR. The development of the SAP and other cumulative projects were estimated to create less-than-significant
cumulative glare impacts, and no additional discussion of cumulative impacts beyond what was included in
the SAP EIR is warranted. Cumulative impacts from new light sources are discussed in Section 5.

FES1026220700SAC 3-1
65



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

3.2.2 Finding

For the foregoing reasons, the Project will have a less-than-significant cumulative impact on aesthetics from
glare.

3.3 Air Quality—Mobile-Source Concentrations of Carbon Monoxide

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 6 for an analysis of impacts to air quality, including impacts from mobile-
source concentrations of carbon monoxide (CO) (Impact 6-4).

3.3.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding

Local mobile-source CO emissions near roadway intersections are a direct function of traffic volume, speed,
and delay. Transport of CO from offsite locations is extremely limited because, under normal meteorological
conditions, it disperses rapidly with distance from the source. However, under certain meteorological
conditions, CO concentrations near roadways and intersections may reach unhealthy levels at nearby
sensitive land uses, such as residential units, hospitals, schools, and childcare facilities. As a result, it was
recommended that CO be analyzed at the local level instead of at the regional level (Placer County 2018).

Placer County Air Pollution Control District’s (PCAPCD) screening criterion for CO dispersion modeling
indicate that projects emitting less than 550 pounds per day (Ib/day) of CO from vehicle operation are not
anticipated to exceed the National Ambient Air Quality Standards (NAAQS) and California Ambient Air Quality
Standards (CAAQS) for CO (PCAPCD 2017a). Although the maximum daily CO emissions from vehicle trips on
offsite roads associated with construction and operation of the Project are not anticipated to occur
contemporaneously, they were conservatively summed for comparison to the PCAPCD screening criterion.
Refer to the Draft EIR Table 6-13, which shows that the estimated offsite mobile-source emissions of CO for
the Project will not exceed PCAPCD’s screening criterion; as summed, they are far less than the threshold of
significance. Therefore, CO dispersion modeling is not recommended, and the Project is not anticipated to
cause a localized CO impact. This impact would be less than significant.

MRF Operations Design Concept Evaluation

Proposed changes to MRF operations could be implemented under the Project and would potentially result in
changes in quantities, timing, and release locations of estimated air emissions associated with project-related
construction and operations. The proposed changes would involve accelerated and expanded diversion of
organic material, including the organic fraction of municipal solid waste (OFMSW), for composting in covered
aerated static pile (CASP) composting systems and increased recovery and diversion of recyclables.

This accelerated diversion rate may result in a nominal increase in traffic in the near term as materials
diverted from the waste stream are recovered and taken offsite. However, this increase in near-term traffic
would be less than the net increase in vehicle trips associated with full buildout of the Waste Action Plan and
evaluated as part of the Project. Based on this qualitative review, the proposed MRF operations design
concept changes would be covered under the current assumptions of this air quality impact analysis, and the
conclusions of the project-level analysis related to mobile-source concentrations of CO would not change.

3.3.2 Finding

For the foregoing reasons, the Project will have a less-than-significant impact on air quality resulting from
mobile-source concentrations of carbon monoxide.

3-2 FES1026220700SAC
66



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

3.4 Air Quality—Exposure of Sensitive Receptors to Toxic Air Contaminants

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 6 for an analysis of impacts to air quality, including impacts from exposure
of sensitive receptors to toxic air contaminants (TAC) (Impact 6-5).

3.4.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding

Construction and operation of the Project will result in TAC emissions from the MRF, landfill, composting
facility, landfill gas (LFG)-to-energy facility and flares, and fuel combustion in on- and off-road vehicles and
equipment. A health risk assessment (HRA) was conducted to evaluate potential human health risks
associated with exposure to pollutant concentrations resulting from net increases of project-related TAC
emissions for the Project. The HRA was developed using air dispersion modeling of the project-related
emissions and characterization of the resultant exposures and health risks using approved risk assessment
methodology from the California Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment (OEHHA) (OEHHA
2015), California Air Resources Board (CARB) risk management guidance (CARB 2015), and CEQA guidelines
(PCAPCD 2017a).

By plotting the risk results on the receptor grid for the Project, cancer, chronic, and acute health risks were
estimated for the locations of the hypothetical maximally exposed individual at a residential location (MEIR),
the maximally exposed individual at a workplace location (MEIW), and at sensitive receptors within 10
kilometers of the project site. Health risk results at the modeled point of maximum impacts (PMI) were also
estimated. Risk results predicted at the MEIR, MEIW, and sensitive receptor locations for the Project are
presented in Chapter 6 of the Draft EIR. Results have been compared to the PCAPCD’s recommended
thresholds of significance summarized as follows (PCAPCD 2017a):

= Incremental increase in cancer risk of 10 in 1 million individuals
= HICof1.0
= HIAof1.0

Using the OEHHA guidance, the incremental increase in lifetime cancer risk associated with exposure to
construction and operation emissions from implementation of the Project at the location of the MEIR (also
the existing sensitive receptor, located approximately 2 kilometers from the facility’s southeastern boundary)
is predicted to be 4.7 in 1 million. The maximum incremental increase in cancer risk predicted for worker
exposures at the location of the MEIW (located near the intersection of Athens Avenue and Foothills Blvd) is
predicted to be 6.8 in 1 million. For specific assumptions, modeling inputs, figures, and risk results, refer to
Appendix C.5 of the Draft EIR.

The HIC and HIA values estimated for the locations of maximum impact for noncancer chronic and acute
exposures are all less than the PCAPCD threshold of 1.0.

No cancer, chronic, or acute thresholds have been exceeded, indicating health risk impacts for TAC emissions
associated with the Project will be less than significant.

MRF Operations Design Concept Evaluation

Proposed changes to MRF operations could be implemented under the Project and would potentially result in
changes in quantities, timing, and release locations of estimated project-related air emissions from
construction and operations. The proposed changes would involve accelerated and expanded diversion of
organic material, including OFMSW, for composting in CASP composting systems and increased recovery and
diversion of recyclables. Changes may also involve addition of an enclosed building for organics receipt and
processing. This accelerated diversion rate may result in a nominal increase in traffic in the near term as
materials diverted from the waste stream are recovered and taken offsite. Diversion of more OFMSW from

FES1026220700SAC 3-3
67



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

the landfill within a faster timeframe would correspond to a near-term (next 10 years) reduction in LFG
production, and reduced emissions of fugitive LFG and the associated TACs.

The PCAPCD has issued permits to the WPWMA related to ASP composting; however, these permits would
likely require updates as the Project proceeds. The enclosed building for organics processing, if constructed,
would be equipped with an odor control system that may require permitting by the PCAPCD as a stationary
source. As the permitting process is undertaken, the WPWMA facility would continue to comply with
applicable regulatory and permitting requirements. Under PCAPCD Rule 513 (“Toxics New Source Review”),
all stationary sources that have the potential to emit TACs are required to obtain permits from PCAPCD.
PCAPCD may grant permits to these operations if they are constructed and operated in accordance with
applicable regulations, including new source review standards and air toxics control measures.

A project-level HRA was conducted to assess the potential for project-related TAC emissions to expose
receptors to substantial health risks. The analysis found less-than-significant impacts for the Project without
the MRF operations design changes. To evaluate the MRF operations design changes, TAC emissions for
stationary sources that would change to meet the accelerated and expanded demand for OFMSW processing
and CASP composting may need to be evaluated at the time of air permitting. If the facility changes would
emit TACs in excess of PCAPCD’s standard of significance for TACs, the sources would have to implement Best
Available Control Technology (BACT) to reduce the TAC emissions.

3.4.2 Finding

For the foregoing reasons, the Project will have a less-than-significant impact on air quality resulting from
exposure of sensitive receptors to TACs.

3.5 Air Quality—Cumulative

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 19 for an analysis of cumulative impacts on air quality.

3.5.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding

The Project will not create new cumulatively considerable CO impacts that were not considered in the SAP
EIR. Therefore, cumulative air quality impacts for mobile-source concentrations of CO have been adequately
addressed in the SAP EIR, and no additional discussion of cumulative impacts beyond what was included in
the SAP EIR is warranted.

3.5.2 Finding

For the foregoing reasons, the cumulative generation of mobile-source CO emission concentrations are less
than significant.

3.6 Biological Resources—Interference with Wildlife Movement Corridors

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 7 for an analysis of impacts to biological resources, including from
interference with wildlife movement corridors (Impact 7-6).

3.6.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding

Wildlife movement corridors are features that provide connections between two or more areas of habitat that
will otherwise be isolated. Often drainages, creeks, or riparian areas are used by wildlife as movement
corridors, as these features can provide cover and access across a landscape. Movement corridors can include
dispersal corridors between populations that allow genetic exchange within a metapopulation; corridors

3-4 FES1026220700SAC
68



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

used for daily movements between areas that provide different habitat functions (for example, between areas
that provide thermal cover and hiding cover and areas used for foraging and obtaining water); and migratory
routes used for seasonal migrations between summer and winter ranges. There are no established migratory
routes and no riparian corridors through the proposed project area that are vital for the movement of any
resident or migratory fish or wildlife species or population. Implementation of the Project will not
substantially interfere with the seasonal migration of any species. Therefore, this impact will be less than
significant.

3.6.2 Finding

For the foregoing reasons, the Project will have a less-than-significant impact on biological resources
resulting from interference with wildlife movement corridors.

3.7 Biological Resources—Conflicts with an Adopted HCP, NCCP, or Other
Approved Local, Regional, or State Habitat Conservation Plan

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 7 for an analysis of impacts to biological resources, including conflicts with
an adopted Habitat Conservation Plan (HCP), Natural Community Conservation Plan (NCCP), or other
approved local, regional, or state habitat conservation plan (Impact 7-8).

3.7.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding

The project site is within the boundaries of the approved Placer County Conservation Program (PCCP) HCP
and NCCP, and the WPWMA proposes to implement the Project as a Covered Activity, consistent with the
PCCP. There are no other adopted HCP, NCCP, or other approved local, regional, or state habitat conservation
plans. Therefore, there will be no impact.

3.7.2 Finding

For the foregoing reasons, the Project will have a less-than-significant impact on biological resources
resulting from conflicts with an adopted HCP, NCCP, or other approved local, regional, or state habitat
conservation plan.

3.8 Biological Resources—Cumulative
Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 19 for an analysis of cumulative impacts on biological resources.
3.8.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding

Less-than-significant cumulative biological resource impacts identified in the SAP EIR included loss of
special-status plant and fish species, loss of elderberry longhorn beetle, loss or degradation of riparian
habitat, interference with wildlife movement, loss of wildlife nursery sites, conflicts with local policies
protecting biological resources, and conflicts with an adopted Habitat Conservation Plan. The Project will not
create new cumulatively considerable biological resource impacts that were not considered in the SAP EIR.
The SAP EIR assumed the same disturbance to site-specific biological resources as assumed in this EIR.
Therefore, cumulative biological resource impacts have been adequately addressed in the SAP EIR, and no
additional discussion of cumulative impacts beyond what was included in the SAP EIR is warranted.

3.8.2 Finding

For the foregoing reasons, the Project will have less-than-significant cumulative biological resource impacts.

FES1026220700SAC 3-5
69



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

3.9 Cultural Resources—Disturbance of Historic Resources

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 8 for an analysis of impacts to cultural and tribal cultural resources,
including from disturbance of historic resources (Impact 8-1).

3.9.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding

The records search and pedestrian survey revealed two historical resources in the Area of Potential Effects
(APE): a segment of Fiddyment Road (P-31-001422) and a segment of the Pacific Gas & Electric Company
(PG&E) Rio Oso-Hurley/Rio Oso-Tesla Transmission Line (P-31-005857). These sites do not appear to meet
the criteria for the National Register of Historic Places (NRHP) or the California Register of Historical
Resources (CRHR) and are therefore not considered to be significant for the purposes of CEQA. In addition,
the pedestrian survey did not reveal any additional historical sites. Therefore, the APE does not contain any
historical resources that will be considered significant for the purposes of CEQA. The Project will have no
impact to historical resources.

3.9.2 Finding

For the foregoing reasons, the Project will have a less-than-significant impact on cultural and tribal cultural
resources resulting from disturbance of historic resources.

3.10 Cultural and Tribal Resources—Cumulative
Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 19 for an analysis of cumulative impacts on cultural and tribal resources.
3.10.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding

The SAP EIR concluded that because no specific Tribal Cultural Resources (TCRs) have been identified within
the SAP area, and mitigation measures were identified in the EIR that will minimize impacts to any
discovered TCRs, the development of the SAP and other cumulative projects will result in less-than-significant
impacts on TCRs. The SAP EIR further concluded that with implementation of SAP Policies CR-1.1, 1.5, 1.6,
and 1.7, and Mitigation Measure 4.5-1b, as well as compliance with Health and Safety Code Sections 7050.5
and 7052, and PRC Section 5097, adverse effects on known archaeological resources, potentially newly
discovered archaeological resources, and human remains will be less than significant.

The Project will not create new cumulatively considerable cultural resource impacts that were not considered
in the SAP EIR. No significant cultural, archaeological, or historical resources or TCRs were identified on the
project site during cultural resource surveys. Therefore, cumulative cultural resource impacts have been
adequately addressed in the SAP EIR, and no additional discussion of cumulative impacts beyond what was
included in the SAP EIR is warranted.

3.10.2 Finding

For the foregoing reasons, the Project will have less-than-significant cumulative cultural and tribal cultural
resource impacts.

3.11 Geology, Soils, and Paleontological Resources—Seismic Activity

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 9 for an analysis of impacts to geology, soils, and paleontological resources,
including impacts from seismic activity (Impact 9-1).

3-6 FES1026220700SAC
70



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

3.11.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
Sitewide

The Project is not located within an Alquist-Priolo earthquake fault zone (California Geological Survey [CGS]
2018), and there are no known active faults located within the project site (Idriss 2001, as referenced in
Golder 2017a). The nearest active faults are the Spenceville fault and Mysterious Ridge segment, which are
located 13 miles east and 27 miles west, respectively. These two faults represent the primary sources of
potential seismic shaking at the site. A major seismic event on either of these faults is not expected to result in
significant ground motion (less than 0.15 g, corresponding to strong perceived shaking and light potential
damage) (Idriss 2001, as referenced in Golder 2017a). Furthermore, the western and central parts of Placer
County generally experience low seismicity (Placer County 1994). The Project will be required to be designed
and constructed in accordance with the current California Building Standards Code (CBC), which contains
specifications to minimize adverse effects on structures caused by ground shaking from earthquakes and to
minimize secondary seismic hazards (such as ground lurching and liquefaction).

The Project is not expected to experience a ground rupture or strong seismic ground shaking because of a
known earthquake fault. Because the solid waste management project facilities, including complementary
and programmatic elements, will be designed in conformance with CBC building requirements, if the site did
experience a large seismic event, impacts will result in minimal adverse impacts. Thus, implementation of the
proposed project will not directly or indirectly expose people or structures to substantial adverse effects
related to seismic hazards, including the risk of loss, injury, or death involving these events. This impact will
be less than significant.

The sandy clay and silty sand deposits at the project site are generally classified as nonliquefiable, based on
site-specific geotechnical laboratory testing. The site-specific geotechnical testing also indicated liquefaction
potential of sand deposits at the project site is negligible (Golder 2017a). No areas indicating liquefaction
potential have been delineated at the project site (Figure 9-4, of the Draft EIR). Therefore, the project site is
not expected to experience liquefaction, and the proposed project will not directly or indirectly expose people
or structures to potential substantial adverse effects, including the risk of loss, injury, or death involving a
liquefaction event. Therefore, this impact will be less than significant.

Landfill Expansion

Because of the project site’s relatively flat terrain, landslides are not a concern for most of the solid waste
elements and for all of the complementary and programmatic elements. However, the operation of a landfill
includes the establishment of artificial slopes that can become unstable if not properly designed. This
instability can occur along cut slopes, interim refuse fill slopes, soil stockpile slopes, and final cover slopes.

During the design of individual landfill modules, the interim refuse fill slopes are evaluated for stability. This
includes the submittal of an engineering design report to the regulatory agencies for review and approval.
The engineering design report presents a maximum interim refuse fill plan with supporting slope stability
calculations that consider static and dynamic loading conditions. A similar slope stability analysis is
conducted for proposed soil stockpiles to prevent the slopes of the stockpiles from failing.

Implementation of the Project will include the construction of a new Class II or III landfill on the western
property that will create artificial slopes similar to those evaluated at the WRSL. The Project will be required
to conform to design requirements in Title 27, Section 20250, for Class II landfills or Title 27, Section 20370,
Seismic Design for Class III landfills, which requires that Class II landfills be designed to withstand the
maximum probable earthquake (MPE) without damage to the foundation or to the structures that control
leachate, surface drainage, erosion, or landfill gas. In addition, Title 27 requires the preparation of a stability
analysis prior to landfill module construction activities. This stability analysis will include the preparation of
an engineering design report that will evaluate slope stability and identify appropriate slope angles for the

FES1026220700SAC 3-7
71



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

cut slopes, interim refuse fill slopes, soil stockpile slopes, and final cover slopes. Because the slopes associated
with the new landfill will be required by Title 27 to be designed to be stable, the new landfill will not be
expected directly or indirectly to cause potential substantial adverse effects, including the risk of loss, injury,
or death involving seismic activity. This impact will be less than significant.

3.11.2 Finding

For the foregoing reasons, the Project will have a less-than-significant impact on geology, soils, and
paleontological resources resulting from with seismic activity.

3.12 Geology, Soils, and Paleontological Resources—Soil Loss or Erosion

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 9 for an analysis of impacts to geology, soils, and paleontological resources,
including impacts from the potential for soil loss or erosion (Impact 9-2).

3.12.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
Landfill Expansion

The existing Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) identifies best management practices (BMPs) that
are required to be implemented at the WRSL (MBI 2015). Most areas of the project site are relatively flat with
natural slopes ranging up to 9 percent with limited erosion potential. However constructed slopes associated
with the engineered landfill part of the site are significantly greater, ranging up to 35 percent for the final
cover, as indicated by the topographic map on Figure 9-1 of the Draft EIR. As described by Golder (2017a),
erosion and soil loss at the landfill are controlled through a system of engineered controls and practices.
These practices will be required to be implemented at the Project’s expanded landfill.

The erosion potential associated with existing landfill operations was also considered when developing the
site’s storm water management system and BMPs described in the SWPPP. The components of the SWPPP are
described in further detail in Chapter 12, Hydrology and Water Quality, of the Draft EIR. The SWPPP will be
required to be updated to include specific measures and stormwater system designs applicable to the
expanded landfill on the western property associated with the Project. Because erosion associated with the
landfill expansion element will be temporary and controlled through the use of BMPs, impacts will be less
than significant.

In-Place Waste Excavation

The Project includes the excavation of existing buried waste previously placed in non-Subtitle D lined
Modules 1, 2, 10, and 11 and relocating the waste to an onsite Subtitle D-compliant module. The erosion of
soil and exposed, previously buried waste during excavation and relocation activities will be controlled under
separate, project-specific SWPPPs (or modification to an existing SWPPP) that will include BMPs to control
soil and exposed waste erosion. Implementation of the BMPs will be expected to protect workers, the public,
and local surface water drainages from exposure to contaminants. Construction will be temporary, and the
potential for offsite soil erosion will be controlled by using the identified BMPs. Therefore, soil erosion
associated with the excavation and reburial of existing waste will be considered a less-than-significant
impact.

Complementary and Programmatic Elements

In addition to solid waste elements, complementary and programmatic elements may be developed on
WPWMA properties. Construction activities associated with the project-level complementary elements
include excavating for utilities and building foundations and grading for internal roadways and parking lots.
These construction activities have the potential to cause soil erosion or result in loss of topsoil. The proposed

3-8 FES1026220700SAC
72



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

complementary elements included in this Project will require a project-specific SWPPP that will include BMPs
to control soil erosion. Construction activities associated with the buildout of project-level complementary
elements will be temporary, and the potential for offsite soil erosion will be controlled by using the
previously described BMPs. Therefore, construction of the project-level complementary elements will have a
less-than-significant impact on soil erosion.

Buildout of the programmatic elements involve the same construction activities identified for the project
level. Construction of the additional programmatic elements (1.6 million square feet) will also require
separate, project-specific SWPPPs for each project. Therefore, construction of the program level of
complementary and programmatic elements will have a less-than-significant impact on soil erosion.

3.12.2 Finding

For the foregoing reasons, the Project will have a less-than-significant impact on geology, soils, and
paleontological resources resulting from the potential for soil loss or erosion.

3.13 Geology, Soils, and Paleontological Resources—Unstable Soils

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 9 for an analysis of impacts to geology, soils, and paleontological resources,
including those from unstable soils (Impact 9-3).

3.13.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
Sitewide

The project site is not located on a geologic unit or soil that is unstable. The project elements will not be
exposed to hazards such as onsite or offsite landslides, surface ruptures, ground failures, liquefaction, or
collapse that will contribute to unstable conditions. Factors affecting soil stability include soil saturation and
slope. Given the depth to groundwater of approximately 90 feet below ground surface at the site, soil
saturation from rising groundwater is not expected to adversely affect soil stability. Given the relatively flat
slopes of the native surface soils and the requirement that the project elements be constructed consistent
with the CBC and any applicable building permit requirements, the solid waste and complementary and
programmatic elements, excluding the landfill discussed in the following section, will not be expected to be
affected by unstable soils.

Landfill Expansion

Implementation of the Project will include the construction of a new landfill on the western property that will
create artificial slopes similar to those evaluated at the WRSL. Title 27 requires the preparation of a stability
analysis prior to landfill module construction activities. This stability analysis will include the preparation of
an engineering design report for the new western landfill that will evaluate slope stability and identify
appropriate slope angles for the cut slopes, interim refuse fill slopes, soil stockpile slopes, and final cover
slopes. Because the slopes associated with the new landfill will be required by Title 27 to be designed to be
stable, the new landfill is not expected to result in unstable soil conditions, and this impact will be less than
significant.

3.13.2 Finding

For the foregoing reasons, the Project will have a less-than-significant impact on geology and soils resulting
from unstable soils.

FES1026220700SAC 3-9
73



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

3.14 Geology, Soils, and Paleontological Resources—Cumulative

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 19 for an analysis of cumulative impacts on geology, soils, and
paleontological resources.

3.14.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding

Project impacts related to geology, soils, seismicity, and groundwater are site-specific and will not generally
combine with related impacts of other projects to create cumulatively considerable impacts. The SAP EIR
acknowledged that the cumulative development area is characterized by limited topographic relief and
variation. All projects within the SAP larger than 1 acre, including the Project, will be required to comply with
the National Pollution Discharge Elimination System Construction General Permit. Additionally, projects will
be required to comply with standard engineering practices and applicable regulations regarding building
within areas containing expansive soils. The SAP EIR concluded that cumulative development will not change
the availability of mineral resources or contribute to a regional cumulative loss of paleontological resources.
The SAP EIR concluded that development of the SAP and other cumulative projects will result in less-than-
significant cumulative impacts on geology, soils, and paleontological resources.

The Project will not create new cumulatively considerable geology, soils, and paleontological resource
impacts that were not considered in the SAP EIR. The Project does not include any soil-disturbing activities
that were not considered in the SAP EIR for the project site. Therefore, cumulative geology, soils, and
paleontological resource impacts have been adequately addressed in the SAP EIR, and no additional
discussion of cumulative impacts beyond what was included in the SAP EIR is warranted.

3.14.2 Finding

For the foregoing reasons, the Project will have less-than-significant cumulative impacts on geology, soils, and
paleontological resources.

3.15 Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Climate Change —Consistency with
Applicable Plans, Policies, or Regulations Adopted to Reduce Greenhouse
Gas Emissions

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 10 for an analysis of impacts to greenhouse gas emissions and climate
change, including impacts from consistency with applicable plans, policies, or regulations adopted to reduce
greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions (Impact 10-2).

3.15.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding

Federal and state laws and regulations have resulted in plans and policies to reduce GHG emissions from the
waste management sector. The Project will integrate and support the goals and directives of federal and state
plans and policies, including the following:

»  Increasing diversion of organics and other recyclable commodities from landfills
» Increasing use of alternative technologies, such as ASP composting
= Reducing volumes of waste landfilled

=  Expanding the current waste management infrastructure to accommodate the increases in recycling and
remanufacturing of waste materials to meet goals, including co-location of new waste treatment facilities
at existing waste sites to minimize permitting issues and environmental impacts

3-10 FES1026220700SAC
74



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

= Implementing BMPs at landfills, including specific requirements for LFG collection system design and
construction, landfill unit and cell design and construction, waste placement methods, daily and
intermediate cover materials and practices, use of compost or other biologically active materials in cover
soils, and organic materials management

Accordingly, the following discussion regarding project consistency with local goals and policies from the
Placer County Sustainability Plan and the Placer County General Plan is provided for informational purposes
only.

Construction and operation of the Project will be consistent with the Placer County General Plan, which was
originally adopted in 1994 and last updated in 2013. The General Plan includes several policies related to
addressing GHG emissions and climate change in Placer County, including implementation of building and
operational energy efficiency programs, traffic demand management, and water-efficient landscaping (Placer
County 2013). Project proponents are encouraged to consult with the County early in the planning process
regarding Countywide indirect and areawide source programs and transportation control measure programs.
The Project includes measures to reduce GHG emissions and promote energy efficiency and is therefore
consistent with this General Plan policy.

The Placer County Sustainability Plan, adopted in January 2020, includes voluntary goals that include
working with WPWMA to find funding, provide public education, support compliance with state laws and
regulations, and evaluate feasible approaches to meet aspirational goals for methane capture and transition
to vehicles and haul trucks that will use low-carbon fuels and electricity. The Placer County Sustainability
Plan forecasts Countywide GHG emissions from solid waste at 190,910 metric tons (MT) carbon dioxide
equivalent (COze) per year (Placer County 2020a). Estimates of project-related GHG missions for the Project
are higher than the Countywide solid waste GHG estimates in the sustainability plan, but it is not accurate to
compare the two GHG emission inventories, because of differences in assumptions and calculation methods.
Therefore, the Project will result in less-than-significant impacts.

Material Recovery Facility Operations Design Concept Evaluation

Proposed changes to MRF operations could be implemented and would potentially result in changes in
quantities, timing, and release locations of estimated project-related GHG emissions from construction and
operations. The proposed changes would involve facility improvements to accommodate accelerated and
expanded diversion of organic material, including OFMSW, for composting in CASP composting systems and
increased recovery and diversion of recyclables. Changes may also involve the addition of an enclosed
building for organics receipt and processing.

Based on this qualitative review, the proposed MRF operations design concept changes would be covered
under the current assumptions of the analysis of project consistency with applicable plans, policies, and
regulations for GHG reductions, and the conclusions of the project-level analysis related to GHG emissions
would not change.

3.15.2  Finding
For the foregoing reasons, the Project will have a less-than-significant impact on greenhouse gas emissions

and climate change resulting from consistency with applicable plans, policies, or regulations adopted to
reduce GHG emissions.

3.16 Hazards, Hazardous Materials, and Wildfire—Potential for Solid Waste
Operating Activities to Release Hazardous Materials into the Environment

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 11 for an analysis of impacts to hazards, hazardous materials, and wildfire,

FES1026220700SAC 3-11
75



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

including impacts from the potential for solid waste operating activities to release hazardous materials into
the environment (Impact 11-2).

3.16.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding

The Project will continue to operate in conformance with the facility’s permit conditions and will implement
additional practices to minimize the potential for hazardous wastes to commingle with solid waste loads
through the placement of signage and through a load-checking program. Project personnel will continue to
implement visual inspections at the scale house for obvious items that may be hazardous and that are not
accepted at the site or should be directed to the household hazardous waste (HHW) facility. The Project will
continue to implement the load-checking program at the MRF and WRSL. Self-haul vehicles going to the MRF,
public waste drop-off area, organics management area, or construction and demolition (C&D) processing area
will be screened at one of the scale house areas. The load-checking program is intended to identify and
remove hazardous and otherwise prohibited wastes from the waste stream prior to disposal. Because the
Project will continue to operate in compliance with solid waste permitting requirements, Title 22 State
regulations, and will also continue to implement practices such as the load-checking program, impacts from
the proposed project are less than significant.

3.16.2 Finding

For the foregoing reasons, the Project will have a less-than-significant impact on hazards, hazardous
materials, and wildfire resulting from the potential for solid waste operating activities to release hazardous
materials into the environment.

3.17 Hazards, Hazardous Materials, and Wildfire—Risk of Wildfire

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 11 for an analysis of impacts to hazards, hazardous materials, and wildfire,
including impacts from the risk of wildfires (Impact 11-6).

3.17.1  Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
Sitewide

Areas at risk for wildfires are designated by California Department of Forestry and Fire (CalFire) and include
lands with characteristics of dense vegetation where severe burning potential is present. There are no lands
in the vicinity of the Project that are categorized by Placer County or CalFire as either (1) wildland areas that
may contain substantial forest fire risks and hazards (wildland areas or SRA), or (2) very-high-fire-hazard
severity zones. As described in the Placer County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (LHMP) Update, parts of the
site are located within a moderate fire hazard zone, and the project area is at risk to smaller grassfires,
especially during the dry, hot summers. To minimize hazards associated with potential grassfires, the
WPWMA implements practices of vegetation clearing, storage of water nearby vegetated areas, and
stockpiling soil that can be used to extinguish small grass fires. In addition, fire safety practices onsite will be
implemented in accordance with California Division of Occupational Safety and Health (Cal/OSHA) standards
as discussed in Section 11.2.2 of the Draft EIR. Cal/OSHA requires mandatory site safety plans that may
include emergency response and fire prevention plan preparation.

Because the Project will comply with Cal/OSHA fire standards and will implement the WPWMA'’s Emergency
Response and Contingency Plan, including practices that minimize wildfire hazards, people or structures will
not be subject to the risk of loss, injury, or death involving wildland fires, and impacts will be less than
significant.

The Project includes the construction or expansion of structures and infrastructure at the site. Solid waste
material contains combustible components and the operation of solid waste facilities can result in fire risks.

3-12 FES1026220700SAC
76



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

The introduction of new or expanded structures and the expansion of solid waste operations at the site could
increase this risk.

However, operating procedures and design features at the facility greatly reduce the potential for fire to be
started at the site and to spread onto adjacent grasslands. These operating procedures include the application
of daily and interim cover at the landfill; implementation of a hazardous waste screening program;
implementation of an equipment maintenance program; and implementation of design, safety, training, and
reporting measures specified in the facility’s hazardous materials management plan. In addition, the potential
for onsite fire to spread to adjacent grasslands is reduced by the availability of stored water, stockpiled soil,
an engineered fire suppression system in the MRF building, and equipment on the site that can be used to
extinguish or contain small fires, as well as the maintenance of firebreaks. For these reasons, the expanded
solid waste facilities are not expected to exacerbate wildfire risk or result in temporary or ongoing impacts to
the environment.

Additionally, the Project will not expose people or structures to significant risks resulting from downslope or
downstream flooding or landslides from runoff, post-fire slope instability, or drainage changes. The Project
will implement project-specific SWPPPs that will include BMPs to prevent runoff or flooding that could alter
or otherwise affect existing drainage patterns. The potential for post-fire instability resulting in downslope
runoff and flooding will be low. Therefore, implementation of the Project’s solid waste elements will have a
less-than-significant impact on wildfire risk.

Complementary and Programmatic Elements

In addition to solid waste elements, complementary and programmatic elements may be developed on the
WPWMA's properties. Development of the complementary and programmatic elements will be subject to the
CCR Fire Code. The Fire Code contains regulations relating to construction, maintenance, and use of buildings
and provides guidance on emergency access, access gates, sprinkler systems, fire alarms within buildings, and
construction of access roads to accommodate fire responders. Compliance with these regulations will
substantially reduce the potential that the complementary elements will contribute to wildland fire risks. For
these reasons, and the fact that the project site is not located within a wildland area that may contain
substantial wildfire risks and hazards or a very-high-fire-hazard severity zone, the risk of wildfires associated
with the complementary elements will be less than significant.

3.17.2  Finding

For the foregoing reasons, the Project will have a less-than-significant impact on hazards, hazardous
materials, and wildfire resulting from the risk of wildfires.

3.18 Hazards, Hazardous Materials, and Wildfire—Cumulative

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 19 for an analysis of cumulative impacts on hazards, hazardous materials,
and wildfire.

3.18.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding

The SAP EIR concluded that hazards associated with development of the SAP and other cumulative projects
will be local and will have no potential to contribute to cumulative hazardous conditions. Future development
in the region will be subject to contemporary safety and hazardous materials controls, as set forth in the
numerous regulations that control the use of potentially hazardous materials. The development of the SAP
and other cumulative projects was estimated to create less-than-significant cumulative hazard and hazardous
materials impacts.

FES1026220700SAC 3-13
77



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

The Project will not create new cumulatively considerable hazards impacts that were not considered in the
SAP EIR. The Project does not include any uses that were not considered in the SAP EIR for the project site.
Therefore, cumulative hazards impacts have been adequately addressed in the SAP EIR, and no additional
discussion of cumulative impacts beyond what was included in the SAP EIR is warranted.

While the SAP EIR did not evaluate impacts to wildfire, the Project and surrounding vicinity are not located in
a wildland area with substantial forest fire risks and hazards nor in very-high-fire-hazard severity zones.
Therefore, the Project will result in no cumulative impacts on wildfire.

3.18.2 Finding

For the foregoing reasons, the Project will have a less-than significant cumulative impacts on hazards,
hazardous materials, and wildfire.

3.19  Hydrology and Water Quality—Potential for Solid Waste Project Elements to
Violate Water Quality Standards or Substantially Degrade Surface Water
Quality

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 12 for an analysis of impacts to hydrology and water quality, including
impacts from the potential for solid waste project elements to violate water quality standards or substantially
degrade surface water quality (Impact 12-1).

3.19.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
Surface Water Quality

Implementation of the Project will involve construction activities, including clearing, grading, stockpiling, and
excavation. These activities have the potential to increase runoff because of temporary changes to surface
contours. Sediment transport from construction work areas to adjacent water resources could contribute to
water quality degradation. The erosion potential ranges from low to high: where work will occur in areas
with flat to gentle sloping terrain, the erosion potential is low, but where work will occur on sloping terrain,
including the landfill, the erosion potential is high. Therefore, the Project will expand coverage for
construction and operational activities under the existing Industrial General Permit (IGP) SWPPP to control
impacts associated with stormwater runoff.

The surface water flows at the WPWMA facility are actively managed and monitored under the existing
SWPPP (MBI 2015) issued for the WRSL and MRF in accordance with the State Water Resources Control
Board’s (SWRCB) General Permit for Storm Water Discharges Associated with Industrial Activities, IGP Order
No. 2014-0057-DWQ, National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) General Permit No.
CAS000001 adopted by SWRCB.

Under the Project, the existing SWPPP will be modified and implemented for each site covered by the permit,
including the WRSL, MRF, composting, and other facilities. The SWPPP will include BMPs designed to prevent
construction pollutants from contacting stormwater and to keep products of erosion from moving offsite into
receiving waters throughout construction and the life of the Project. The BMPs will also address source
control and, if necessary, pollutant control. The Project could potentially entail a diversion of OFMSW to
aerated static pile composting. However, impacts associated with any changes in the increased diversion and
processing of OFMSW would be negligible, because the volume of water discharged from the site would not
increase, and changes would be covered in an amended IGP SWPPP.

In addition to SWPPP implementation at the landfill, Title 27 includes requirements for Water Monitoring in
Subchapter 3 and in Section 20365, Precipitation and Drainage Controls, which require landfill units and their

3-14 FES1026220700SAC
78



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

respective containment structures be designed and constructed to limit, to the greatest extent possible,
ponding, infiltration, inundation, erosion, slope failure, washout, and overtopping. The Project will be
required to continue to conform with Title 27 requirements. Therefore, with implementation of the
applicable Title 27 regulations and project SWPPP, project impacts on surface water quality will be less than
significant.

3.19.2 Finding

For the foregoing reasons, the Project will have a less-than-significant impact on hydrology and water quality
resulting from the potential for solid waste project elements to violate water quality standards or
substantially degrade surface water quality.

3.20 Hydrology and Water Quality—Potential for Solid Waste Project Elements to
Violate Waste Discharge Requirements or Substantially Degrade Ground
Water Quality

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 12 for an analysis of impacts to hydrology and water quality, including
impacts from the potential for solid waste project elements to violate waste discharge requirements or
substantially degrade ground water quality (Impact 12-2).

3.20.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
Groundwater Quality

The WPWMA currently operates under Waste Discharge Requirement (WDR) Order No. R5-2007-0047 and
Title 27 requirements for groundwater monitoring and will continue to operate in a manner consistent with
these requirements under an amended WDR for the proposed expansion of solid waste project elements. Title
27 requires groundwater monitoring for Waste Disposal operations. WDR Order No. R5-2007-0047 requires
that groundwater monitoring at the WPWMA facility be performed on a quarterly basis at the WRSL in
accordance with the Monitoring and Reporting Program, including implementing the established
groundwater detection monitoring and corrective action programs to identify, evaluate, and mitigate changes
and groundwater quality. The existing groundwater monitoring program has detected volatile organic
compounds that may be associated with LFG or migrating leachate, or both. The Project involves removing
waste in the closed, pre-Subtitle D-lined, landfill and putting it in a lined cell, eliminating the potential for LFG
migration for that section of the landfill. The Project provides potential improvement in groundwater quality
by removing an ongoing source of contamination. Therefore, project impacts are less than significant.

3.20.2 Finding
For the foregoing reasons, the Project will have a less-than-significant impact on hydrology and water quality

resulting from the potential for solid waste project elements to violate waste discharge requirements or
substantially degrade ground water quality.

3.21 Hydrology and Water Quality—Potential for Programmatic Elements to
Degrade Water Quality

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 12 for an analysis of impacts to hydrology and water quality, including from
the potential for programmatic elements to degrade water quality (Impact 12-4).

FES1026220700SAC 3-15
79



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

3.21.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding

In addition to solid waste elements, complementary and programmatic elements may be developed on the
WPWMA's properties. Construction activities associated with the project level of complementary elements
include clearing, grading, stockpiling, and excavation. These activities have the potential to increase runoff
because of temporary changes to surface contours. The complementary elements included in the Project will
obtain coverage for construction and operational activities under the Construction General Permit (CGP) and
implement an SWPPP (or site-specific SWPPPs) to control impacts associated with stormwater runoff.
Therefore, construction of the project level of complementary elements will have a less-than-significant
impact on water quality.

Buildout of the programmatic elements involve the same construction activities identified for the project
level. Construction of the additional programmatic elements will also require separate, project-specific
SWPPPs for each project. The site-specific SWPPPs will include BMPs designed to prevent construction
pollutants from contacting stormwater and to keep products of erosion from moving offsite into receiving
waters throughout construction and the life of the Project. The BMPs will also address source control and, if
necessary, pollutant control. Therefore, the impact associated with the potential to violate water quality
standards or WDRs or otherwise substantially degrade surface water or groundwater quality for the
complementary and programmatic elements of the proposed project will be less than significant.

3.21.2 Finding

For the foregoing reasons, the Project will have a less-than-significant impact on hydrology and water quality
resulting from the potential for programmatic elements to degrade water quality.

3.22 Hydrology and Water Quality—Potential to Decrease Groundwater Supplies
or Interfere with Groundwater Recharge

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 12 for an analysis of impacts to hydrology and water quality, including from
the potential to decrease groundwater supplies or interfere with groundwater recharge (Impact 12-5).

3.22.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding

The use of water on the Project will increase during construction activities for dust control; however, the
WPWMA does not intend to use groundwater for this activity. The WPWMA also does not anticipate
increasing groundwater use over the long-term, except as noted in Section 12.1.3 of the Draft EIR regarding a
possible seasonal groundwater pump-and-treat system, to support expansion of the landfill and associated
operations, such as soil and waste compaction and vegetative landfill cover watering. The WPWMA plans to
supplement the current groundwater supply with alternative sources of water; for example, the WPWMA
intends to use recycled water currently available from the City of Lincoln’s Wastewater Treatment Plant and
piped to the intersection of Athens Avenue and Fiddyment Road, where it is used for agricultural purposes.
The WPWMA will continue to use groundwater at operational levels to support its operations. With
implementation of an expanded groundwater monitoring program, including wells located at the project
perimeter, the WPWMA will monitor their use and impact on groundwater levels in the surrounding area.

There is potential for groundwater recharge to be reduced because of an increase in area of impervious
surfaces associated with expansion of the organics management operation, construction and demolition
materials processing operation, and public waste drop-off area operations. Expansion of the landfill disposal
capacity development and development of the complementary and programmatic elements over areas
currently covered with native soil will also reduce the area available for infiltration of surface water to
recharge groundwater. The site is underlain by mostly fine-grained silts and clays that do not facilitate
percolation of large quantities of water for groundwater recharge and, thus, the project site is not considered

3-16 FES1026220700SAC
80



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

a significant groundwater recharge area compared with the recharge that occurs via surface water drainages
in the area. Groundwater recharge is not anticipated to significantly decrease such that sustainable
groundwater management will be impeded.

Although the Project components, including complementary and programmatic elements, may result in
increased impervious surfaces, the potential impact on groundwater recharge resulting from the increase in
the extent of impervious surfaces would be minimized by the incorporation of the Low-Impact Development
(LID) Manual measures that allow infiltration of stormwater onsite in conformance with SAP Policy LU/ED-
3.12: Impervious Surfaces/Low-Impact Development. Under this policy, the County requires that all new
discretionary development be designed in accordance with the LID Manual to incorporate site design
measures and LID features to infiltrate runoff from impervious surfaces.

Because the Project is not anticipated to interfere with groundwater supply or recharge, impacts associated
with implementation of the Project are less than significant.

3.22.2 Finding

For the foregoing reasons, the Project will have a less-than-significant impact on hydrology and water quality
resulting from the potential to decrease groundwater supplies or interfere with groundwater recharge.

3.23 Hydrology and Water Quality—Potential to Increase Runoff and Localized or
Downstream Flooding

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 12 for an analysis of impacts to hydrology and water quality, including from
the potential to increase runoff and localized or downstream flooding (Impact 12-6).

3.23.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding

The surface water flows at the WPWMA facility are actively managed by using an engineered stormwater
management system, including engineered paved areas and landscaped areas to prevent erosion; unlined and
lined swales, pipes, and other drainage conveyance features; and sedimentation basins, water detention
ponds, and other stormwater collection features. Stormwater monitoring is conducted at the WRSL and MRF
under the SWPPP (MBI 2015) in accordance with the SWRCB'’s General Permit for Storm Water Discharges
Associated with Industrial Activities, IGP Order No. 2014-0057-DWQ, NPDES General Permit No. CAS000001
adopted by SWRCB.

The Project will obtain coverage for construction activities by amending the existing IGP SWPPP or obtaining
coverage under the CGP and implementing a SWPPP (or site-specific SWPPPs) to control impacts associated
with stormwater runoff. In addition to the project SWPPPs, Title 27 regulations require that landfill units and
their respective containment structures be designed and constructed to limit, to the greatest extent possible,
ponding, infiltration, inundation, erosion, slope failure, washout, and overtopping. With implementation of
the applicable laws and regulations, the Project will not result in substantial erosion or siltation onsite or
offsite.

The Project is not located in a 100-year floodplain or designated flood hazard zone. In addition to
implementation of the SWPPP and Title 27 measures described earlier, although the Project will result in
increased area of impervious surfaces, runoff will be minimized by the incorporation of the LID Manual
measures; therefore, the Project will not result in a substantial increase in the rate or amount of surface
runoff in a manner that will result in flooding onsite or offsite.

Furthermore, the SAP storm drain system will be designed to accommodate buildout stormwater conveyance,
so that new development within the SAP area will not generate runoff that exceeds the capacity of the

FES1026220700SAC 3-17
81



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

system’s ability to handle. Therefore, the Project will not create or contribute runoff water that will exceed
the capacity of existing or planned stormwater drainage systems or provide substantial additional sources of
polluted runoff.

Because the Project is not located within a 100-year floodplain or designated flood hazard zone, the Project
will not impede or redirect flood flows, as measures from the SWPPP, Title 27 measures, and incorporation of
LID measures will minimize runoff from the site.

Thus, implementation of all applicable laws and regulations will mean that impacts are less than significant.
3.23.2  Finding

For the foregoing reasons, the Project will have a less-than-significant impact on hydrology and water quality
resulting from the potential to increase runoff and localized or downstream flooding.

3.24  Hydrology and Water Quality—Potential Conflicts with Applicable Water
Quality Control Plan

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 12 for an analysis of impacts to hydrology and water quality, including
impacts from potential conflicts with an applicable water quality control plan (Impact 12-7).

3.24.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding

The Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board (CVRWQCB_ adopted the Water Quality Control Plan
for the Sacramento and San Joaquin Basin (Basin Plan) of 2018. According to the Basin Plan, the project area
is within municipal and domestic water supply beneficial use designations for surface water by CVRWQCB.
The Basin Plan requires that these uses be protected by implementing water discharge requirements and
permits, including NPDES permits.

The Project will result in a less-than-significant impact on water quality because of implementation of project
SWPPPs, compliance with Title 27 regulations, and expanded environmental monitoring systems. Thus,
implementation of all applicable laws and regulations described earlier will mean that the project-level solid
waste management and complementary and programmatic elements of the Project will not conflict with or
obstruct implementation of the Basin Plan.

3.24.2  Finding

For the foregoing reasons, the Project will have a less-than-significant impact on hydrology and water quality
resulting from potential conflicts with an applicable water quality control plan.

3.25 Hydrology and Water Quality—Potential for Waste Excavation and
Relocation to Conflict with or Obstruct Implementation of a Water Quality
Control Plan

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 12 for an analysis of impacts to hydrology and water quality, including from
the potential for waste excavation and relocation to conflict with or obstruct implementation of a water
quality control plan (Impact 12-8).

3.25.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding

The surface water flows at the WPWMA facility are actively managed by using an engineered stormwater
management system, including engineered paved areas and landscaped areas to prevent erosion; unlined and

3-18 FES1026220700SAC
82



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

lined swales, pipes, and other drainage conveyance features; and sedimentation basins, water detention
ponds, and other stormwater collection features. Stormwater monitoring is conducted at the WRSL and MRF
under the SWPPP (MBI 2015) in accordance with the SWRCB’s General Permit for Storm Water Discharges
Associated with Industrial Activities, IGP Order No. 2014-0057-DWQ, NPDES General Permit No. CAS000001
adopted by SWRCB. Leachate, unsaturated zone, and groundwater monitoring are implemented regularly at
the WRSL under the WDRs, which include a groundwater detection monitoring program and groundwater
Corrective Action Program (CAP).

The Project includes excavation and relocation of existing solid waste. Implementation of the Project will
substantially alter existing drainage patterns, temporarily increase areas of exposed waste, and alter
groundwater recharge patterns and locations associated with the waste excavation and relocation component
of the proposed project. Exposure of waste to precipitation and surface water runoff during waste excavation
and relocation has the potential to affect surface water quality directly and groundwater quality indirectly
through infiltration of surface water affected by exposure to waste. Therefore, the Project will maintain and
expand coverage under the existing IGP SWPPP for the waste excavation and relocation activities. With
implementation of measures in a SWPPP for waste excavation and relocation activities, impacts will be less
than significant.

3.25.2  Finding

For the foregoing reasons, the Project will have a less-than-significant impact on hydrology and water quality
resulting from the potential for waste excavation and relocation to conflict with or obstruct implementation
of a water quality control plan.

3.26 Hydrology and Water Quality—Cumulative
Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 19 for an analysis of cumulative impacts on hydrology and water quality.
3.26.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding

The Draft EIR tiers off the analysis included in the SAP EIR for the cumulative impacts analysis. Cumulative
development will increase regional stormwater runoff and the potential for downstream flooding. However,
projects will be required to comply with the CVRWQCB, Placer County, and municipal stormwater regulations
and ordinances. Therefore, these impacts will not be cumulatively considerable. Because most new
developments, including those within the SAP and other cumulative projects, will be served primarily by
surface water, development will not cumulatively contribute to groundwater depletion or recharge. Similar to
stormwater runoff impacts, the cumulative water quality impacts associated with both construction and post-
construction operations will be minimized through the implementation of regulatory water quality protection
measures. Therefore, development of the SAP and other cumulative projects will not contribute considerably
to a significant cumulative impact related to water quality. Cumulative development projects will be required
to meet existing mitigation standards to prevent an increase in 100-year flood flows and will be subject to
federal and County floodplain protection regulations.

The Project will not create new cumulatively considerable hydrology or water quality impacts that were not

considered in the SAP EIR. The Project does not include any uses that were not considered in the SAP EIR for
the project site. Therefore, cumulative hydrology and water quality impacts have been adequately addressed
in the SAP EIR.

3.26.2  Finding

For the foregoing reasons, the Project will have a less-than significant impact on cumulative hydrology and
water quality.

FES1026220700SAC 3-19
83



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

3.27 Land Use and Planning—Physically Divide an Established Community

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 13 for an analysis of impacts to land use and planning, including impacts to
the physical division of an established community (Impact 13-1).

3.27.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding

The Project is located in a rural, undeveloped area of unincorporated Placer County. An established
community, the Lincoln Crossing subdivision is located approximately 2 miles northeast of the eastern
property’s northern boundary. The nearest established community, the Blue Oaks subdivision, is located one
mile south of the eastern property’s southern boundary. Although the Project will be situated between these
two communities, they are located in different cities: Lincoln Crossing in the City of Lincoln and Blue Oaks in
the City of Roseville. In addition, the existing and proposed uses at the site will be consistent with the site’s
Eco-Industrial land use and zoning designations. Therefore, the Project will not physically divide these
established communities. Additionally, the SAP assumes the project site will be developed with the types of
uses specifically identified in the Project. Therefore, there will be no impact.

3.27.2  Finding

For the foregoing reasons, the Project will have a less-than-significant impact on land use and planning
resulting from the physical division of an established community.

3.28 Land Use and Planning—Consistency with Land-Use Plans and Policies

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 13 for an analysis of impacts to land use and planning, including consistency
with land-use plans and policies (Impact 13-2).

3.28.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding

The SAP is the primary plan governing land use for the project area. The Project will be located on lands both
designated and zoned for Eco-Industrial use, which explicitly includes solid waste management and related
practices and processes, as well as specific industrial and manufacturing uses. The SAP also includes
numerous goals and policies adopted with the intention of avoiding or mitigating adverse environmental
impacts, including effects to Air Quality, Biological Resources, Cultural Resources, Geology and Soils,
Hydrology and Water Quality, Noise, and Energy. These goals and policies are discussed within the regulatory
sections of the Draft EIR in Chapters 6, 7, 8,9, 12, 14, and 17, respectively. The Project will not conflict with
these environmental protection policies and will further employ design, construction, and operations best
practices consistent with these policies. The project design will be informed by Policies LU/ED-3.1, LU/ED3.2,
LU/ED-3.4, and LU/ED-3.8 related to High-Quality Design, Environmentally Responsive Design, Land
Alteration, and Landscaping, respectively, Also, because the Project will not include the development of new
residential uses and will not expand beyond the site’s long-established boundary, it will not contribute to the
significant and unavoidable land-use compatibility impact identified in the SAP EIR associated with reducing
the 1-mile buffer requirement for residential uses included in Placer County General Plan Policy 4.G.11. As
such, the Project will not conflict with the goals and policies included in the SAP that have been adopted for
the purpose of avoiding or mitigating an environmental effect, and there will be no impact.

3.28.2 Finding

For the foregoing reasons, the Project will have a less-than-significant impact on land use and planning
resulting from inconsistency with land-use plans and policies.

3-20 FES1026220700SAC
84



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

3.29 Land Use and Planning—Cumulative
Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 19 for an analysis of cumulative impacts on land use and planning.
3.29.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding

The SAP EIR stated that development of the SAP and other cumulative projects will result in no cumulative
land use impacts. The SAP will be consistent and compatible with existing and planned development, will not
cause the physical division of an established community, and will not cause economic or social changes that
will result in physical environmental changes. The Project will not create new cumulatively considerable land
use impacts that were not considered in the SAP EIR. The Project does not include any uses that were not
considered in the SAP EIR for the project site. Therefore, cumulative land use impacts have been adequately
addressed in the SAP EIR.

3.29.2  Finding

For the foregoing reasons, the Project will have no cumulative land use and planning impacts.

3.30 Noise—Construction Activity Noise Impacts

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 14 for an analysis of impacts from noise, including impacts from
construction activity (Impact 14-1).

3.30.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding

Construction activities associated with the Project will result in temporary increases in ambient noise levels
within the project vicinity. Construction for buildings and the majority of the solid waste management and
support facilities will include grading, clearing, and excavation associated with the site preparation phase;
demolition of existing concrete pads; pouring foundations and paving; building erection; infrastructure
construction; and the application of architectural coatings, in addition to other miscellaneous activities. For
the landfill modules and closure activities, construction will include excavating native soil, stockpiling
excavated soil, installing a composite liner, installing a leachate collection and removal system prior to the
modules use for waste disposal, and eventually placing final soil cover. The Placer County Noise Ordinance
exempts construction activities from the specified noise ordinance standards during the hours of 6:00 a.m. to
8:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, and 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m., Saturday and Sunday (Section 9.36.030).
Generally, if a construction project adheres to the construction times identified in the Noise Ordinance,
construction noise is exempt. Because construction activities will not be expected to occur outside of these
hours, construction noise associated with implementation of the Project on adjacent land uses will be
considered less than significant.

The additional programmatic elements (1.6 million square feet) will use similar construction equipment and
construction is similarly not expected to occur outside of the previously noted hours; thus, construction noise
associated with the additional programmatic elements on adjacent land uses will be considered less than
significant.

3.30.2 Finding

For the foregoing reasons, the Project will have a less-than-significant impact on noise resulting from
construction activity.

FES1026220700SAC 3-21
85



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

3.31 Noise—Exposure of Sensitive Uses to Vibrations

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 14 for an analysis of impacts from noise, including from exposure of
sensitive users to vibrations (Impact 14-3).

3.31.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding

Construction activities and landfill operations have the potential to result in varying degrees of temporary
ground-borne vibration, depending on the specific equipment used and operations involved. Vibration
generated by construction equipment spreads through the ground and diminishes in magnitude with
increases in distance.

At the nearest sensitive receptor, the predicted vibration levels will be below the established threshold.

Therefore, construction and operation of the solid waste facilities and waste management operations will not
be expected to expose offsite sensitive receptors to excessive vibration levels.

Construction vibration levels generated from the complementary and programmatic project elements will be
similar to those associated with the construction of solid waste facilities at the site. Given the distance from
the nearest residence, the anticipated industrial uses within the complementary and programmatic project
elements are not expected to generate vibration levels that will exceed the established vibration threshold. As
a result, this impact is considered less than significant.

3.31.2 Finding

For the foregoing reasons, the Project will have a less-than-significant impact on noise resulting from
exposure of sensitive users to vibrations.

3.32 Noise—Traffic-Generated Permanent Increases in Ambient Noise Levels

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 14 for an analysis of impacts from noise, including from traffic-generated
permanent increases in ambient noise levels (Impact 14-4).

3.32.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding

The Project will increase traffic noise along local roadways used by project traffic. However, no sensitive land
uses are located along Athens Avenue, Industrial Avenue, or Sunset Boulevard. Therefore, increases in traffic
noise associated with implementing the proposed project on these roadways will not affect sensitive land
uses, and this impact will be less than significant. Also, because of the high traffic volumes on State Route 65,
the Project’s contribution of additional vehicles to this roadway will be relatively negligible. Therefore, the
Project will not noticeably increase traffic noise along this State highway.

For the segment of Fiddyment Road between Athens Avenue and the future alignment of Placer Parkway,
existing noise levels were estimated to be between 60 and 65 dBA at distances between 54 and 117 feet from
the roadway centerline. Similar noise levels will be expected for the segment of Fiddyment Road extending
south from the future alignment of Placer Parkway through the Blue Oaks residential area. For this segment
of Fiddyment Road, existing residences are located within 80 feet of the roadway centerline. However,
masonry sound walls are currently in place parallel to Fiddyment Road that substantially attenuate traffic
noise levels. Sound walls that block the line of site between the source and receiver will be expected to result
in a minimum reduction of 5 dB (Caltrans 2015).

3-22 FES1026220700SAC
86



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

The Project is projected to increase the current average daily vehicle trips on Fiddyment Road by
approximately 8 percent, from approximately 7,920 to a total of 8,530 average daily vehicle trips. A doubling
of the number of daily vehicle trips is typically required to increase noise levels by 3 dBA (Caltrans 2015).
Because the Project will not be expected to double the traffic volumes on Fiddyment Road and because
existing masonry sound walls are in place adjacent to the existing residences, the increase in traffic volumes
associated with the Project is not expected to substantially increase traffic noise levels experienced by
residences adjacent to Fiddyment Road south of the project site. Therefore, traffic noise impacts will be
considered less than significant.

3.32.2 Finding

For the foregoing reasons, the Project will have a less-than-significant impact on noise resulting from traffic-
generated permanent increases in ambient noise levels.

3.33 Noise—Cumulative (Vibration)
Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 19 for an analysis of cumulative impacts on vibration noise.
3.33.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding

The Draft EIR tiers off the analysis included in the SAP EIR for the cumulative impacts analysis. The Project
will not create new cumulatively considerable vibration noise impacts that were not considered in the SAP
EIR. The Project will generate vibration noise levels consistent with the solid waste and industrial uses
anticipated for the site in the SAP. Therefore, cumulative vibration noise impacts have been adequately
addressed in the SAP EIR.

3.33.2 Finding

For the foregoing reasons, cumulative vibration noise impacts will be less than significant.

3.34  Public Services—Require New or Expanded Fire Protection Facilities

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 15 for an analysis of impacts to public services, including from the
requirement for new or expanded fire protection facilities (Impact 15-1).

3.34.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding

Solid waste management activities at the WPWMA facility will continue and expand under the Project,
resulting in the ongoing potential for fire hazards from those activities and the potential for an incremental
increase in the need for fire protection as a result of expanded operation. The WPWMA'’s solid waste
management activities assume the potential for fires to occur, and procedures are in place to reduce fire
potential and fight fires onsite. However, because the WPWMA regularly uses the emergency response
services of Placer County Fire Station 77, the WPWMA pays its fair share for these services. Annual payments
to Placer County for fire protection services are adjusted according to changes in the California Consumer
Price Index, the same methodology identified in Community Facilities District (CFD) 2012-1.

Because a mechanism is in place that provides funding for fire protection services commensurate with
demand, consistent with Placer County Policy PFS-8.1, implementation of the Project will not be expected to
reduce fire protection service ratios or response times. Proposed solid waste operations will not differ
substantially from current operations in regard to fire protection demands. Although solid waste operations
will be expanded, it could be anticipated that the partial transition from the current windrow composting
process to ASP technology may result in a reduced risk of fire as a result of the reduction in pile size to less

FES1026220700SAC 3-23
87



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

than 12 feet (BioCycle 2004), which could offset the nominal increase from the expansion of other operations.
Overall, the Project will not be expected to require the provision of new or physically altered fire protection
facilities, and the WPWMA will continue to pay its fair share for fire protection services. Therefore, the
expanded solid waste management activities will result in no impact on the need for new or physically altered
fire protection facilities.

In addition to solid waste management activities, complementary and programmatic elements may be
developed on the WPWMA's properties. The development of the project-level complementary elements will
result in an increased need for fire protection at the project site. The SAP EIR determined that development
within the SAP will increase the demand for fire personnel at Station 77 to maintain County service levels;
however, it concluded that this new facility will not result in “unmitigable, adverse effects on the
environment” (Placer County 2018). Therefore, although the Project’s complementary elements may result in
the need for new or physically altered governmental facilities, this new or expanded facility has already been
evaluated and will not result in substantial adverse physical impacts or significant environmental impacts.
The project-level complementary elements will, therefore, result in no impact.

Buildout of the programmatic elements involves the same increased need for fire protection identified for the
project level. Development of the additional programmatic elements (1.6 million square feet) may also result
in the need for new or physically altered governmental facilities, which has already been evaluated in the SAP
EIR. Therefore, development of the program level of complementary and programmatic elements will result
in no impact. The SAP EIR also concluded that future development within the SAP boundaries will serve as an
ongoing revenue source to maintain fire protection and emergency response services and that SAP Policy
PFS-8.1 will require new discretionary development to construct facilities or to sufficiently fund fire
protection personnel, operations, and maintenance to maintain County fire protection standards (Placer
County 2018). It is therefore assumed that the WPWMA will need to continue to pay its fair share for the
proposed complementary and programmatic elements and their contribution to the need for expansion of
Station 77 or a new fire station. This is consistent with the current agreement and will therefore result in no
impact.

3.34.2 Finding

For the foregoing reasons, the Project will have a less-than-significant impact on public services resulting
from the requirement for new or expanded fire protection facilities.

3.35 Public Services—Require New or Expanded Law Enforcement Facilities

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 15 for an analysis of impacts to public services, including from the
requirement of new or expanded law enforcement facilities (Impact 15-2).

3.35.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding

Site security is provided by the WPWMA, including controlled access and security lighting. The Project will
not interfere with existing or planned emergency response plans nor diminish the ability of police service
personnel to respond to emergencies, because the facility will be serviced and maintained by existing staff.

Law enforcement at the Project continue to be provided by the Placer County Sheriff’s Office South Placer
Substation, located in the Town of Loomis, approximately 8 miles east of the project site. Under normal traffic
conditions, law enforcement take approximately 17 minutes to drive from the substation to the project site,
which is 2 minutes over the Placer County General Plan established average response time in rural areas of
15 minutes. However, because of the infrequent nature of emergencies requiring law enforcement support
that have occurred historically at the project site and are expected to occur in the future Project, the demand
for such public service is not anticipated to increase to such an extent that the County Sheriff’s average
response time throughout the year would fail to meet the response time standard. An additional Placer

3-24 FES1026220700SAC
88



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

County Sheriff’s Office would not be required to provide law enforcement services to the project site for the
expanded solid waste management activities, resulting in no impact.

The development of the project-level complementary elements are anticipated to result in an increased need
for law enforcement protection at the project site, and the SAP EIR indicated that additional officers will be
needed to meet an increase in demand for law enforcement services associated with nonresidential uses
proposed in the SAP area. However, the SAP EIR also concluded that a new substation to service the project
area has been planned under the Placer Vineyards Specific Plan, the first phase of which was approved in
2017 (Placer County 2021). This substation will be designed to accommodate the additional officers required
for full buildout of the SAP EIR. Therefore, it can be assumed that the project-level complementary elements
will not require the provision of new or physically altered governmental facilities, the construction of which
could cause significant environmental impacts, resulting in no impact.

Buildout of the programmatic elements involve the same increased need for law enforcement protection
identified for the project level. Development of the additional programmatic elements (1.6 million square
feet) may also result in the need for law enforcement protection, which has already been evaluated in the SAP
EIR. Therefore, development of the program level of complementary and programmatic elements will result
in no impact.

3.35.2  Finding

For the foregoing reasons, the Project will have a less-than-significant impact on public services resulting
from the requirement for new or expanded law enforcement facilities.

3.36 Public Services—Require New or Expanded Schools and Parks

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 15 for an analysis of impacts to public services, including from the
requirement for new or expanded schools and parks (Impact 15-3).

3.36.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding

Solid waste management activities at the WPWMA facility will continue and expand under the Project;
however, these operations will not result in the need for new schools or parks, because the Project does not
involve residential uses or induce population growth. Additional staffing required as a result of the Project is
anticipated to be accommodated by existing residents or population growth planned by the regional
jurisdictions.

The complementary and programmatic elements will result in new employment opportunities in the project
area, which will increase demand on local schools and parks. The SAP EIR concluded that full buildout of the
SAP will result in 40,804 new jobs within the SAP area (Placer County 2019). Although the expected number
of jobs per acre per land use type was not included in the evaluation, averaging the total number of jobs
across all commerecial land use types included in the SAP (in other words, excluding the reserve land use
acreage), results in approximately 11.25 jobs per acre.

Using the average of 11.25 jobs per acre, the development of the project-level complementary elements could
result in up to 78 new jobs. Assuming an average Placer County household size of 2.67, these 78 new jobs
could result in up to 208 new residents in the project area. Although some of the people seeking these new
employment opportunities may live outside the project area, for the purposes of this analysis, it is
conservatively assumed all will reside within Placer County. Up to 46 of these new residents could be school-
aged children, based on an average 22.1 percent of the population being under 18 years of age (Census 2019),
who are among the demographic most likely to use public parks. In accordance with the General Plan, and as
discussed in the SAP EIR, 5 acres of active parks, 5 acres of passive recreation and open space or paseos, and
1 mile of trails are required per each 1,000 residents. Using these requirements, the SAP EIR concluded that

FES1026220700SAC 3-25
89



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

there is sufficient space within the Sunset Area to accommodate new and expanded schools and parks for the
full buildout of the SAP and Placer Ranch Specific Plan (PRSP), and that environmental impacts associated
with the construction of these new and expanded facilities will be less than significant. Therefore, the impacts
associated with the provision of new or physically altered schools and parks associated with the proposed
project-level complementary elements will also be less than significant.

Buildout of the programmatic elements is assumed to involve the same increase in jobs per acre described for
the project-level elements. Development of the additional programmatic elements (1.6 million square feet)
may therefore result in up to 414 new jobs, which could result in an increase of up to 1,104 residents and 244
school-aged children in the area, using the same household size and percentage of the population under 18
noted previously (Census 2019). This population increase will exceed the 1,000-resident threshold requiring
5 acres of active parks, 5 acres of passive recreation and open space or paseos, and 1 mile of trails. However,
the SAP EIR concluded that there is sufficient space within the Sunset Area to accommodate new and
expanded schools and parks for full a buildout of the SAP and PRSP, and that environmental impacts
associated with the construction of these new and expanded facilities will be less than significant. Therefore,
the impacts associated with the provision of new or physically altered schools and parks associated with the
programmatic elements will also be less than significant.

Overall, impacts related to schools and parks will be less than significant.
3.36.2  Finding

For the foregoing reasons, the Project will have a less-than-significant impact on public services resulting
from the requirement for new or expanded schools and parks.

3.37 Public Services—Require New or Expanded Roadway Maintenance

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 15 for an analysis of impacts to public services, including from the
requirement for new or expanded roadway maintenance (Impact 15-4).

3.37.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding

Solid waste management activities at the WPWMA facility will continue and expand under the Project, which
will result in an increased use of local roadways and a corresponding need for increased road maintenance.
However, the WPWMA has a mechanism in place with the Placer County Department of Public Works to
provide proper road maintenance and improvements on Athens Avenue. That mechanism will remain in
place under the Project; however, it could be reasonably expected that the agreement may need to be
modified to include Fiddyment Road should traffic levels on Fiddyment Road substantially increase.

In addition to solid waste management activities, complementary and programmatic elements may be
developed on the WPWMA's properties. The development of these complementary project-level elements and
buildout of the programmatic elements will be anticipated to result in increased use of Fiddyment Road and a
corresponding need for roadway maintenance. The SAP EIR concluded that the increased use of County roads
could result in an increase in the frequency of maintenance needed for these facilities and identifies Placer
County General Plan Policies 4.B.1 and 4.B.2 and SAP Policies PFS-2.1 and PFS-2.2, all of which require new
developments to pay a fair share of funding for maintenance of public roads. By continuing the existing
funding mechanism the WPWMA has in place with the Placer County Department of Public Works to provide
proper road maintenance on Athens Avenue, the Project will be consistent with these policies. This impact is
less than significant.

3.37.2 Finding

For the foregoing reasons, the Project will have a less-than-significant impact on public services resulting

3-26 FES1026220700SAC
90



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

from the requirement for new or expanded roadway maintenance.

3.38 Public Services—Cumulative
Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 19 for an analysis of cumulative impacts on public services.
3.38.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding

The Draft EIR tiers off the analysis included in the SAP EIR for the cumulative impacts analysis. The Project
will not create new cumulatively considerable public services impacts that were not considered in the SAP
EIR. The Project does not include any uses that were not considered in the SAP EIR for the project site.
Therefore, cumulative public services impacts have been adequately addressed in the SAP EIR.

3.38.2  Finding

For the foregoing reasons, upgraded public service infrastructure will be constructed in a manner consistent
with development of the SAP and other cumulative projects will not contribute considerably to a significant
cumulative impact related to public services, and these impacts will be less than significant.

3.39  Transportation—Conflict with Traffic Circulation Plan or Program

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 16 for an analysis of impacts to transportation, including from conflict with
traffic circulation plans or programs (Impact 16-1).

3.39.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
Operation

Although policies in the Placer County General Plan identify Level of Service (LOS) criteria for roadway
segments, according to SB-743 and subsequent CEQA Guidelines (Section 15064.3(b)), these policies are no
longer considered in making CEQA significance determinations. However, to determine whether the Project
would result in any conflicts with roadway improvements identified in Placer County’s Circulation Plan and
program or the SAP development, the Project’s projected ADT volumes were compared with the identified
roadway capacities.

The number of vehicles per day from the WPWMA facility consists of vehicles associated with waste recovery,
waste disposal, and supporting elements and vehicles associated with the complementary and programmatic
elements. The proposed expansion of the solid waste operations with 300,000 square feet of building space
for the complementary elements is anticipated to generate 3,619 vehicle trips per day during a weekday and
2,713 during a weekend. When the 1.9 million square feet of building space associated with the
complementary and programmatic elements is combined with the expanded solid waste operations, a total of
9,870 vehicle trips per day during the weekday and 5,289 vehicle trips per day during the weekend will be
expected.

Table 16-4 of the Draft EIR summarizes the project access roadways, along with the existing number of lanes,
existing roadway capacity, and weekday existing year 2018 ADT with and without the Project. Since Project
vehicle traffic is higher during the weekday compared with the weekend, the analysis was conducted for
weekday only to represent a worse-case scenario. Project trips were added to the project access roadways
based on WPWMA service location data. With the additional Project trips, the volumes on the project access
roadways are within existing roadway capacities.

FES1026220700SAC 3-27
91



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

No transit service, bicycle facilities, or pedestrian facilities are located within the study area, and the Project
does not include any changes to the local roadway network. Therefore, project implementation Is not
expected to adversely affect existing or planned bicycle, pedestrian, or transit system facilities within the
project vicinity.

The Project includes a crossing of Fiddyment Road to connect the center and western properties. This
crossing will be constructed either under or over Fiddyment Road and will not connect to the local project
access roadways. This project feature is not anticipated to conflict or interfere with any existing or planned
improvements identified in Placer County’s Circulation Plan or the SAP development for Fiddyment Road.

The Project will not change the existing or planned circulation system in the project vicinity. Therefore, the
Project will not conflict or interfere with any program, plan, ordinance, or policy addressing the circulation
system, specifically Placer County’s Circulation Plan (per goal 3.A. and policy 3.A.1) and proposed
improvements and goal TM-1 for the entire SAP development. Therefore, Project operational impacts will be
less than significant.

Construction

During construction, there will be a short-term, temporary increase in traffic on the project access roadways
as a result of the construction of utilities underneath the roadway and the crossing connecting the center and
western properties over Fiddyment Road. The increase in traffic caused by construction is expected to be
minimal. Furthermore, the WPWMA will prepare a Construction Transportation Management Plan under
Mitigation Measure 11-3, and as discussed in Chapter 11 Hazards, Hazardous Materials, and Wildfire, of the
Draft EIR, a Construction Traffic Management Plan will be implemented under Mitigation Measure 11-5, both
of which could further reduce impacts from project construction on traffic. Since the transportation effects
during construction are short term and temporary, construction impacts on the local circulation system and
potential conflicts with programs, plans, ordinances, or policies addressing the circulation system, including
transit, roadway, bicycle, and pedestrian facilities, will be less than significant.

3.39.2  Finding

For the foregoing reasons, the Project will have a less-than-significant impact on transportation resulting
from conflicts with traffic circulation plans or programs.

3.40 Transportation—Increase in Vehicle Hazards

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 16 for an analysis of impacts to transportation, including from an increase in
vehicle hazards (Impact 16-3).

3.40.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
Operations

The increase in vehicle trips associated with project operations is expected to increase the number of vehicles
entering the central property from Athens Avenue and queuing on the site prior to dumping materials. This
increase in vehicles could result in backups on Athens Avenue during peak conditions if additional queuing
capacity is not provided on the site. However, the Project includes entrance improvements that are intended
to increase vehicle capacity and throughput for solid waste operations on the central property. In addition,
some of the solid waste traffic associated with the existing facility will be diverted to the western property,
which will reduce the potential for vehicle backups on Athens Avenue at the central property entrance. By
limiting the potential for backups on Athens Avenue associated with solid waste operations, the Project is not
expected to increase the potential for traffic conflicts that could result in vehicle stacking hazards on this
roadway during site operations. Therefore, this impact will be less than significant.

3-28 FES1026220700SAC
92



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

Construction

Project implementation will require some existing utility infrastructure buried within local roadways to be
upgraded. Also, the existing entrance on Athens Avenue that provides access to the central property will be
upgraded to accommodate the expanded solid waste operations on this property. The entrance
improvements will increase the number of vehicles that can enter the site without resulting in vehicle
backups on Athens Avenue.

The unimproved segment of Athens Avenue that extends west of the Fiddyment Road and Athens Avenue
intersection is proposed to be improved to accommodate access to proposed solid waste uses on the western
property. In addition, to accommodate the movement of vehicles and materials between the central and
western properties, the installation of a crossing over or under Fiddyment Road is proposed. Finally, the
construction of complementary and programmatic elements on the western property will require the
construction of new access locations on Fiddyment Road.

The proposed utility upgrades and new or expanded entrance facilities may require temporary lane closures
to accommodate construction activities. The construction of any facilities that could affect local vehicle
circulation will be required to comply with applicable construction traffic management requirements that
have been established to maintain safety and reduce traffic hazards. This includes the use of appropriately
trained personnel to direct traffic, the placement of temporary signage, and the use of other traffic safety
equipment. Standard engineering practice for roadway construction projects includes complying with the
Manual for Uniform Traffic Control Devices (Federal Highway Administration [FHWA] 2012) so that
appropriate signage, pavement delineations, and traffic control devices are being used. These types of
roadway construction projects and associated traffic management activities are common in the area and are
not expected to cause unique roadway hazards. Therefore, project construction is not expected to
substantially increase vehicle hazards, and this impact will be less than significant.

3.40.2 Finding

For the foregoing reasons, the Project will have a less-than-significant impact on transportation resulting
from an increase in vehicle hazards.

3.41 Transportation—Inadequate Emergency Vehicle Access

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 16 for an analysis of impacts to transportation, including from inadequate
emergency vehicle access (Impact 16-4).

3.41.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
Construction

During construction activities that affect local roadways, necessary temporary lane closures could delay
emergency vehicle access to the site or through the area. However, the construction of any facilities that could
affect local vehicle circulation will be required to comply with standard construction traffic management
requirements that have been established to maintain safety and reduce traffic hazards. These traffic
management requirements include verifying that access is maintained for emergency vehicles throughout the
construction period. Furthermore, the WPWMA will be required to prepare a Construction Transportation
Management Plan, which will need to identify strategies for providing adequate emergency vehicle access at
the site throughout construction periods. Therefore, the construction activities will not interfere or
substantially delay emergency vehicle access to the project site or within the local area, and this impact will
be less than significant.

FES1026220700SAC 3-29
93



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

Operation

The project site can be accessed from the south and north via Fiddyment Road, and from the east via Athens
Avenue. For the project site’s center and eastern properties, emergency vehicle access is available at the main
entrance along Athens Avenue. In addition, three existing access locations are located along Fiddyment Road.
Although these access locations are gated and rarely used, they will provide alternative access options in the
event of an emergency at the central or eastern property.

For the western property, emergency vehicle access will be provided by the extension of Athens Avenue onto
the western property from the Fiddyment Road and Athens Avenue intersection. This new entrance onto the
western property will be required to be constructed to accommodate the anticipated vehicle traffic associated
with the site uses as well as to accommodate emergency vehicle access. With the construction of
complementary and programmatic elements, construction of additional access locations will be required to
accommodate site circulation. Construction of these new access locations will improve emergency vehicle
access at the site. Therefore, emergency vehicle access impacts are considered to be less than significant.

3.41.2 Finding

For the foregoing reasons, the Project will have a less-than-significant impact on transportation resulting
from inadequate emergency vehicle access.

3.42 Transportation—Cumulative (Local Roadways and Freeway Interchanges)

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 19 for an analysis of cumulative impacts related to transportation, local
roadways and freeway interchanges.

3.42.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding

The Draft EIR tiers off the analysis included in the SAP EIR for the cumulative impacts analysis. The SAP EIR
identified significant and unavoidable cumulative level-of-service impacts on local roadways and freeway
interchanges. However, with adoption of SB 743 by the California legislature in 2013 and the addition of
Section 15064.3 into the State CEQA Guidelines, traffic level-of-service impacts are no longer considered
significant. The Project will not create new cumulatively considerable transportation impacts that were not
considered in the SAP EIR. Therefore, cumulative transportation impacts have been adequately addressed in
the SAP EIR.

3.42.2 Finding
For the foregoing reasons, the Project will have less-than-significant cumulative level-of-service impacts on

local roadways and freeway interchanges due to the adoption of SB 743 by the California legislature in 2013
and the addition of Section 15064.3 into the State CEQA Guidelines.

3.43 Utilities and Service Systems and Energy—Require the Construction or
Relocation of Utility Facilities

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 17 for an analysis of impacts to utilities and service systems and energy,
including from construction or relocation of utility facilities (Impact 17-1).

3-30 FES1026220700SAC
94



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

3.43.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
Water Supply

The Project includes the extension of a new fire protection water supply line to the western property to
supply new fire hydrants. The new water supply line will extend approximately 1 mile south along Fiddyment
Road from the roadway’s intersection with Athens Avenue to the intersection with Sunset Boulevard.

The installation of the new pipeline will require a trench to be excavated within Fiddyment Road. This
excavation may require the closure of one lane during the construction period, which will result in minor
vehicle delays. The excavation will expose soils to erosion during the construction period, though the trench
will be refilled following pipeline installation, and construction will be limited to a single construction season.
Further, best management practices (BMPs) intended to address the potential for violating water quality
standards or waste discharge requirements, or otherwise substantially degrading surface or ground water
quality similar to the BMPs identified in Chapter 12, Hydrology and Water Quality, of the Draft EIR will be
implemented for excavation activities associated with expanding existing water infrastructure. Therefore,
expansion of the existing water supply infrastructure as a result of the Project’s solid waste management
activities will result in a less-than-significant impact.

The potable water demand associated with the complementary and programmatic elements is expected to
increase as a result of the Project when compared with current demand. The project-level complementary
elements will be expected to increase potable water demand to 0.02 mgd, and the programmatic elements
will increase demand to 0.12 mgd. Sufficient water supplies are available to meet this demand, and the
Foothill and Sunset water treatment plants have capacity to treat 2.5 mgd of additional water to support
buildout of the SAP and PRSP (Placer County 2018). Therefore, additional supplies and treatment capacity
will not be required for the complementary and programmatic elements, resulting in a less-than-significant
impact.

Wastewater

Expansion of the composting and public waste drop-off operations in the center property will require
installation of a new wastewater line extending from Athens Avenue to Sunset Boulevard within Fiddyment
Road.

The new wastewater pipeline will be installed parallel to the required fire protection water line. The
installation of the new pipeline will require a trench to be excavated within Fiddyment Road. This excavation
will likely require the closure of one lane during the construction period, which will result in minor vehicle
delays. The excavation will also expose soils to erosion during the construction period, though the trench will
be refilled following pipeline installation, and construction will be limited to a single construction season.
Further, BMPs intended to address the potential for violating water quality standards or waste discharge
requirements, or otherwise substantially degrading surface or ground water quality similar to the BMPs
identified in Chapter 12 of the Draft EIR, Hydrology and Water Quality, will be implemented for excavation
activities associated with expanding existing water infrastructure. Therefore, expansion of the existing
wastewater infrastructure as a result of the Project’s solid waste management activities will result in a less-
than- significant impact.

The wastewater generated by the complementary and programmatic elements is expected to increase as a
result of the proposed project when compared with current generation. When combining expanded
operations with the project-level and programmatic building space, the Project will be expected to resultin a
total generation of nearly 0.08 mgd. However, there is sufficient treatment capacity to accommodate this
increase at Pleasant Grove WWTP, and new treatment infrastructure will not be required (Placer County
2018). Therefore, this will also be considered a less-than-significant impact.

FES1026220700SAC 3-31
95



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

Reclaimed Water

There is an existing recycled water line, or purple pipe, from the City of Lincoln’s wastewater treatment plant
(WWTP) that currently conveys recycled water from the WWTP to the agricultural operations on the
WPWMA'’s western property. This line does not currently provide recycled water to the center property or
any onsite solid waste management facilities. However, under the Project, it is anticipated that reclaimed
water may be periodically used in the composting process and as landscape irrigation and dust control in lieu
of other onsite non-potable water supplies, as needed and permitted. This is expected to require the
installation of a new connection to the existing purple pipe, as well as an elevated secondary tank on the
center property near the existing southern compost pond. The excavation for the trench will likely require the
closure of one lane during the construction period, which will result in minor vehicle delays. The excavation
for the trench and any grading required for the elevated tank will also expose soils to erosion during the
construction period, though the trench will be refilled following pipeline installation, and construction for
both facilities will be limited to a single construction season. Further, BMPs intended to address the potential
for violating water quality standards or waste discharge requirements, or otherwise substantially degrading
surface or ground water quality similar to the BMPs identified in Chapter 12 of the Draft EIR, Hydrology and
Water Quality, will be implemented for excavation activities associated with expanding existing water
infrastructure. Therefore, expansion of the existing reclaimed water infrastructure as a result of the Project’s
solid waste management activities will result in a less-than-significant impact.

The recycled water demand associated with the complementary and programmatic elements is expected to
increase as a result of the proposed project when compared with current demand. However, the expected
supply of reclaimed water from the City of Lincoln’s WWTP is expected to exceed demand through 2045 (City
of Lincoln 2021), so only the new infrastructure required for solid waste management operations will be
required to convey the reclaimed water to its point of use. Therefore, additional supplies and treatment
capacity will not be required for the complementary and programmatic elements, resulting in a less-than-
significant impact.

Electricity and Natural Gas

The Project will increase the demand for electricity and possibly establish a need for natural gas; there are
existing and planned facilities nearby, such as the Athens substation and Placer Ranch substation. Natural gas
needs, if any, are expected to be met with existing or planned infrastructure. Wiring and tie-ins to existing and
future lines may be warranted; however, because the project location has access to electricity, ground
disturbance is not expected to be significant. Additionally, the SAP EIR concludes that there is sufficient
capacity in existing and future infrastructure to meet the demands of the SAP (Placer County 2019). As such,
impacts associated with implementation of the Project related to the construction or relocation of electricity
infrastructure will result in a less-than-significant impact.

Telecommunications

There are numerous existing fiber-optic telecommunications lines in the project area, including Sprint and
AT&T lines, which run directly through the project site along Fiddyment Road. The Project does not include
any proposed uses that will conflict with these existing telecommunication lines. Therefore, the relocation of
telecommunication lines will not be required or expected with implementation of the Project. The extension
of these lines may be necessary to accommodate specific uses on the project site, such as the proposed
complementary and programmatic elements. However, these extensions are expected to occur alongside
construction of those new uses and will not in and of themselves be expected to cause significant physical
disturbance or unique environmental impacts. As such, impacts associated with implementation of the
Project related to the construction or relocation of telecommunications infrastructure will result in a less-
than-significant impact.

3-32 FES1026220700SAC
96



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

3.43.2 Finding

For the foregoing reasons, the Project will have a less-than-significant impact on utilities and service systems
and energy resulting from construction or relocation of utility facilities.

3.44 Utilities and Service Systems and Energy—Have Sufficient Water Supplies

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 17 for an analysis of impacts to utilities and service systems and energy,
including having sufficient water supplies (Impact 17-2).

3.44.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding

In compliance with SB 610, Placer County Water Agency (PCWA) conducted a water supply assessment
(WSA) of available surface water supplies and expected demand of the full buildout of the SAP, which
includes the proposed project. The PCWA WSA for the SAP, which reflects the conclusion of the 2015 PCWA
Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP) and is consistent with the analysis and conclusions of the
subsequent 2020 UWMP, concluded that PCWA has sufficient existing water supply to meet existing and
planned future demand of development at buildout of the Sunset Area during normal, single dry, and multiple
dry water years (PCWA 2016; PCWA 2017). Therefore, although increases in potable and reclaimed water
demand will be expected as a result of Project implementation, including solid waste management operations
and the complementary and programmatic elements, no additional water rights, contracts, or entitlements
will be required for the Project, resulting in a less-than-significant impact.

3.44.2 Finding

For the foregoing reasons, the Project will have a less-than-significant impact on utilities and service systems
and energy resulting from having sufficient water supplies.

3.45 Utilities and Service Systems and Energy—Have Adequate Wastewater
Treatment Capacity

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 17 for an analysis of impacts to utilities and service systems and energy,
including impacts from having adequate wastewater treatment capacity (Impact 17-3).

3.45.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding

Operation of the Project is expected to result in the generation of approximately 0.08 mgd of wastewater per
day by 2050, including solid waste management operations and the complementary and programmatic
elements. This wastewater will be treated at Pleasant Grove WWTP in the City of Roseville. The Pleasant
Grove WWTP currently has the capacity to treat 9.5 mgd but is permitted to treat up to 12 mgd. An expansion
of the existing facilities to reach the permitted limit is currently underway (City of Roseville 2020). These
improvements are being implemented largely in anticipation of buildout of both the SAP and PRSP, which are
expected to generate a combined total of nearly 5.8 mgd of wastewater at full buildout, which would exceed
the plant’s current capacity (Placer County 2019). This expansion is intended to accommodate full buildout,
including the Project, which accounts for 0.08 percent and 0.5 percent of the anticipated increases in
wastewater generation for the solid waste management operations and complementary and programmatic
elements, respectively. As a result, the Project will have a less-than-significant impact.

3.45.2 Finding

For the foregoing reasons, the Project will have a less-than-significant impact on utilities and service systems
and energy resulting from having adequate wastewater treatment capacity.

FES1026220700SAC 3-33
97



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

3.46 Utilities and Service Systems and Energy—Generate Solid Waste in Excess of
Standards or Infrastructure Capacity or Impair the Attainment of Solid
Waste Reduction Goals

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 17 for an analysis of impacts to utilities and service systems and energy,
including impacts from generating solid waste in excess of standards or infrastructure capacity or impairing
the attainment of solid waste reduction goals (Impact 17-4).

3.46.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding

Construction-related wastes will be expected during project construction; however, construction contractors
will be required to dispose of construction waste in accordance with federal, state, and local regulations as a
requirement of project construction contract specifications. Solid waste generated at the project location
during project operations will be consistent with current generation patterns, which are primarily limited to
food and sanitary waste from employees onsite. These activities will not generate solid waste in excess of
standards or infrastructure capacity. The impacts will therefore be less than significant.

The Project is expected to extend the operational life of the current WPWMA facility; expand the site’s
capacity to divert materials from landfill disposal and contribute to greenhouse gas emission reductions; and
increase the WRSL’s permitted capacity to accommodate anticipated long-term growth before the permitted
landfill capacity is exhausted in 2058 (California Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery
[CalRecycle] 2021). Further, the Project is intended to support the attainment of solid waste-related goals and
standards. As a result, implementation of the Project will not impair the attainment of solid waste reduction
goals and this impact will be less than significant.

3.46.2 Finding
For the foregoing reasons, the Project will have a less-than-significant impact on utilities and service systems

and energy resulting from generating solid waste in excess of standards or infrastructure capacity or
impairing the attainment of solid waste reduction goals.

3.47 Utilities and Service Systems and Energy—Comply with Solid Waste
Reduction Statutes and Regulations

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 17 for an analysis of impacts to utilities and service systems and energy,
including compliance with solid waste reduction statutes and regulations (Impact 17-5).

3.47.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding

The Project is intended to both comply with and support the attainment of solid waste-related goals and
standards, including solid waste reduction measures. As a result, implementation of the Project will result in
no impact.

3.47.2 Finding

For the foregoing reasons, the Project will have a less-than-significant impact on utilities and service systems
and energy, including compliance with solid waste reduction statutes and regulations.

3-34 FES1026220700SAC
98



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

3.48 Utilities and Service Systems and Energy—Result in Wasteful, Inefficient, or
Unnecessary Consumption of Energy Resources

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 17 for an analysis of impacts to utilities and service systems and energy,
including from wasteful, inefficient, or unnecessary consumption of energy resources (Impact 17-6).

3.48.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding

The Project will result in increased consumption of energy resources as detailed in Table 17-4 of the Draft
EIR. Although an increase in energy consumption is anticipated, use of energy is necessary to provide
expanded solid waste services to the region as population rises. Additionally, the Project is expected to
implement efficient energy technologies and building concepts as the Project is designed and constructed.

Because the increased energy use is necessary to accommodate solid waste services for regional growth and
the changing regulatory climate, and the Project provides opportunities for renewable energy production
from LFG, implementation of the Project will have a less-than-significant impact.

3.48.2 Finding

For the foregoing reasons, the Project will have a less-than-significant impact on utilities and service systems
and energy resulting from wasteful, inefficient, or unnecessary consumption of energy resources.

3.49 Utilities and Service Systems and Energy—Conflict with a State or Local Plan
for Renewable Energy or Energy Efficiency

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 17 for an analysis of impacts to utilities and service systems and energy,
including from conflict with a state or local plan for renewable energy or energy efficiency (Impact 17-7).

3.49.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding

Implementation of the Project will result in an increase in energy consumption because of the need for
expanded solid waste services to accommodate regional growth and regulatory climate change. The Project
will include use of energy-efficient and renewable energy technology within the planned solid waste project
elements as well as the planned complementary and programmatic elements. The WPWMA facility currently
includes an LFG-to-energy plant on the premises; the Project will result in increased LFG generation,
providing additional opportunities to produce more electricity from LFG or to implement new renewable
energy technologies to convert LFG to compressed natural gas or other renewable energy products.
Furthermore, there is the potential for the WPWMA to use the renewable energy produced at the facility to
power site operations.

The Project will also comply with California Green Building Standards (CALGreen) building standards for
nonresidential buildings, with plans to manage environmental impacts of site development and implement
energy-efficient building concepts. The existing facility and the Project comply with many green building
standards, such as material conservation and resource efficiency with the collocation of the MRF building,
C&D area, and other Waste Recovery facilities onsite.

The Project is being implemented to further the objectives of the Waste Action Plan (WPWMA 2020).
Compliance with plans for renewable energy and energy efficiency is expected; therefore, implementation of
the Project will result in no impact.

FES1026220700SAC 3-35
99



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

3.49.2 Finding

For the foregoing reasons, the Project will have a less-than-significant impact on utilities and service systems
and energy resulting from conflict with a state or local plan for renewable energy or energy efficiency.

3.50 Utilities and Energy—Cumulative

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 19 for an analysis of cumulative impacts on utilities and energy.

3.50.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding

The Draft EIR tiers off the analysis included in the SAP EIR for the cumulative impacts analysis. The Project
will not create new cumulatively considerable public utility or energy impacts that were not considered in the
SAP EIR. The Project does not include any uses that were not considered in the SAP EIR for the project site.
Therefore, cumulative public utility and energy impacts have been adequately addressed in the SAP EIR.

3.50.2 Finding

For the foregoing reasons, the Project will have a less-than-significant cumulative impact on utilities and
energy.

3-36 FES1026220700SAC
100



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

4. Potential Environmental Impacts that have Been
Mitigated to a Level of Insignificance

4.1 Air Quality—Consistency with Applicable Air Quality Plans

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 6 for an analysis of impacts to air quality, including potential impacts from
consistency with applicable air quality plans (Impact 6-1).

4.1.1 Potential Effect and Rationale Supporting Finding

The construction and operation of the solid waste elements, complementary and programmatic elements, and
supporting elements under the Project will have the potential to exceed PCAPCD’s numerical thresholds of
significance for emissions of the ozone precursor nitric oxide and nitrogen dioxide (NOx), particulate matter
with diameter of 10 micrometers or less (PM10), and particulate matter with diameter of 2.5 micrometers or
less (PM2.5). These emissions increases could contribute to the existing nonattainment status of Placer
County and the Sacramento Air Valley Basin (SVAB) region with respect to CAAQS and NAAQS for ozone, the
CAAQS for PM10, and the NAAQS for PM2.5, and could impede air quality planning efforts to bring the air
basin into attainment of the health-protective NAAQS and CAAQS.

The results of this analysis indicate that the Project will potentially conflict with implementation of the
applicable air quality plans.

4.1.2 Required Mitigation Measures

The following required mitigation measure will reduce impacts associated with the Project to less-than-
significant levels:

Mitigation Measure 6-1: Consistency with applicable air quality plans

Through the air permitting process and implementation of BMPs and project design measures in Table 6-1 of
the Draft EIR, the WPWMA shall work with the PCAPCD to provide information on the construction and
operation of the solid waste elements, complementary and programmatic elements, and supporting elements
under the proposed project. The emissions estimates prepared to support this CEQA air quality impact
analysis are based on many conservative assumptions (as described in the sections to follow and in Appendix
C.2 of the Draft EIR) to allow flexibility as the project elements move forward through planning, design,
funding, and implementation. The methodology for this air quality and environmental assessment is
consistent with the CEQA Handbook that PCAPCD prepared for evaluation and mitigation of projects in Placer
County (PCAPCD 2017a). Current results and conclusions were based on criteria used by PCAPCD to evaluate
potential air quality impacts, using PCAPCD-recommended emissions calculation methods, significance
thresholds, and mitigation strategies. All projects in Placer County are subject to PCAPCD’s adopted rules and
regulations. Specific local air quality rules applicable to implementation of the proposed project have been
evaluated for applicability to the project elements, and results show that the proposed project elements (solid
waste elements, complementary and programmatic elements, and supporting elements) will comply with
applicable regulatory and permitting requirements.

MRF Operations Design Concept Evaluation

As described in Chapter 3 of the Draft EIR, Project Description, and Chapter 4 of the Draft EIR, Approach,
proposed changes to MRF operations could be implemented under the Project and would potentially result in
changes in project-related air emissions and the potential for odor generation, primarily due to accelerated
and expanded diversion of organic material, including the OFMSW processed in the MRF, for composting in

FES1026220700SAC 4-1
101



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

CASP composting systems and increased recovery and diversion of recyclables. Changes may also involve
addition of an enclosed building for organics receipt and processing. This would reduce the amount and
organic content of waste residuals sent to the landfill. Diversion of more OFMSW from the landfill within a
faster timeframe would correspond to a near-term (next 10 years) reduction in LFG production, including
reduced emissions of fugitive LFG and associated odors.

Mitigation Measure 6-1 requires the WPWMA to work with the PCAPCD to provide information on the
construction and operation of the Project through the air permitting process and implementation of BMPs
and project design measures in Table 6-1 of the Draft EIR. The emissions estimates prepared to support this
CEQA air quality impact analysis are based on many conservative assumptions to allow flexibility as the
project elements move forward through planning, design, funding, and implementation.

The PCAPCD recently issued permits to the WPWMA related to ASP composting; however, these permits
would likely require updates as the Project proceeds. The enclosed building for organics processing, if
constructed, would be equipped with an odor control system that may require permitting by the PCAPCD as a
stationary source. As the permitting process is undertaken, the WPWMA facility would continue to comply
with applicable regulatory and permitting requirements.

Based on this qualitative review, the proposed MRF operations design concept changes would be covered
under the current assumptions of this air quality impact analysis, and the conclusions of the project-level
analysis related to consistency with applicable air quality plans would not change.

4.1.3 Finding

Ongoing evaluation of construction and operation of the solid waste elements, complementary and
programmatic elements, and supporting elements under the Project shall be conducted to confirm
compliance with BMPs, project design measures, and applicable PCAPCD rules and regulations, as project
elements are designed, permitted, and implemented. This impact will be less than significant after mitigation.
For the foregoing reasons, the Board adopts Finding 1.

4.2 Biological Resources—Impacts on Special-Status Plant Species

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 7 for an analysis of impacts to biological resources, including impacts to
special-status plant species (Impact 7-1).

4.2.1 Potential Effect and Rationale Supporting Finding

Two special-status plant species, dwarf downingia and legenere, have been documented within 5 miles of the
Project. One of these, dwarf downingia, was determined to be present within the project area. During the May
2017 floristic surveys, a population of dwarf downingia was observed in a large vernal pool located at the
western edge of the eastern property. Several hundred plants were observed (Figure 7-4 of the Draft EIR).

Implementation of the Project will result in direct permanent impacts on dwarf downingia and its habitat as a
result of ground disturbance, vegetation clearing, and development of the eastern property. Populations of
dwarf downingia or other special-status plant species that are adjacent to or hydrologically connected to the
project area could be indirectly affected. Direct and indirect impacts on special-status plant species will be
significant.

4.2.2 Required Mitigation Measures

The following required mitigation measure will reduce impacts associated with the Project to less-than-
significant levels:

4-2 FES1026220700SAC
102



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

Mitigation Measure 7-1: Impacts on Special-Status Plant Species

The WPWMA proposes to implement the Project as a Covered Activity under the PCCP and Western Placer
County Aquatic Resources Program (CARP) to compensate for any loss of special-status plants. In the absence
of avoidance, minimization, and mitigation measures established by the PCCP for rare plants, WPWMA will
implement the Placer County SAP Policy NR-2.1: Special-Status Plant Species Protection, and SAP Program
NR-5: Special-Status Plant Species Protection Guidelines, to mitigate for the loss of special-status plant
species. The WPWMA will retain qualified botanists to conduct protocol-level botanical surveys. The
Guidelines, at a minimum, will require the following:

All plant species encountered on the project site will be identified to the taxonomic level necessary to
determine species status.

The surveys will be conducted no more than 5 years prior and no later than the blooming period
immediately preceding the approval of a grading or improvement plan or any ground-disturbing
activities, including grubbing or clearing.

If special-status plants are identified on the project site, the project applicants will be required to
implement the following measures to mitigate the potential loss of special-status plant species:

Avoid special-status plant occurrences through project design to the extent technically feasible and
appropriate. Avoidance will be deemed technically feasible and appropriate if the habitat occupied by
special-status plants may be preserved onsite while still obtaining the Project purpose and objectives
and if the preserved habitat features could reasonably be expected to continue to function as suitable
habitat for special-status plants following project implementation.

If, after examining all feasible means to avoid impacts to potential special-status plant species habitat
through project site planning and design, adverse effects cannot be avoided, then impacts will be
mitigated in accordance with guidance from the appropriate state or federal agency charged with the
protection of the subject species.

Notify the California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW), as required by the California Native
Plant Protection Act, if any special-status plants are found on the project site. Notify the Unites States
Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) if any plant species listed under the Endangered Species Act are
found.

Develop a mitigation and monitoring plan (MMP) to compensate for the loss of special-status plant
species found during preconstruction surveys, if any. The MMP will be submitted to CDFW and/or
USFWS, as appropriate depending on species status, for review and comment. WPWMA will consult
with these entities, as appropriate, depending on species status. Mitigation measures may include
preserving and enhancing existing onsite populations, creation of offsite populations on project
mitigation sites through seed collection or transplantation and preserving occupied habitat offsite in
sufficient quantities to offset loss of occupied habitat or individuals.

If transplantation is part of the mitigation plan, the plan will include a description and map of
mitigation sites, details on the methods to be used, including collection, storage, propagation,
receptor site preparation, installation, long-term protection and management, monitoring and
reporting requirements, remedial action responsibilities should the initial effort fail to meet long-
term monitoring requirements, and sources of funding to purchase, manage, and preserve the sites.
The following performance standards will be applied:

e The extent of occupied area and the flower density in compensatory re-established populations
will be equal to or greater than the affected occupied habitat and will be self-producing. Re-
established populations will be considered self-producing when:

o Plants re-establish annually for a minimum of 5 years with no human intervention, such as
supplemental seeding.

FES1026220700SAC 4-3

103



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

o Re-established habitats contain an occupied area and flower density comparable to existing
occupied habitat areas in similar habitat types.

= [f offsite mitigation includes dedication of conservation easements, purchase of mitigation credits, or
other offsite conservation measures, the details of these measures will be included in the mitigation plan,
including information on responsible parties for long-term management, conservation easement holders,
long-term management requirements, and other details, as appropriate to target the preservation of
long-term viable populations.

4.2.3 Finding
The protection and restoration guided by the PCCP’s goals, objectives, conservation measures, and conditions
will compensate for the loss of special-status plant species, and preserved habitat will be managed in

perpetuity, thereby reducing these effects to a less-than-significant level. For the foregoing reasons, the Board
adopts Finding 1.

4.3 Biological Resources—Impacts on Vernal Pool Branchiopods and Western
Spadefoot

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 7 for an analysis of impacts to biological resources, including impacts on
vernal pool branchiopods and western spadefoot (Impact 7-2).

4.3.1 Potential Effect and Rationale Supporting Finding

Vernal pool complexes containing vernal pools, vernal pool-type wetlands, and the vernal pool immediate
watershed provide habitat for vernal pool fairy shrimp, vernal pool tadpole shrimp, and western spadefoot.
The loss of vernal pool complex habitat could result in potential take of vernal pool fairy shrimp, vernal pool

tadpole shrimp, or western spadefoot, and loss of habitat for these species.

The direct and indirect impacts on vernal pool fairy shrimp, vernal pool tadpole shrimp, and western
spadefoot will be significant.

4.3.2 Required Mitigation Measures

The following required mitigation measure will reduce impacts associated with the Project to less-than-
significant levels:

Mitigation Measure 7-2: Impacts on Vernal Pool Branchiopods and Western Spadefoot

The WPWMA proposes to implement the Project as a Covered Activity under the PCCP and CARP to
compensate for loss of vernal pool fairy shrimp and vernal pool tadpole shrimp habitat. Although western
spadefoot is not covered under the PCCP, implementation of the PCCP will reduce impacts on western
spadefoot because the species requires the protection of vernal pool complex habitat for survival, and this
habitat will be protected for vernal pool fairy shrimp and vernal pool tadpole shrimp. The protection of
vernal pool complex habitat, and vernal pool branchiopods and western spadefoot by proxy, will be
supported by the following conditions from the PCCP (Placer County 2020b) (Appendix D of the Draft EIR):

= General Condition 1, Watershed Hydrology and Water Quality
=  General Condition 3, Land Conversion
= General Condition 4, Temporary Effects

= General Condition 5, Conduct Worker Training

4-4 FES1026220700SAC
104



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

= Regional Public Projects Condition 3, Operations and Maintenance best management practices (BMPs)

=  Species Condition 10, Vernal Pool Fairy Shrimp and Vernal Pool Tadpole Shrimp

Covered Activities will be assessed fees based on the parameters described in Chapter 9, Costs and Funding,
and as summarized in Tables 9-6 and 9-7 of the PCCP HCP/NCCP (Placer County 2020c). Special habitat fees
(Table 9-7 of the PCCP HCP/NCCP) are variable depending on the special habitat type and will be paid in
addition to land conversion fees. In the Central Valley, the fees will be applied when projects affect natural,
seminatural, and other agricultural communities.

4.3.3 Finding

The Project will be implemented as a Covered Activity under the PCCP and CARP, and the project’s special-
status vernal pool branchiopods and western spadefoot impacts will be fully mitigated. Implementation of the
PCCP is expected to reduce biological resource impacts to a much greater degree than will occur with project-
by-project mitigation by developing a large, managed, and monitored reserve area that will provide vernal
pool and associated habitat restoration, and open space and agricultural conservation in perpetuity, rather
than smaller, more fragmented and isolated reserves surrounded by urban development. Additionally, its
avoidance, minimization, and mitigation requirements also will support the reduction of potential indirect
significant effects. The PCCP is specifically designed to support species recovery in addition to mitigating for
direct and indirect species impacts. For these reasons, the project’s impacts on special-status vernal pool
branchiopods and western spadefoot will be reduced to less than significant with implementation of the PCCP
and CARP. For the foregoing reasons, the Board adopts Finding 1.

4.4 Biological Resources—Impacts on Valley Elderberry Longhorn Beetle

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 7 for an analysis of impacts to biological resources, including impacts on
Valley Elderberry Longhorn Beetle (Impact 7-3).

441 Potential Effect and Rationale Supporting Finding

Scattered elderberry shrubs occur in the southwestern corner of the center property. Implementation of the
Project could result in the removal of elderberry shrubs that could potentially provide habitat for valley
elderberry longhorn beetle and take of individual valley elderberry longhorn beetles could occur. Indirect
impacts from ground-disturbing activities or use of herbicides near shrubs also could result in decline of
elderberry shrubs. Direct removal of elderberry shrubs or disturbance that affects shrubs’ health or survival
will be considered a significant impact because of the effects on valley elderberry longhorn beetles.

4.4.2 Required Mitigation Measures

The following required mitigation measure will reduce impacts associated with the Project to less-than-
significant levels:

Mitigation Measure 7-3: Impacts on Valley Elderberry Longhorn Beetle

Valley elderberry longhorn beetle is a Covered Species under the PCCP. Potential impacts on this species will
be mitigated by implementing the PCCP conservation strategy. The PCCP conservation strategy includes
survey and impact minimization and avoidance requirements for Covered Species, other conditions on
Covered Activities to achieve conservation goals and objectives for Covered Species and natural communities,
establishment of a habitat reserve system, and long-term conservation and management of habitats in the
reserve system. The protection and restoration of valley elderberry longhorn beetle habitat within the project
area will be supported by the following conditions from the PCCP (Placer County 2020d) (Appendix D of the
Draft EIR):

FES1026220700SAC 4-5
105



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

= General Condition 4, Temporary Effects
*  General Condition 5, Conduct Worker Training
= Regional Public Projects Condition 3, Operations and Maintenance BMPs

= Species Condition 8, Valley Elderberry Longhorn Beetle
4.4.3 Finding

Implementation of the PCCP conservation strategy for valley elderberry longhorn beetle will reduce impacts
on valley elderberry longhorn beetle to a less-than-significant level. For the foregoing reasons, the Board
adopts Finding 1.

4.5 Biological Resources—Impacts on Special-Status Bird Species, Including
Raptors

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 7 for an analysis of impacts to biological resources, including impacts on
special-status bird species and raptors (Impact 7-4).

4.5.1 Potential Effect and Rationale Supporting Finding

Construction activities, such as ground disturbance and vegetation removal, and the conversion of suitable
habitat to developed uses could result in the disturbance or loss of special-status bird species (including
burrowing owl, Swainson’s hawk, Northern harrier, White-tailed kite, Tricolored blackbird, Grasshopper
sparrow, and bird species protected by the Migratory Bird Treaty Act) and reduced breeding productivity of
these species. Special-status bird species are protected under the Federal Endangered Species Act (FESA), the
California Endangered Species Act (CESA), Fish and Game Code (FGC), CEQA, the Migratory Bird Treaty Act
(MBTA), or other regulations. This will be a significant impact.

4.5.2 Required Mitigation Measures
Mitigation Measure 7-4: Impacts on Special-Status Bird Species, Including Raptors

Burrowing owl, Swainson’s hawk, and tricolored blackbird are classified as Covered Species under the PCCP.
Potential impacts on these species will be mitigated through implementation of the PCCP conservation
strategy. The PCCP conservation strategy includes survey and impact minimization and avoidance
requirements for Covered Species, other conditions on Covered Activities to achieve conservation goals and
objectives for Covered Species and natural communities, establishment of a habitat reserve system, and long-
term conservation and management of habitats in the reserve system. The protection and restoration of
burrowing owl, Swainson’s hawk, and tricolored blackbird within the project area will be supported by the
following conditions from the PCCP (Placer County 2020d) (Appendix D of the Draft EIR):

= General Condition 1, Watershed Hydrology and Water Quality

= General Condition 4, Temporary Effects

= General Condition 5, Conduct Worker Training

= Regional Public Projects Condition 3, Operation and Maintenance BMPs
= Species Condition 3, Western Burrowing Owl

= Species Condition 4, Tricolored Blackbird

= Species Condition 1, Swainson’s Hawk

4-6 FES1026220700SAC
106



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

4.5.3 Finding

Implementation of the PCCP conservation strategy will mitigate the loss of individuals and nests of special-
status bird species, including raptors. With implementation of the PCCP, the Project will not substantially
affect the distribution, breeding productivity, viability, or regional population of these species. Therefore,
potential impacts will be reduced to a less-than-significant level. For the foregoing reasons, the Board adopts
Finding 1.

4.6 Biological Resources—Impacts on Wetlands or Other Sensitive Natural
Communities

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 7 for an analysis of impacts to biological resources, including impacts on
wetlands or other sensitive natural communities (Impact 7-5).

4.6.1 Potential Effect and Rationale Supporting Finding

Implementation of the Project will result in the direct loss of jurisdictional waters of the United States,
including wetlands that may be subject to United States Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) jurisdiction under
the federal Clean Water Act (CWA). This impact will be significant.

4.6.2 Required Mitigation Measures

The following required mitigation measure will reduce impacts associated with the Project to less-than-
significant levels:

Mitigation Measure 7-5: Impacts on Wetlands or Other Sensitive Natural Communities

The anticipated permanent impacts to wetlands will be offset through a watershed-based approach as
described in the CARP (Placer County, 2020c). Both the HCP/NCCP and CARP require compensatory
mitigation for wetland impacts to be implemented at 1.5:1 through payment into an In-Lieu Fee (ILF)
Program or purchase of mitigation credits at an agency-approved mitigation bank, or through land
dedications in lieu of fee payments. Most of this mitigation will be achieved through the enhancement
(rehabilitation) of wetlands and waters, and creation (establishment) or restoration (re-establishment) of
2,715 acres of constituent habitats that will be considered protected wetlands and waters (Placer County
2020b). Overall, the proposed wetland mitigation in the CARP will maintain or improve the functions and
services of wetlands, including special aquatic sites, within the larger PCCP area.

The PCCP includes several objectives and conservation measures to prevent net loss of functions and services
within the larger PCCP area. These objectives and measures will allow preserved, enhanced, and established
and re-established wetlands and waters to maintain or improve the physical, chemical, and biological
processes of wetlands in these landscapes, including nutrient cycling, vegetation structure, plant and animal
diversity, habitat for rare or listed species, and habitat linkages and corridors. The services that these
wetlands provide will include such benefits as flood control, groundwater recharge, and maintenance of
water quality in receiving waters. The protection and restoration of protected wetlands and waters within the
project area will be supported by the following conditions from the PCCP (Placer County 2020d) (Appendix D
of Draft EIR):

= General Condition 1, Watershed Hydrology and Water Quality
=  General Condition 3, Land Conversion
= General Condition 4, Temporary Effects

= Regional Public Project Condition 3, Operation and Maintenance BMPs

FES1026220700SAC 4-7
107



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

The CARP provides additional specific avoidance and minimization measures, summarized in Table 4.2 of that
document (Placer County 2020Db).

The PCCP objectives, conservation measures, and conditions establish performance standards for measuring
the effectiveness of proposed conservation actions. The acres of protection and restoration and the
commitment to ratios established in the CARP satisfy the typical mitigation that will be applied to the project
impacts, as well as mitigating the effects of the other conservation measures. The proposed conditions further
demonstrate the intent to avoid and minimize effects and to maintain or improve wetland and water
functions and services over the life of the PCCP.

Consistent with SAP Program NR-4, PCCP, and CARP, the Project will delineate all aquatic resources,
implement all feasible avoidance and minimization measures described in the PCCP and CARP, calculate the
extent of impacts, and provide compensatory mitigation according to the procedures described in the PCCP
and CARP through payment of applicable mitigation fees to the ILF Program or purchase of mitigation credits
at an agency-approved mitigation bank. The PCCP may allow for consideration of land dedication in lieu of
PCCP fees, subject to approval by the future Placer Conservation Authority and concurrence by the state and
federal agencies. The fees collected through the ILF Program will be used to fund land acquisition; mitigation
projects that protect, enhance, and restore aquatic resources; and long-term management and monitoring in
the PCCP Reserve Acquisition Areas.

4.6.3 Finding

Implementation of the PCCP conservation strategy will reduce impacts on wetlands and other sensitive
natural communities. With implementation of the PCCP, the natural community creation, enhancement,
restoration, and protection activities in the PCCP and mitigation commitments under the CARP, which
includes a commitment to mitigate at a 1.5:1 for wetlands, are more than sufficient to support the conclusion
that the impacts on wetlands will be reduced to less than significant. The permitting requirements of the
USACE through the CWA will also require natural community creation, enhancement, restoration, and
protection activities sufficient to prevent net loss of wetland resources. For the foregoing reasons, the Board
adopts Finding 1.

4.7 Biological Resources— Conflicts with Local Ordinances

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 7 for an analysis of impacts to biological resources, including from conflicts
with local ordinances (Impact 7-7).

4.71 Potential Effect and Rationale Supporting Finding

The project site has limited areas with landscape or non-native trees, including within the center property
and near the residence on the western property. Tree damage or removal associated with project
implementation could conflict with the County Tree Ordinance. This impact will be significant.

4.7.2 Required Mitigation Measures

Mitigation Measure 7-7: Conflicts with Local Ordinances

Actions consistent with the following measure from the SAP will be implemented so that the Project does not
conflict with the County Tree Ordinance:

SAP Mitigation Measure 4.4-7a: Avoid or compensate for loss of protected trees.

4-8 FES1026220700SAC
108



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

= The County will require future projects, including for offsite improvements, to avoid tree removal or
death if feasible and appropriate, through incorporation of these features into project design and
planning.

= All trees retained onsite will be protected from construction-related impacts by placing exclusion fencing
1 foot outside the drip line of retained trees, or 1 foot outside the outer edge of the riparian woodland
habitat and maintaining said fencing through the duration of construction.

= Ifany trees protected under the County ordinance cannot feasibly be avoided, they will be mitigated
through the payment of PCCP land conversion fees and incorporation of its avoidance and minimization
measures into the Project.

4.7.3 Finding

Implementation of actions consistent with SAP Mitigation Measure 4.4-7a will reduce significant impacts
related to conflicts with County ordinances and policies protecting biological resources to a less-than-
significant level because it will require the Project to avoid protected trees, if feasible, and will require
compensation for unavoidable loss of protected trees consistent with the PCCP. For the foregoing reasons,
the Board adopts Finding 1.

4.8 Cultural and Tribal Cultural Resources—Disturbance of Tribal Cultural
Resources Discovered during Construction

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 8 for an analysis of impacts to cultural and tribal cultural resources, from
disturbance of tribal cultural resources discovered during construction (Impact 8-2).

4.8.1 Potential Effect and Rationale Supporting Finding

No known tribal cultural resources are located in the project APE. However, there is a low to moderate
potential for encountering isolated Native American artifacts or buried archaeological deposits, associated
human remains, and tribal cultural resources during project-related ground disturbance. Ground-disturbing
activities associated with the solid waste project elements and complementary and programmatic elements
could result in the disturbance, disruption, or destruction of tribal cultural resources as defined in PRC
Section 21074. This impact will be considered significant.

4.8.2 Required Mitigation Measures

Mitigation Measure 8-2: Disturbance of Tribal Cultural Resources Discovered during Construction

If any suspected tribal cultural resources are discovered during ground-disturbing construction activities,
work will cease within 100 feet of the find, or an agreed upon distance based on the project area and nature
of the find. A Tribal Representative from the United Auburn Indian Community of the Auburn Rancheria
(UAIC) will be immediately notified and will determine whether the find is a tribal cultural resource (PRC
Section 21074). The Tribal Representative will make recommendations for further evaluation and treatment
as necessary. Preservation in place is the preferred alternative under CEQA and UAIC protocols, and every
effort must be made to preserve the resources in place, including through project redesign. Culturally
appropriate treatment may include processing materials for reburial, minimizing handling of cultural objects,
leaving objects in place within the landscape, or returning objects to a location within the project area where
they will not be subject to future impacts. UAIC does not consider curation of tribal cultural resources to be
appropriate or respectful and requests that materials not be permanently curated unless approved by the
tribe.

FES1026220700SAC 4-9
109



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

The WPWMA's contractors will implement any measures deemed by the WPWMA to be necessary and
feasible to preserve in place, avoid, or minimize impacts to the resource, including facilitating the appropriate
tribal treatment of the find, as necessary. Treatment that preserves or restores the cultural character and
integrity of a tribal cultural resource may include tribal monitoring, culturally appropriate recovery of
cultural objects, and reburial of cultural objects or cultural soil. Work at the discovery location cannot resume
until the necessary investigation and evaluation of the discovery pursuant to CEQA and Assembly Bill (AB) 52
has been satisfied.

4.8.3 Finding

Implementation of Mitigation Measure 8-2 establishes the required procedures to be followed if tribal
cultural resources are discovered during construction activities, including immediately stopping work within
100 feet of the discovery and coordinating with a Tribal Representative from a California Native American
tribe that is traditionally and culturally affiliated with the geographic area. Because this mitigation will result
in the avoidance of tribal cultural resources if they are discovered, or other appropriate measures (for
example, reburial of cultural objects) will be implemented if avoidance is not possible, the impact will be
reduced to less than significant after mitigation. For the foregoing reasons, the Board adopts Finding 1.

4.9 Cultural and Tribal Cultural Resources—Disturbance of Archaeological
Resources Discovered during Construction

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 8 for an analysis of impacts to cultural and tribal cultural resources,
including from disturbance of archaeological resources discovered during construction (Impact 8-3).

4.9.1 Potential Effect and Rationale Supporting Finding

Archival research indicated that there are no archaeological sites or ethnographic village sites in the project
APE. However, there is a low to moderate potential for encountering isolated Native American artifacts or
buried archaeological deposits, associated human remains, and tribal cultural resources during project-
related ground disturbance. Based on this potential for prior Native American activity within the project area,
ground-disturbing activities associated with the solid waste project elements and complementary and
programmatic elements could result in the disturbance, disruption, or destruction of previously undiscovered
archaeological resources as defined in State CEQA Guidelines 15064.5. This impact will be considered
significant.

4.9.2 Required Mitigation Measures

Mitigation Measure 8-3: Disturbance of Archaeological Resources Discovered during Construction

If any prehistoric-era or historic-era archaeological resources are discovered during ground-disturbing
activities, work within 100 feet of the resources will be halted, and a qualified archaeologist will be consulted
to assess the significance of the find according to CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5. If any find is determined
to be significant, representatives from the WPWMA and the archaeologist will determine the appropriate
avoidance measures or other appropriate mitigation. If the archaeologist determines that the find is
potentially a tribal cultural resource (for example, a prehistoric-era archaeological site), the archaeologist will
notify representatives from the WPWMA, and the procedures described in Mitigation Measure 8-2 will be
followed. All significant cultural materials recovered will be, as necessary and at the discretion of the
consulting archaeologist, subject to scientific analysis, curation (unless it is a tribal cultural resource), and
documentation according to current professional standards. In considering any suggested mitigation
proposed by the consulting archaeologist to mitigate impacts to archaeological resources, the WPWMA will
determine whether avoidance is necessary and feasible in light of factors such as the nature of the find,
project design, costs, and other considerations. If avoidance is infeasible, other appropriate measures (for

4-10 FES1026220700SAC
110



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

example, data recovery) will be instituted. Work may proceed on other parts of the project site while
mitigation for historical or unique archaeological resources is being carried out.

4.9.3 Finding

Implementation of Mitigation Measure 8-3 establishes the required procedures to be followed if
archaeological resources are discovered during construction activities, including immediately stopping work
within 100 feet of the discovery and retaining a qualified archaeologist to evaluate the find and recommend
appropriate treatment. Because this mitigation will result in the avoidance of archaeological resources if they

are discovered, or other appropriate measures (such as data recovery) if avoidance is not possible, the impact
will be reduced to less than significant after mitigation. For the foregoing reasons, the Board adopts Finding 1.

4.10 Cultural and Tribal Cultural Resources—Disturbance of Human Remains

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 8 for an analysis of impacts to cultural and tribal cultural resources,
including from disturbance of human remains (Impact 8-4).

4.10.1 Potential Effect and Rationale Supporting Finding

Ground-disturbing construction activities associated with the solid waste project elements and
complementary and programmatic elements of the Project could uncover previously unknown human
remains. The disturbance of previously unknown human remains will be considered a significant impact.

4.10.2 Required Mitigation Measures

Mitigation Measure 8-4: Disturbance of Human Remains

As required by the provisions of California’s Health and Safety Code Section 7050.5, PRC Section 5097.98, and
the California Code of Regulations Section 15064.5 (CEQA), if human remains are encountered at the site,
work in the immediate vicinity of the discovery will cease, and necessary steps to secure the integrity of the
immediate area will be taken. The Placer County Coroner will be notified immediately to determine whether
the remains are Native American. If the coroner determines the remains are Native American, the coroner
will notify the Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) within 24 hours, who will, in turn, notify the
person the NAHC identifies as the most likely descendant (MLD) of any human remains. Further actions will
be determined, in part, by the desires of the MLD. The MLD has 48 hours to make recommendations
regarding the disposition of the remains following notification from the NAHC of the discovery. If the MLD
does not make recommendations within 48 hours, the WPWMA will, with appropriate dignity, reinter the
remains in an area of the property secure from further disturbance. Alternatively, if the WPWMA does not
accept the MLD’s recommendations, the WPWMA or the MLD may request mediation by the NAHC.

4.10.3 Finding

Implementation of Mitigation Measure 8-4 establishes the required procedures to be followed if human
remains are discovered during construction activities. Because this mitigation requires notifying the NAHC if
human remains are discovered and coordinating with the MLD, if applicable, for proper disposition of the
remains, the impact will be reduced to less than significant after mitigation. For the foregoing reasons, the
Board adopts Finding 1.

411 Geology, Soils, and Paleontological Resources—Presence of Expansive Soils

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 9 for an analysis of impacts to geology, soils, and paleontological resources,
including from the presence of expansive soils (Impact 9-4).

FES1026220700SAC 4-11
111



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

4.11.1  Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding

There is a potential for buildings and other structures associated with the solid waste management and
complementary and programmatic elements of the Project to be located on expansive soil, which, through the
action of expansion or contraction, can lead to cracking, lifting, subsidence, and structural damage to utilities,
building foundations, and occupied overlying structures. Damage to the Project’s buildings and facilities could
create risks to life or property if a failure were to occur. The potential for expansive soils to create risks to life
or property with implementation of the Project will be a significant impact.

4.11.2 Required Mitigation Measures

Mitigation Measure 9-4: Presence of Expansive Soils

Consistent with CBC Section 1808.2 and Placer County General Plan Policy 8.A.1, the WPWMA will conduct a
geotechnical investigation prior to constructing any buildings or other structures designed for human
occupancy that may be exposed to expansive soils. The geotechnical report will be prepared by a qualified
and licensed civil engineer, geotechnical engineer, or certified engineering geologist. During project
construction, all recommendations outlined in the geotechnical report will be implemented, subject to
revision by the civil or geotechnical engineer or engineering geologist, where needed, and verified by a
construction quality assurance observer. Typical recommendations could include over-excavating the
foundations, reinforcing the foundations, and using fill soil to minimize the exposure of the foundations to the
effects of the expansive soils.

4.11.3 Finding

Implementation of Mitigation Measure 9-4 requires the WPWMA to conduct a geotechnical investigation
prior to constructing any buildings or other structures designed for human occupancy in conformance with
CBC Section 1808.2. Under CBC Section 1808.2, foundations placed on or within expansive soils must be
designed to resist differential volume changes and to prevent damage to the supported structures. With
implementation of Mitigation Measure 9-4, the potential for expansive soils to create risks to life and
property as a result of the Project will be reduced to less than significant. For the foregoing reasons, the
Board adopts Finding 1.

4.12 Geology, Soils, and Paleontological Resources—Potential Destruction of
Paleontological Resources

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 9 for an analysis of impacts to geology, soils, and paleontological resources,
including from the potential destruction of paleontological resources (Impact 9-5).

4.12.1  Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding

The potential for ground-disturbing construction activities associated with implementation of the solid waste
management and complementary and programmatic elements to disturb or destroy undiscovered
paleontological resources will be a significant impact.

4.12.2 Required Mitigation Measures

Mitigation Measure 9-5: Potential Destruction of Paleontological Resources

If evidence of any paleontological features or deposits are discovered during construction-related earth-
moving activities (for example, vertebrate, invertebrate, or plant fossils, traces, or trackways), the WPWMA
shall halt ground-disturbing activity in the area of the discovery and retain a qualified paleontologist to assess

4-12 FES1026220700SAC
112



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

the significance of the find. If the paleontologist determines that the find does not constitute a significant or
unique resource, construction may proceed. If the paleontologist determines that further information is
needed to evaluate significance, a data recovery plan will be prepared. If the find is determined to be
significant by the qualified paleontologist, they will work with the WPWMA to avoid disturbance to the
resources. If complete avoidance is not feasible in light of project design, economics, logistics, or other factors,
accepted professional standards for documentation of any find and recovery of important fossils will be
followed.

4.12.3 Finding

Implementation of Mitigation Measure 9-5 establishes the required procedures to be followed if
paleontological resources are discovered during construction activities, including immediately stopping work
and retaining a qualified paleontologist to evaluate the find and determine significance. Because this
mitigation will result in the avoidance of paleontological resources if they are discovered or other
appropriate measures (for example, documentation or recovery) if avoidance is not possible, the impact will
be reduced to less than significant. For the foregoing reasons, the Board adopts Finding 1.

4.13 Hazards, Hazardous Materials, and Wildfire—Potential for Construction
Activities to Expose the Public or the Environment to Hazardous Materials

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 11 for an analysis of impacts to hazards, hazardous materials, and wildfire,
including from the potential for construction activities to expose the public or the environment to hazardous
materials (Impact 11-1).

4.13.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
Sitewide

Construction on the western and eastern properties could result in the exposure of workers or the
environment to hazardous materials spilled during construction or soils that have been contaminated by
prior agricultural operations. Due to the public health concerns associated with this exposure, this impact will
be significant.

Complementary and Programmatic Elements

Construction activities associated with the project level of complementary elements include excavating for
utilities and building foundations and grading for internal roadways and parking lots. These construction
activities have the potential to expose contaminated soils. Therefore, construction of the project level of
complementary elements may have a significant impact.

Build out of the programmatic elements involve the same construction activities identified for the project
level elements. Construction of the additional programmatic elements (1.6 million square feet [sf]) also have
the potential to expose contaminated soils. Therefore, construction of the program level of complementary
and programmatic elements may have significant impact.

4.13.2 Required Mitigation Measures

Mitigation Measure 11-1: Potential for Construction Activities to Expose the Public or the Environment to
Hazardous Materials

A Phase [ Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) shall be prepared prior to the construction of any facilities on
the western or eastern properties in general conformance with the American Society for Testing Materials

FES1026220700SAC 4-13
113



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

ASTM E 1527-13 “Standard Practice for Environmental Site Assessments” and EPA “Standards and Practices
for All Appropriate Inquires,” 40 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 312. If existing hazardous materials
contamination is identified in the Phase I ESA, and the Phase I ESA recommends further review, the WPWMA
shall retain a Registered Environmental Assessor or other qualified professional to conduct follow-up
sampling to characterize the contamination and to identify any required remediation that shall be conducted.
Any remediation recommendations shall be implemented before earth disturbance in the vicinity of the
contamination.

In addition, a construction hazardous materials management plan shall be prepared by the WPWMA or the
WPWMA's construction-manager/contractor for all future development projects on the western and eastern
properties and shall be incorporated into the construction and contract specifications for each project. The
management plan shall include measures to reduce potential hazards to workers, the public, and the
environment associated with use of hazardous materials and exposure to potentially contaminated soil
during project construction. The management plan shall include provisions managing impacted materials,
sampling and analytical requirements and disposal procedures. Specifically, the construction hazardous
materials management plan shall:

= Describe the necessary actions to be taken if evidence of contaminated soil or groundwater is
encountered during construction.

= Describe the types of evidence that could indicate potential hazardous materials contamination, such as
soil discoloration, petroleum or chemical odors, or buried building materials.

* Include measures to protect worker safety if signs of contamination are encountered.
» Identify sampling and analysis protocols for various substances that might be encountered.
» Listrequired regulatory agency contacts if contamination is found.

* Include recommendations on soil management in the event that aerially deposited lead is discovered in
existing road right-of-way.

= Identify legal and regulatory processes and thresholds for cleanup of contamination.

* Include provisions for delineation, removal, and disposal of any contaminants identified as exceeding
human health risk levels.

= Require that the project contractor verify that suspect soils are isolated, protected from runoff, and
disposed of in accordance with Section 31303 of the California Vehicle Code and the requirements of the
licensed receiving facility.

4.13.3 Finding
Implementation of these mitigation measures will reduce the potential for construction activities to expose

the public or environment to hazardous materials and this impact will be reduced to a less-than-significant
level. For the foregoing reasons, the Board adopts Finding 1.

4.14 Hazards, Hazardous Materials, and Wildfire—Potential for Landfill Gas to
Accumulate in Occupied Structures

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 11 for an analysis of impacts to hazards, hazardous materials, and wildfire,
including impacts from the potential for landfill gas to accumulate in occupied structures (Impact 11-3).

4.14.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding

The landfill generates LFG that could potentially accumulate in occupied structures developed on WPWMA
properties for the Project. WPWMA is required to comply with CCR Title 27 Section 22190, which states that

4-14 FES1026220700SAC
114



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

all onsite construction within 1,000 feet of the boundary of any disposal area shall be designed and
constructed to mitigate gas migration into a structure. These state standards are in place to minimize
potential intrusion of migrating LFG into a structure. The protection measures identified in Title 27 Section
22190 are important for minimizing this potential public safety risk, and if these measures were not
implemented for the Project, the impacts could be significant.

4.14.2 Required Mitigation Measures

Mitigation Measure 11-3: Potential for landfill gas to accumulate in occupied structures

For any structure sited within 1,000 feet of the WRSL within the project’s boundary, the following measures
specified in CCR Title 27 Section 21190(g) shall be included:

= A geomembrane or equivalent system with low permeability to landfill gas shall be installed between the
concrete floor slab of the building and subgrade.

= A permeable layer of open graded material of clean aggregate with a minimum thickness of 12 inches
shall be installed between the geomembrane and the subgrade or slab.

= A geotextile filter shall be used to prevent the introduction of fines into the permeable layer.

= Perforated venting pipes shall be installed within the permeable layer and shall be designed to operate
without clogging.

= The venting pipe shall be constructed with the ability to be connected to an induced draft exhaust system.

=  Automatic methane gas sensors shall be installed within the permeable gas layer, and inside the building
to trigger an audible alarm when methane gas concentrations are detected.

* Inaddition, WPWMA shall use a qualified specialist to conduct periodic methane gas monitoring
(pursuant to CCR Section 20920 et. seq.) inside all buildings and underground utilities.

4.14.3 Finding

Implementation of Mitigation Measure 11-3 will reduce the Project’s potential impact to a less-than-
significant level. For the foregoing reasons, the Board adopts Finding 1.

4.15 Hazards, Hazardous Materials, and Wildfire—Potential for Waste Relocation
Activities to Release Hazardous Materials into the Environment

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 11 for an analysis of impacts to hazards, hazardous materials, and wildfire,
including impacts from the potential for waste relocation activities to release hazardous materials into the
environment (Impact 11-4).

4.15.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding

The Project includes excavating the contents of closed, pre-Subtitle D-lined, Modules 1, 2, 10, and 11, which
encompass approximately 66 acres, and relocating these contents to a Subtitle D-compliant lined module
within the permitted landfill footprint. Although it is anticipated that primarily municipal solid waste (MSW)
will be encountered, there is the potential for onsite personnel to encounter hazardous waste during the
waste relocation activities. The exposure of onsite personnel or the environment to hazardous wastes
associated with these waste relocation activities will be a significant impact.

FES1026220700SAC 4-15
115



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

4.15.2 Required Mitigation Measures

Mitigation Measure 11-4: Potential for waste relocation activities to release hazardous materials into the
environment

As described in Chapter 3 of the Draft EIR, Project Description, prior to commencing waste relocation
activities, the WPWMA shall develop and implement a contingency plan in case hazardous wastes are
encountered during waste relocation. The contingency plan shall be based on guidelines issued by the State of
California Governor’s Office of Emergency Services (CA OES 2001) for preparation of a Hazardous Material
Incident Contingency Plan that describes emergency procedures and actions to be implemented to minimize
hazards and release hazardous materials.

4.15.3 Finding

Implementation of Mitigation Measure 11-4 will reduce the Project’s impact associated with waste relocation
activities to less than significant. For the foregoing reasons, the Board adopts Finding 1.

4.16 Hazards, Hazardous Materials, and Wildfire—Potential Conflict with an
Adopted Emergency Response Plan

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 11 for an analysis of impacts to hazards, hazardous materials, and wildfire,
including impacts from the potential conflict with an adopted emergency response plan (Impact 11-5).

4.16.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding

During construction activities, temporary lane closures may be necessary on Fiddyment Road and Athens
Avenue and could result in temporary increases in traffic levels as traffic is detoured or slowed on some local
roadways. Increased traffic congestion on Fiddyment Road and Athens Avenue during construction will be
temporary and will not interfere with the use of surrounding roadways, including SR-65, for emergency
evacuation. However, localized delays in emergency evacuation could occur. Substantial delays in emergency
evacuation associated with project construction activities on local roadways will be considered a significant
impact.

4.16.2 Required Mitigation Measures
Mitigation Measure 11-5: Prepare a Construction Traffic Management Plan

Before construction activities commence, the WPWMA shall prepare a Construction Traffic Management Plan
to minimize traffic impacts on all roadways at and near the work site affected by construction activities. The
plan shall identify construction and public (if applicable) access points, procedures for notification of lane
closures, a construction materials delivery plan, and a description of emergency personnel access routes
during lane closures. This plan shall include measures that provide adequate access for emergency
evacuation, including maintaining bypass lanes around any roadway construction sites.

4.16.3 Finding
Implementation of Mitigation Measure 11-5 will reduce the Project’s potential impact on an adopted

emergency response plan to a less-than-significant level. For the foregoing reasons, the Board adopts Finding
1.

4-16 FES1026220700SAC
116



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

417 Hazards, Hazardous Materials, and Wildfire—Risk of Vectors

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 11 for an analysis of impacts to hazards, hazardous materials, and wildfire,
including impacts from the risk of vectors (Impact 11-7).

4.17.1  Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding

The western and eastern properties provide a greater potential for vectors (specifically mosquitoes) to occur
due to the presence of aquatic resources that may be disturbed during construction and operation (as
discussed in Chapter 3 of the Draft EIR, Biological Resources). The disturbance of these aquatic resources
could increase areas of standing water, which could increase breeding areas for mosquitoes. Therefore, the
potential exposure of the public to health hazards from vector-borne diseases will be significant.

4.17.2 Required Mitigation Measures

Mitigation Measure 11-7: Risk of Vectors

During construction, all grading shall be performed by contractors in a manner to prevent the occurrence of
standing water or other areas suitable for breeding of mosquitoes and other vectors. The Placer Mosquito and
Vector Control District shall be granted access to perform vector control during both construction and
operation of the Project. This includes ongoing access to all common areas, including drainages. As part of the
access agreement with Placer Mosquito and Vector Control District, the WPWMA shall require that the
district use appropriate vector control methods in biologically sensitive areas to minimize any potential
adverse effects to sensitive wildlife and plant species or their habitat.

4.17.3 Finding

Implementation of Mitigation Measure 11-7 will reduce the Project’s potential impact from vectors to a less-
than-significant level. For the foregoing reasons, the Board adopts Finding 1.

4.18 Hydrology and Water Quality—Potential for Waste Excavation and
Relocation to Degrade Surface Water or Groundwater Quality

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 12 for an analysis of impacts to hydrology and water quality, including from
the potential for waste excavation and relocation to degrade surface water or groundwater quality (Impact
12-3).

4.18.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding

Removing and relocating previously buried waste could expose these materials during the construction
period to erosive forces, including wind and rain, that could transport contaminants into local water bodies. If
contaminants are transported to local water bodies, surface water quality could be degraded, and over time,
groundwater supplies could also be degraded. In addition, the percolation of water through the exposed
waste could contribute to groundwater contamination. Established water quality standards could be violated
depending upon the level of surface and groundwater exposure to contaminants.

Exposure of waste to precipitation and surface water runoff during waste excavation and relocation has the
potential to affect surface water quality directly and groundwater quality indirectly through infiltration of
surface water affected by exposure to waste. This impact will be significant.

FES1026220700SAC 4-17
117



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

4.18.2 Required Mitigation Measures

Mitigation Measure 12-3: Potential for Waste Excavation and Relocation to Degrade Surface Water or
Groundwater Quality

To implement the state and local regulatory policies intended to address the potential for violating water
quality standards or WDRs, or otherwise substantially degrading surface or ground water quality, the
WPWMA shall do the following:

*  Amend the existing project SWPPP for the waste excavation and relocation component of the Project. The
SWPPP may include the following BMPs:

- Where excavation and removal occurs over a closed, pre-Subtitle D-lined, area, the Project will
implement secondary containment in the direct path of hauling and removal.

- Avoidance of excavation and relocation of waste between October 15 and April 30 unless such
activities are adequately mitigated to avoid impacts during the rainy season.

- If excavation and relocation of waste activities cannot be avoided during this period, the Project will
implement use of tarps or soil cover over the exposed face overnight and when the activity will not
occur for more than 24 hours.

The SWPPP will be prepared and implemented prior to ground-disturbing activities commencing for the
waste excavation and relocation component of the Project.

4.18.3 Finding

Implementation of Mitigation Measure 12-3 establishes necessary development and implementation of an
activity-specific SWPPP for waste excavation and relocation, including limitations on the timing of
construction and waste excavation and relocation activities. Obtaining and complying with the SWPPP will
mitigate the potential for violating water quality standards or WDRs or otherwise substantially degrading
surface water or groundwater quality from waste excavation and relocation and reduce the impact to less
than significant after mitigation. For the foregoing reasons, the Board adopts Finding 1.

4.19 Noise—Increase in Operational Noise Levels

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 14 for an analysis of impacts to noise, including impacts resulting from an
increase in operational noise levels (Impact 14-2).

4.19.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding

Solid waste management activities at the WPWMA facility will continue and expand under the Project. Noise-
generating activities will expand from the center property to the western and eastern properties, while the
increase in activity level at the site will increase incrementally over the buildout of the Project. Assuming a
doubling of operating equipment and vehicle activity from existing operations at the site, the existing ambient
noise levels would be expected to increase by approximately 3 decibels (dB). The noise levels associated with
site operations experienced at existing residences in the project vicinity will increase from current
conditions; however, the offsite noise levels associated with onsite operational activities will not increase by
greater than 3 dB. Because this increase will be less than the 5-dB increase in ambient noise levels established
as the permanent noise level threshold, the solid waste management activities associated with the Project will
result in a less-than-significant permanent noise impact.

The development of the complementary and programmatic elements will increase offsite noise, depending on
where the uses are located on the site. At the project level, complementary elements could include a wide
variety of potential manufacturing and industrial uses; it cannot be determined in advance whether the

4-18 FES1026220700SAC
118



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

ultimate uses will include activities that generate noise levels substantially higher than typical manufacturing
and industrial uses, although the uses are anticipated to occur within 300,000 square feet of building space.
Therefore, development of the complementary elements could generate noise levels at receiving land uses
that could exceed the established noise threshold, and this impact will be significant.

In addition, the development of the programmatic elements could generate noise levels at receiving land uses
that could exceed the established noise threshold, and this impact will be significant.

4.19.2 Required Mitigation Measures

Mitigation Measure 14-2: Increase in Operational Noise Levels

The WPWMA shall conduct an acoustical evaluation of any facility proposed as part of the complementary
and programmatic elements prior to issuance of building permits. The acoustical evaluation will document
that either the proposed uses shall not generate noise levels greater than 5 dB above the existing ambient
noise level generated from industrial facilities at the site or will be redesigned such that this threshold is not
exceeded at existing receiving property boundaries.

4.19.3 Finding

Implementation of Mitigation Measure 14-2 requires that an acoustical evaluation be conducted prior to the
issuance of building permits so that the established noise threshold is not exceeded. Because this mitigation
will prevent the complementary and programmatic elements from exceeding noise levels above the
established threshold, the impact will be reduced to less than significant after mitigation. For the foregoing
reasons, the Board adopts Finding 1.

FES1026220700SAC 4-19
119



PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

120



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

5. Unavoidable Significant Environmental Impacts that
Cannot be Mitigated to a Less-than-Significant Level

5.1 Aesthetics—Impacts to Visual Character and Quality

Please refer to Draft EIR Section 5 for an analysis of impacts to aesthetics, including on visual character and
quality (Impact 5-1).

5.1.1 Potential Effect and Rationale Supporting Finding

The Project will expand complementary and programmatic elements and waste disposal elements onto the
western property. The project elements on the eastern property will be visible to local viewers but will not
represent a significant change to the overall landscape. The project elements on the eastern property will be
consistent with the Eco-Industrial designation of the site. The Project will expand the landfill’s footprint and
increase its maximum elevation. While the existing landfill mound is at a low enough elevation that it tends to
blend in with its setting, the landfill as proposed under the Project will be more prominent because of its
larger size and height, resulting in greater levels of visual contrast with the surrounding open space and
current agricultural land uses. In many nearby views, the landfill will grow to become the dominant visual
element. The size of the Project may be discernable from some viewing locations, although not obvious. The
Project also proposes the construction of a second, discrete landfill mound, which will increase the likelihood
that a viewer will recognize the mounds as human-built landscape features, potentially having a negative
effect on their experience of the view. Additionally, the landfill will screen east- and northeast-facing views
toward the Sierra Nevada foothills and mountains, the key scenic resources visible from the project area. The
overall visual character and quality of the local landscape will be reduced from current levels. These effects
may affect sensitive receptors near the landfill, particularly residential communities immediately to the south
and west. Therefore, the visual impacts associated with the Project will be significant.

5.1.2 Required Mitigation Measures

Mitigation Measure 5-1: Impacts to Visual Character and Quality

Because the Project will expand the landfill’s final elevation substantially above the surrounding area,
mitigation measures intended to visually screen the landfill from local and distant viewpoints will be
ineffective. Therefore, no mitigation measures are available to reduce this impact to a less-than-significant
level.

5.1.3 Finding

Impacts to visual character and quality will remain significant and unavoidable.

5.2 Aesthetics—Impacts from Offsite Litter Generation

Please refer to Draft EIR Section 5 for an analysis of impacts to aesthetics, including from offsite litter
generation (Impact 5-3).

5.2.1 Potential Effect and Rationale Supporting Finding

Litter is generated offsite by uncovered waste-haul vehicles accessing the MRF and the WRSL facilities. Prior
WPWMA environmental documents concluded that this impact will be considered significant and
unavoidable because even with an extensive litter control program in place, substantial litter will continue to
be generated on local roads from uncovered waste-haul vehicles. The Project will increase the amount of

FES1026220700SAC 5-1
121



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

material received at the facility, potentially increasing the amount of offsite litter generated. Based on the SAP
EIR conclusion that offsite litter generation from waste-haul vehicles will be considered a significant and
unavoidable impact, the Project’s contribution to an increased amount of offsite litter generation and to the
extended duration of this impact will also be considered significant and unavoidable.

5.2.2 Required Mitigation Measures

Mitigation Measure 5-3: Impacts from Offsite Litter Generation

Although an extensive offsite litter control program is in place at the facility and will continue in the future
with implementation of the Project, the impact of increased litter through the extended life of the WRSL will
be considered significant and unavoidable. Therefore, WPWMA will implement a tarping policy that requires
incoming loads to use tarps, thus minimizing the potential for offsite litter generation. However, even with
implementation of a tarping policy, this impact will remain significant.

5.2.3 Finding

Impacts caused by offsite litter generation will remain significant and unavoidable.

5.3 Aesthetics—Cumulative (Light)
Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 19 for an analysis of cumulative impacts on aesthetics.
5.3.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding

The Draft EIR tiers off the analysis included in the SAP EIR for the cumulative impacts analysis. For new light
sources, the SAP development will contribute to substantial light that will adversely affect nighttime views in
the area. These cumulative impacts were identified in the SAP EIR as significant and unavoidable. The Project
does not include any uses that were not considered in the SAP EIR for the project site.

5.3.2 Finding

For the foregoing reasons, the cumulative aesthetic resource impacts from light are significant and
unavoidable, which is consistent with the findings in the SAP EIR.

5.4 Air Quality—Construction Emissions of Criteria Air Pollutants and Ozone
Precursors

Please refer to Draft EIR Section 6 for an analysis of impacts to air quality, including from construction
emissions of criteria air pollutants and ozone precursors (Impact 6-2).

5.4.1 Potential Effect and Rationale Supporting Finding

The Project’s construction-related activities will result in emissions of reactive organic gases (ROG), NOx,
PM10, and PM2.5 (a subset of PM10) from construction, upgrade, expansion, and replacement of onsite
facilities and construction of new landfill modules. Because the Project’s estimated maximum daily
construction PM10 emissions will exceed the PCAPCD’s mass emissions threshold, the Project has the
potential to contribute emissions that could impede the area’s ability to attain the NAAQS and CAAQS. The
higher emissions levels and human exposure to the associated ambient air concentrations could result in
adverse health effects. It is possible that health complications associated with exposure to PM10 and PM2.5 in
ambient air could be increased for nearby sensitive receptors due to project-related construction emissions,
but it is not feasible to define the nature and extent of the health effects, if any, at this time.

5-2 FES1026220700SAC
122



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

Implementation of Mitigation Measures 6-2(a) through 6-2(c) will reduce these construction impacts to the
extent feasible. However, impacts are considered significant and unavoidable, even after implementation of
these feasible mitigation measures.

5.4.2 Required Mitigation Measures

Impacts will be reduced to the extent feasible by the following measures:

Mitigation Measure 6-2(a): Construction emissions of criteria air pollutants (PM10 and PM2.5) and ozone
precursors

Construction contractor(s) shall document their capability and commitment to implement PCAPCD’s
recommended construction mitigation measures and the project design measures identified in the Draft EIR
as part of their grading/improvement plan submittals. Prior to any construction activity, the contractor(s)
shall submit a Construction Emission/Dust Control Plan to PCAPCD, a minimum of 21 days before
construction activity is scheduled to commence. To further mitigate the significant air quality impact
identified for construction PM10 emissions, the following additional mitigation measures, expanding on those
identified in the Draft EIR as BMPs and project design measures, 26 shall be implemented to address exhaust
PM10 and PM2.5 emissions and provide dust control.

Mitigation Measure 6-2(b): Project contractor(s) shall implement BMPs prior to or during all construction
activities, including onsite construction-related grading.

The WPWMA shall require all construction contracts and plans to include the applicable construction BMPs
and project design measures from Table 6-1 of the Draft EIR, as well as the following:

= Designation of a person or persons to monitor fugitive dust emissions and enhance implementation of the
Dust Control Plan to minimize dust complaints, reduce visible emissions to below 20 percent opacity, and
prevent transport of dust offsite. Duties shall include holidays and weekend periods when work may not
be in progress. The designated monitoring personnel shall obtain the certificate of Visible Emissions
Evaluation (VEE) from the California Air Resources Board (CARB) field training program, or equivalent.

= Post signage at property boundaries with name(s) and contact information for designated person(s) for
reporting of dust complaints.

=  All roadways, driveways, sidewalks, parking lots intended for pavement as part of an applicable
construction project shall be paved as soon as possible. In addition, building pads shall be laid
immediately after grading unless seeding or soil binders are used.

= The PCAPCD shall be contacted regarding permitting requirements if any portable equipment is to be
used for construction of the project elements.

Mitigation Measure 6-2(c): The WPWMA shall implement a recordkeeping program to oversee and enforce
compliance with the BMP requirement for diesel-fueled equipment to use engines that meet Tier 4 Final
emission standards, as certified by CARB, or cleaner, prior to or during onsite grading and construction
activities.

This mitigation measure is intended for WPWMA oversight to ensure that all diesel-fueled construction
equipment shall have engines that meet the Tier 4 Final emission standards, as certified by CARB, or cleaner,
if feasible (City of Sacramento 2021). This requirement shall be verified through contractor submittal of an
equipment inventory to the WPWMA for each construction project that includes the following information:

A. Type of equipment

B. Engine year and age

FES1026220700SAC 5-3
123



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

Number of years since rebuild of engine (if applicable)
Type of fuel used

Engine horsepower

m m o o0

Verified diesel emission control strategy (VDECS) information, if applicable, and other related equipment
data

If any new equipment is added after submission of the inventory, the contractor(s) shall contact the WPWMA
regarding the new equipment being used.

The project contractor(s) must also provide a signed Certification Statement for documentation of
compliance and for future review by the WPWMA as needed. The Certification Statement shall state that the
contractor agrees to compliance and acknowledges that a violation of this requirement shall constitute a
material breach of contract.

The WPWMA may waive the equipment requirement noted previously only under the following unusual
circumstances:

= A particular piece of off-road equipment with Tier 4 Final standards is technically not feasible or not
commercially available.

= The equipment will not produce desired emissions reduction due to expected operating modes.
= Installation of the equipment will create a safety hazard or impair visibility for the operator.

= There is a compelling emergency need to use other alternate off-road equipment.

If the WPWMA grants the waiver, the contractor shall use the next cleanest piece of off-road equipment
available. If seeking a waiver from this requirement, it must be demonstrated, to the satisfaction of the
WPWMA, that the emissions do not exceed significance thresholds. If the Project implements the “step down’
approach, using construction equipment with less than Tier 4 emissions standards and the resulting
emissions exceed the PCAPCD threshold, a mitigation fee (per ton of emissions) shall be assessed to achieve
the remaining mitigation.

3

Table 6-9 of the Draft EIR describes the Off-Road Equipment Compliance Step Down approach:

= Ifengines that comply with Tier 4 Final off-road emission standards are not commercially available, then
the contractor shall meet Compliance Alternative 1.

» Ifoff-road equipment meeting Compliance Alternative 1 are not commercially available, then the project
sponsor shall meet Compliance Alternative 2.

» Ifoff-road equipment meeting Compliance Alternative 2 are not commercially available, then the project
sponsor shall meet Compliance Alternative 3.

For purposes of this mitigation measure, “commercially available” shall mean the availability of Tier 4 Final
engines similar to the availability for other large-scale construction projects in the region occurring at the
same time and taking into consideration factors such as (1) potential significant delays to critical-path timing
of construction for the Project, and (2) geographic proximity to the project site of Tier 4 Final equipment.

The project contractor(s) shall maintain records concerning relevant efforts to comply with this requirement
and provide them to WPWMA on a weekly basis during active construction periods.

5-4 FES1026220700SAC
124



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

5.4.3 Finding

Implementation of Mitigation Measures 6-2(a) through 6-2(c) will result in additional reductions in fugitive
dust and exhaust PM emissions. Due to the extensive list of emission reduction measures and BMPs
incorporated in the Project as design measures, estimation of the achievable additional reductions would be
speculative. Available information on the benefits of the proposed mitigation measures is not sufficient to
quantify the additional emission reductions that will occur, so this analysis of significance after mitigation is
qualitative and conservative in nature.

Even with incorporation of all available and feasible mitigation measures, it is likely that project-related
construction emissions will continue to exceed PCAPCD-recommended thresholds of significance for PM1,.
Because of the scale and extent of construction activities that will occur, as well as the uncertainty of specific
construction activities and timing, construction activities could overlap, resulting in emissions that will
exceed PCAPCD'’s daily construction thresholds for PM1,. Construction emissions, even after mitigation, could
contribute further to the nonattainment status of the Placer County and the SVAB for PM 1o and PM;s. This
impact will remain significant and unavoidable.

MRF Operations Design Concept Evaluation

Proposed changes to MRF operations could be implemented and would potentially result in changes in
quantities, timing, and release locations of project-related air emissions estimated for construction. The
proposed changes would involve accelerated and expanded diversion of organic material, including OFMSW,
for composting in CASP composting systems and increased recovery and diversion of recyclables. Changes
may also involve addition of an enclosed building for organics receipt and processing.

To accommodate the proposed increase in the quantity of material processed at the organics management
facility, the facility would need to be built sooner than anticipated. The proposed total processing capacity
would not exceed the full buildout capacity evaluated in the Project and the proposed CASP processes are
similar to the ASP process analyzed as part of the Project, so facility sizing and design would not be expected
to differ from the Project. Construction of an enclosed building for organics receipt and processing was not
specifically analyzed as part of the Project and could result in a shifting of the year(s) for construction
emissions or increased construction emissions for the organics management facility during the years when
construction occurs. Increased diversion would reduce the amount of waste residuals sent to the landfill,
reducing the frequency of landfill cell construction over time. Processing of increased quantities of organic
material and recyclables could be accommodated within the existing MRF facility.

The conservative approach used to calculate potential maximum daily construction emissions associated with
the Project included assessment of multiple overlapping construction projects to allow flexibility in the timing
of individual projects. It is anticipated that shifting the timing of construction of individual project elements
to accommodate earlier construction of the organics management facility would not result in emissions
exceeding those calculated for the Project, even with the potential addition of an enclosed building for
organics receipt and processing.

The PCAPCD recently issued permits to the WPWMA related to ASP composting; however, these permits
would likely require updates as the Project proceeds. The enclosed building for organics processing, if
constructed, would be equipped with an odor control system would require preconstruction review and
permitting by the PCAPCD as a stationary source. As the permitting process is undertaken, the WPWMA
facility must continue to comply with applicable regulatory and permitting requirements.

Based on this qualitative review, the proposed MRF operations design concept changes would be covered
under the current assumptions of this air quality impact analysis, and the conclusions of the project-level
analysis related to construction emissions of criteria air pollutants would not change.

FES1026220700SAC 5-5
125



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

5.5 Air Quality—Operational Emissions of Criteria Air Pollutants and Ozone
Precursors

Please refer to Draft EIR Section 6 for an analysis of impacts to air quality, including from operational
emissions of criteria air pollutants and ozone precursors (Impact 6-3).

5.5.1 Potential Effect and Rationale Supporting Finding

Operation of the solid waste elements, complementary and programmatic elements, and supporting elements
will result in emissions of ROG, NOx, PM10, and PM2.5. Because the Project’s estimated net daily emissions
increases will exceed the PCAPCD’s mass emissions thresholds for NOx and PM10, the Project has the
potential to contribute emissions that could impede the area’s ability to attain the NAAQS and CAAQS. Higher
emissions levels and human exposure to the associated ambient air concentrations could result in adverse
health effects. It is possible that health complications associated with exposure to ozone, PM10, and PM2.5 in
ambient air could be increased for nearby sensitive receptors due to project-related construction emissions,
but it is not feasible to define the nature and extent of the health effects, if any, at this time.

The Project’s adherence to the Mitigation Measures 6-3(a) through 6-3(b) will reduce operational impacts to
the extent feasible. However, these impacts will remain significant and unavoidable, even after
implementation of these mitigation measures.

5.5.2 Required Mitigation Measures
Impacts will be reduced to the extent feasible by the following measures:
Mitigation Measure 6-3: Operational emissions of criteria air pollutants and ozone precursors.

The WPWMA and their operation contractor(s) shall document their capability and commitment to
implement the operational emission reduction BMPs and project design measures identified in the Draft EIR
as part of their contracts and plan submittals. To further mitigate the significant air quality impacts identified
for operational emissions of NOx and PMy, the following additional mitigation measures, expanding on those
identified in the Draft EIR as BMPs and project design measures,” shall be implemented.

Mitigation Measure 6-3(a): Fund NOx emissions reductions through an Offsite Mitigation Fee Program.

The operation of solid waste elements, complementary elements, and supporting elements under the Project
will result in net emissions increases in operational emissions that will exceed PCAPCD’s recommended
operational significance thresholds of 55 1b/day for NOx, even with implementation of the BMPs and project
design measures. The estimated total increase in NOx emissions estimated in excess of the significance
threshold for this Project is approximately 97.2 1b/day, equivalent to 8.9 tons per ozone season. To mitigate
the net project-related increases in operational NOx emissions, the WPWMA shall participate in one of the
following voluntary offsite mitigation programs:

= Establish and fund an offsite mitigation project to result in a NOx emission reduction equivalent to the
total amount of emissions estimated to exceed the PCAPCD significance threshold over a single season.
Developing an offsite mitigation program in western Placer County shall be coordinated with PCAPCD.
Emission reductions achieved through the offsite mitigation program must be real and quantifiable, as
verified by PCAPCD. Examples of NOx emission reduction mitigation projects include, but are not limited
to retrofitting, repowering, or replacing heavy-duty engines from mobile sources (for example, buses,

2 Note: Applicable measures from PCAPCD’s recommended operational emission mitigation measures (PCAPCD 2017a) are incorporated in the
proposed project as project design measures. For the list of BMPs and project design measures incorporated in the proposed project, please see
the list of measures in Table 6-1.

5-6 FES1026220700SAC
126



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

construction equipment, on-road haulers), provision of electrical charging stations to support vehicle
electrification, or other programs to reduce regional NOx emissions.

= Participate in the District’s Off-Site Mitigation Fee Program by paying the equivalent amount of money, to
mitigate the net project contribution of NOx that exceeds the 55 Ib/day threshold over a single season.
The estimated mitigation fees for the NOx emissions increase associated with project operations is
approximately $167,000 for the Project, based upon PCAPCD’s adopted cost-effectiveness rate of $18,790
per ton for ozone precursors like NOx and the current California CPI rate (PCAPCD 2017b, 2021a). The
actual amount to be paid shall be determined based on the selected program and applicable cost-
effectiveness rate agreed to by the WPWMA and PCAPCD and shall be paid by the WPWMA or other
responsible parties.

=  Any combination of the previous or other measures, as determined feasible by WPWMA and PCAPCD.

Mitigation Measure 6-3(b): Fund PM1o emissions reductions through an Off-Site Mitigation Fee Program.

The operation of solid waste elements, complementary elements, and supporting elements under the Project
will result in net emissions increases in operational emissions that will exceed PCAPCD’s recommended
operational significance thresholds of 82 1b/day for PM1, even with implementation of the BMPs and project
design measures listed in the Draft EIR. The estimated total increase in PM1o emissions estimated in excess of
the significance threshold for this Project is approximately 263.7 Ib/day, equivalent to 23.9 tons per winter
season. To mitigate the net project-related increases in operational PMyo emissions, the WPWMA shall
participate in one of the following voluntary offsite mitigation programs:

= Establish and fund an offsite mitigation project to result in a PM1o emission reduction equivalent to the
total amount of emissions estimated to exceed the PCAPCD significance threshold over a single season.
Developing an offsite mitigation program in western Placer County shall be coordinated with PCAPCD.
Emission reductions achieved through the offsite mitigation program must be real and quantifiable, as
verified by PCAPCD. Examples of PM;y emission reduction mitigation projects include, but are not limited
to retrofitting, repowering, or replacing heavy-duty engines from mobile sources (for example, buses,
construction equipment, on-road haulers), replacing woodstoves, road paving, or other programs to
reduce PM1o emissions.

= Participate in the District’s Off-Site Mitigation Fee Program by paying the equivalent amount of money, to
mitigate the net project contribution of PM;o that exceeds the 82 lb/day threshold over a single season.
The estimated mitigation fees for the PM1o emissions increase associated with Project operations is
approximately $144,600 for the Project, based upon an assumed cost-effectiveness rate of $6,050 per ton
used for PMyo in the SAP Draft EIR (Placer County 2018). The actual amount to be paid shall be
determined based on the selected program and applicable cost-effectiveness rate agreed to by the
WPWMA and PCAPCD and shall be paid by the WPWMA or other responsible parties.

=  Any combination of the previous or other measures, as determined feasible by the WPWMA and PCAPCD.
5.5.3 Finding

Implementation of Mitigation Measure 6-3(a) and 6-3(b) will result in additional reductions in NOx and PM10
emissions and funded measures may also reduce PM2.5. Available information on the benefits of the
mitigation measures is not sufficient to quantify the additional emission reductions that will occur, so the
analysis is qualitative and conservative in nature.

Even with incorporation of all available and feasible BMPs, project design measures, and mitigation measures
to reduce emissions, including funding of one-time mitigation fees, it is likely that project-related operational
emissions could continue to exceed PCAPCD-recommended thresholds of significance for the ozone precursor
NOx and PM10. Even though the operational emissions of some elements developed under the Project will
not individually generate emissions of NOx that exceed PCAPCD’s operational threshold of 55 Ib/day, or

FES1026220700SAC 5-7
127



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

PM10 that will exceed the threshold of 82 Ib/day, the combined level of operational emissions associated
with the project elements could exceed PCAPCD’s thresholds. Participation in a verified NOx or PM10 offset
program cannot be assured. Operational emissions, even after mitigation, could contribute further to the
nonattainment status of the SVAB for ozone, PM10, and PM2.5. No additional feasible mitigation measures are
available to reduce this impact. This impact will remain significant and unavoidable.

MRF Operations Design Concept Evaluation

Proposed changes to MRF operations could be implemented and would potentially result in changes in
quantities, timing, and release locations of estimated project-related air emissions from operations. The
proposed changes would involve accelerated and expanded diversion of organic material, including OFMSW,
for composting in CASP composting systems and increased recovery and diversion of recyclables. Changes
may also involve addition of an enclosed building for organics receipt and processing.

To accommodate the proposed increase in the quantity of material processed at the organics management
facility, facility operation would need to increase sooner than anticipated, but the proposed total processing
capacity would not exceed the full buildout capacity evaluated for the Project. The proposed CASP processes
are similar to the ASP process analyzed as part of the Project and would provide similar or better control of
fugitive emissions from active composting. Use of an enclosed building for organics receipt and processing
was not specifically analyzed as part of the Project but is not expected to result in increased operational
emissions. Processing of increased quantities of organic material and recyclables could be accommodated
within the existing MRF facility but may require use of additional equipment which could generate increased
air emissions. Increased amounts of recyclables recovered from the MRF would also be anticipated to result
in a near-term increase in outbound traffic taking material to market and associated air emissions.

Increased diversion would reduce the amount of waste residuals sent to the landfill, reducing the operational
emissions associated with landfill waste disposal. Diversion of more OFMSW from the landfill within a faster
timeframe would correspond to a near-term (next 10 years) reduction in LFG production, including reduced
emissions of fugitive LFG.

The conservative approach used to calculate potential maximum daily emissions associated with operation of
the Project included application of a peaking factor to address variability in material quantities received and
processed, and the assumption that maximum daily emissions for each facility could occur on the same day.
While the proposed changes have the potential to result in near-term emissions increases for the organics
management facility and MRF, they also have the potential to result in decreased emissions from waste
disposal operations and LFG. Overall, operational activity is not expected to exceed the levels analyzed for full
buildout of the Project with implementation of the proposed changes.

The PCAPCD recently issued permits to the WPWMA related to ASP composting; however, these permits
would likely require updates as the Project proceeds. The enclosed building for organics processing, if
constructed, would be equipped with an odor control system would require preconstruction review and
permitting by the PCAPCD as a stationary source. As the permitting process is undertaken, the WPWMA
facility must continue to comply with applicable regulatory and permitting requirements.

Based on this qualitative review, the proposed MRF operations design concept changes would be covered

under the current assumptions of this air quality impact analysis, and the conclusions of the project-level
analysis related to operational emissions of criteria air pollutants and ozone precursors would not change.

5.6 Air Quality—Objectionable Odors Affecting a Substantial Number of People

Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 6 for an analysis of impacts to air quality, including from objectionable
odors affecting a substantial number of people (Impact 6-6).

5-8 FES1026220700SAC
128



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

5.6.1 Potential Effect and Rationale Supporting Finding

The WPWMA Site-Wide Odor Plan (SWOP) describes both the odor control measures that are currently being
implemented and those that will be fully implemented as part of the Project. The SWOP identifies four
facilities or operations at the WPWMA facility with the greatest potential to produce odors: MRF building,
composting operation, WRSL active landfill areas, and LFG collection and control system. Operation of these
facilities and other solid waste elements and supporting elements under the Project could result in increases
in odorous emissions.

Various new commercial and industrial facilities developed as complementary and programmatic elements
under the Project could potentially result in the siting of new sources of odors. Development may include
research facilities, an LFG to compressed natural gas or other renewable fuel facility, or other compatible
technologies. Because no specific projects or sites have been identified for such future uses, however, the
degree of impact with respect to potential odors associated with future projects and their effects on adjacent
receptors is uncertain. Emissions of odors from such facilities will be subject to PCAPCD’s Rule 205, Nuisance,
which prohibits the discharge of air contaminants or other materials that will cause detriment, nuisance, or
annoyance to any number of people.

The WPWMA will continue to monitor odor, implement effective odor control measures, and take advantage
of advanced technologies as they become available and financially feasible. Because odor impacts are
subjective, there are no quantifiable thresholds of significance. The effectiveness of odor control measures to
be implemented by the WPWMA cannot be determined at this time, and odor impacts may remain after
implementation of odor control measures. This impact will be significant.

Implementation of the Mitigation Measures 6-6 will reduce the potential impacts of the Project. However,
these impacts will remain significant and unavoidable, even after implementation of these mitigation
measures.

5.6.2 Required Mitigation Measures
Impacts will be reduced to the extent feasible by the following measures:
Mitigation Measure 6-6: Implement Odor Reduction Measures

The following odor reduction measures shall be implemented in addition to the BMPs and project design
measures listed in Table 6-1 of the Draft EIR as mitigation measures for the proposed project:

»  Compile and Evaluate Weekly Odor Emissions Monitoring (Tier 1, Composting Operations). Weekly odor

emissions monitoring from various points on and offsite, conducted pursuant to the SWOP, will be
compiled annually to evaluate odor emission trends and the strength and character of odors generated at
different phases and sources in the composting process. Response actions will be implemented as
indicated in site operational documents such as the SWOP and Odor Impact Mitigation Plan (OIMP).

» Increase Screening of LFG and Implement Response Actions (Tier 1, Landfill Operations). Quarterly

screening for fugitive LFG shall be conducted to identify “hot spots” of LFG emissions through interim and
final landfill covers. Such screening reduces the time between identification and repair of surface hot spot
emissions, and thus odor. A “hot spot” is defined as any area where surface methane standards
established by the CARB are exceeded for at least two quarters in any consecutive four quarter period.
CARB requires that, “any area where solid waste has been buried; the landfill methane surface
concentration must not exceed the 500 parts per million by volume (ppmv) instantaneous or 25 ppmv
(averaged) integrated surface methane emission standards, excluding the working face.” (CARB 2020)
For instances where the integrated surface methane emission standard of 25 ppmv (averaged) of a
monitoring grid is exceeded, the grid area will be monitored again at 15-foot centers (instead of the
routine 25-foot centers) to further identify the area(s) of highest emissions. The noted areas of

FES1026220700SAC 5-9
129



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

exceedance will be monitored again and corrective actions from the site operations and maintenance
manual will be implemented as necessary to reduce emissions to less than the allowable level. For
instances where the instantaneous surface methane emission standard of 500 ppmv is exceeded, the area
will be monitored weekly for up to 3 weeks or until emissions are reduced enough to no longer constitute
an exceedance. Corrective actions from the site operations and maintenance manual will be implemented
as necessary to reduce emissions to less than the allowable level.

= Enhance LFG Collection (Tier 1, Landfill Operations). To reduce landfill-related odor emissions, the

WPWMA shall establish stricter protocols for LFG collection. Because LFG must be used, flared, or stored
in a leak-free container, minimizing odorous emissions involves operating the system for maximum
containment of gas as well as cost-effective performance of the gas-to-energy system.

= Implement Enhanced Monitoring and Modeling (Tier 1, Sitewide Technologies and Operations). To

monitor odor emissions in areas around the WRSL, odor sensors shall be placed in developed areas
surrounding the landfill to identify odor spikes or other abnormal odor emissions, ideally before
community complaints are lodged. Updates to the WPWMA's dispersion modeling capabilities shall also
be implemented to better predict the nature, location, and intensity of odor issues.

= Establish Tree-lined Perimeter of WRSL (Tier 1, Sitewide Technologies and Operations). Trees with
aromatic foliage, such as pine or eucalyptus, shall be planted around the WRSL to visually screen the
landfill from surrounding areas, providing psychological benefits, and to serve as a windbreak, thereby
impeding, absorbing, or otherwise altering the flow of odorous emissions from the facility.

* Implement additional measures in accordance with the Odor Mitigation Memorandum of Understanding
(MOU) (Churchwell White, LLP 2019; Schmidt and Card 2019).

5.6.3 Finding

The Project will implement numerous facility improvements, including more efficient waste management
operations and odor-abatement strategies that are technically and economically feasible. However, the nature
and effectiveness of these strategies are unknown, there are no quantifiable thresholds of significance for
odor impacts, and there is no existing fee program or other mechanism by which to fund odor mitigation. This
impact will remain significant and unavoidable.

MRF Operations Design Concept Evaluation

Proposed changes to MRF operations could be implemented and would potentially result in changes in
project-related odors, primarily due to accelerated, expanded processes to sort and remove the organic
fraction of the MSW (OFMSW) for composting in CASP composting systems. This would reduce the amount
and organic content of waste residuals sent to the landfill. Diversion of more OFMSW from the landfill within
a faster timeframe would correspond to a near-term (next 10 years) reduction in LFG production, including
reduced emissions of fugitive LFG. Additionally, the organic content of MRF fines used as alternative daily
cover (ADC) would be reduced, reducing the likelihood of odor generation from ADC application.

The OFMSW processes and composting would have the potential to increase odors, so additional odor control
measures would be implemented. CASP composting systems would include covers on the composting piles to
reduce odorous emissions, using either a membrane cover system (or similar), or a biolayer and positive ASP
technology like that analyzed for the Project. If the aeration system for composting were changed to negative
or reverse flow, a stand-alone biofilter for odor control would be installed and operated. Changes may also
involve addition of an enclosed building for organics receipt and processing.

The PCAPCD recently issued permits to the WPWMA related to ASP composting; however, these permits
would likely require updates as the Project proceeds. The enclosed building for organics processing, if
constructed, would be equipped with an odor control system that may require permitting by the PCAPCD as a
stationary source. As the permitting process is undertaken, the facility must continue to comply with

5-10 FES1026220700SAC
130



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

applicable regulatory and permitting requirements. As discussed with PCAPCD staff, implementation of the
SWOP and OIMP, which PCAPCD intends to add to the operating permit for the WPWMA facility, should also
reduce odors and the related odor notifications in the future (Springsteen, pers. comm., 2021).

Based on this qualitative review, the proposed MRF operations design concept changes would be covered
under the current assumptions of this air quality impact analysis, and the conclusions of the project-level
analysis related to odor impacts and mitigation would not change.

5.7 Air Quality—Cumulative
Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 19 for an analysis of cumulative air quality impacts.
5.7.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding

The SAP EIR concluded that development of the SAP and other cumulative projects will result in significant
and unavoidable cumulative air quality impacts. These include significant and unavoidable construction
emissions of criteria air pollutants and ozone precursors, long-term operational emissions of criteria air
pollutants and ozone precursors, the exposure of sensitive receptors to TACs, and the exposure of sensitive
receptors to odors. The cumulative generation of mobile-source CO emission concentrations were identified
as less than significant.

Construction Emissions of Criteria Air Pollutants and Ozone Precursors

Construction activities related to the Project, in combination with the reasonably foreseeable regional urban
development described in the SAP DEIR, will add emissions of the criteria pollutants for which the project
region is in nonattainment under applicable health-protective federal and state ambient air quality standards,
including emissions of the ozone precursors, ROG and NOx, and particulate matter (PM1o and PM;5).
Development projects, while required to mitigate for adverse air quality impacts from construction, will
contribute to regional emissions that may conflict with area air quality plans and attainment efforts. The
Project’s contributions to the nonattainment status of Placer County and the SVAB with respect to the NAAQS
and CAAQS will be cumulatively considerable. Because no mitigation is available beyond that recommended
for the project, the cumulative impact for project-specific construction emissions will be significant and
unavoidable. This finding for the Project is consistent with the findings of the SAP EIR, which determined that
project construction emissions will be cumulatively considerable, and the cumulative impact will be
significant and unavoidable.

Operational Emissions of Criteria Air Pollutants and Ozone Precursors

As described in the SAP DEIR, ozone-related impacts are the result of cumulative emissions from numerous
sources in the region and transport from outside the region. The SAP DEIR concluded that reasonably
foreseeable development will add urban growth on over 50,000 acres of primarily undeveloped land in the
region, increasing the ambient concentrations of precursor emissions, like NOx, that contribute to ozone
impacts. Sources of particulate matter emissions (PM1o and PM;s) have similar regional cumulative impacts
when concentrations increase over time, especially during periods of dry conditions with high winds or high
levels of earth disturbing activities. When all sources throughout the region are combined, they can result in
ambient concentrations of pollutants that exceed the NAAQS and CAAQS (Placer County 2018). The Project’s
contributions to the nonattainment status of Placer County and the SVAB with respect to the NAAQS and
CAAQS will be cumulatively considerable. Because no mitigation is available beyond that recommended for
the Project, the cumulative impact for project-specific operational emissions will be significant and
unavoidable. This finding for the Project is consistent with the findings of the SAP EIR, which determined that
the project’s contribution of pollutants that exceed the CAAQS and NAAQS will be cumulatively considerable,
and the cumulative impact will be significant and unavoidable.

FES1026220700SAC 5-11
131



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

Exposure of Sensitive Receptors to TACs

The exposure of sensitive receptors to TACs, which has been evaluated at the project-level under Impact 6-5,
is also an impact of localized, cumulative concern. The approved SAP/PRSP included an amendment to
County General Plan Policy 4.G.11, to reduce the 1- mile (5,280-foot) buffer for new residential uses around
the WPWMA property. Under the approved SAP/PRSP, new residential uses beyond 2,000 feet but within one
mile of the WPWMA property boundary could occur if approved under a specific plan, master plan, or
development agreement. Therefore, the General Plan amendment may result in future development of
residential uses within 1 mile of the WPWMA property in currently undeveloped areas.

The SAP EIR concluded that development of the SAP and other cumulative projects will result in significant
and unavoidable exposure of sensitive receptors to TACs. While emission reduction approaches and
technologies will be implemented by the WPWMA as part of the Project, the nature and effectiveness of these
measures are unknown at this time, and TAC-related impacts associated with the proposed project will be
cumulatively considerable. Cumulative impacts related to exposure of sensitive receptors to TACs will be
significant and unavoidable. This finding for the proposed project is consistent with the findings of the SAP
EIR, which determined that the Project’s contribution to cumulative TACs will be cumulatively considerable,
and the cumulative impact will be significant and unavoidable.

Creation of Objectionable Odors Affecting a Substantial Number of People

The SAP EIR predicted that cumulative development will make use of the WPWMA facilities for waste
disposal, composting, and material recovery, which will result in a substantial increase in the incoming waste
stream and associated odor emissions. The SAP EIR concluded that because the development of the SAP will
result in the exposure of a substantial number of people to objectionable odors, the cumulative odor impacts
will be significant and unavoidable.

While odor abatement approaches and technologies will be implemented by the WPWMA as part of the
Project, the nature and effectiveness of these measures are unknown at this time, and odor impacts will be
cumulatively considerable. Therefore, the cumulative impact for odors will be significant and unavoidable.
This finding is consistent with the findings of the SAP EIR, which determined that the impact of the Project
relative to odor impacts will be cumulatively considerable, and the cumulative impact will be significant and
unavoidable.

5.7.2 Finding

For the foregoing reasons, cumulative impacts associated with construction emissions of criteria air
pollutants and ozone precursors, long-term operational emissions of criteria air pollutants and ozone
precursors, the exposure of sensitive receptors to TACs, and the exposure of sensitive receptors to odors are
significant and unavoidable. These findings are consistent with the findings of the SAP EIR.

5.8 Cultural and Tribal Resources—Cumulative
Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 19 for an analysis of cumulative impacts on cultural and tribal resources.
5.8.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding

For historical resources, the SAP EIR concluded that although no known historical resources are located
within the boundaries of the SAP, cumulative buildout could potentially destroy or damage historical cultural
resources that have not yet been identified or evaluated. The destruction of or damage to historical resources
was identified in the SAP EIR as a considerable contribution to a significant cumulative impact that will
remain significant and unavoidable.

5-12 FES1026220700SAC
132



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

5.8.2 Finding

For the foregoing reasons, cumulative impacts on historical resources are significant and unavoidable and
consistent with the findings of the SAP EIR.

5.9 Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Climate—Construction and Operational
Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Please refer to Draft EIR Section 10 for an analysis of impacts to GHG emissions and climate change, including
from construction and operational GHG emissions (Impact 10-1).

5.9.1 Potential Effect and Rationale Supporting Finding

Construction-related activities for the Project will result in nonbiogenic GHG emissions (CO2, CHs, and N,0)
from fuel combustion in on-road and off-road vehicles used for construction, upgrade, expansion, and
replacement of onsite facilities and construction of new landfill modules. Operational GHG emissions
estimated for the development and implementation of solid waste elements, complementary elements, and
supporting elements under the Project will exceed the bright-line threshold of 10,000 MT COze/year.
Exceedance of the PCAPCD threshold indicates that GHG emissions associated with the Project will result in a
cumulatively considerable contribution to global climate change.

Implementation of the Mitigation Measures 10-1 will reduce the potential impacts of the Project. However,
these impacts will remain significant and unavoidable, even after implementation of these mitigation
measures.

5.9.2 Required Mitigation Measures

Impacts will be reduced to the extent feasible by the following measures:

Mitigation Measure 10-1: Fund GHG Emissions Reductions through an Offsite Mitigation Fee Program.

WPWMA and their operation contractor(s) shall document their capability and commitment to implement the
GHG BMPs and project design measures identified in Table 10-1 of the Draft EIR as part of their contracts and
plan submittals. To further mitigate the significant GHG impacts identified for the Project, WPWMA shall
participate in one of the following voluntary offsite mitigation programs:

= Establish and fund an offsite mitigation project to result in a GHG emission reduction equivalent to the
total amount of emissions estimated to exceed the PCAPCD significance threshold over a single year.
Developing an offsite mitigation program in western Placer County shall be coordinated with PCAPCD.
Emission reductions achieved through the offsite mitigation program must be real and quantifiable, as
verified by PCAPCD.

= Participate in PCAPCD’s Offsite Mitigation Fee Program by paying the equivalent amount of money to
mitigate the net annual project contribution of GHG that exceeds the PCAPCD threshold. The actual
amount to be paid shall be determined according to the selected program and applicable cost-
effectiveness rate agreed to by WPWMA and PCAPCD. (Please note that there is currently no mitigation
fee option for GHG offsite mitigation, because there is no fee rate or cost-effectiveness factor established
by a statewide incentive program.)

=  Any combination of these or other measures, as determined feasible by WPWMA and PCAPCD.
If an offsite mitigation measure is required for a land-use project, that mitigation measure shall explicitly

identify the required GHG emission reduction and the implementation method. PCAPCD’s Board of Directors
adopted the Review of Land Use Projects under CEQA Policy in 2016, which outlines the principles on how

FES1026220700SAC 5-13
133



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

the GHG offsite mitigation measures should be implemented, by the selected mitigation scenarios, to offset
the land-use project’s related operational GHG emissions. The project applicant has two options to implement
offsite mitigation measures for GHG emissions: (1) proposing their own offsite mitigation project, or (2)
purchasing carbon credits from recognized carbon credit registries.

When offsite mitigation is an option used to mitigate the project’s operational impacts, additional (surplus)
emission reductions achieved from offsite sources should be equal to the emission reductions required to
mitigate the land-use project’s onsite impacts. This can provide the proper nexus for GHG emission mitigation
under CEQA. For example, excessive GHG emissions from a land-use project’s energy usage could be reduced
by a project that will generate the same amount of surplus GHG emission reductions by renewable energy.

Prior to implementation of an offsite mitigation project, the applicant shall consult with PCAPCD and
demonstrate that the project meets all conditions required by a selected carbon credit protocol approved by
California Air Pollution Control Officers Association (CAPCOA), CARB, or other similar entities determined
acceptable by PCAPCD. If the applicant chooses to purchase carbon credits, the credits should be registered
under the CAPCOA GHG Reduction Exchange Program, American Carbon Registry, Climate Action Reserve, or
other similar carbon credit registry as determined acceptable by PCAPCD. This requirement means that the
proposed mitigation project or carbon credit purchase can result in an equivalent GHG reduction required by
the offsite mitigation measure. In addition, PCAPCD encourages the applicant to consider generating or
purchasing local and California-only carbon credits as the preferred mechanism for implementing the GHG
offsite mitigation measure, which helps direct the state toward achieving the GHG emission reduction goal.

The following are well-recognized entities with approved carbon offset protocols or registered carbon credits
that can be applied toward a land-use project’s GHG emission reductions:

= CAPCOA GHG Reduction Exchange Program (GHG Rx)

= CARB Compliance Offset Protocols

= Verified Carbon Standard (Verra)

*  American Carbon Registry

= (Climate Action Registry

PCAPCD notes that it will not be involved with any carbon credit purchase agreements; PCAPCD is only

assisting the lead agency with verification of the carbon credits to confirm they are real, permanent,
quantifiable, verifiable, enforceable, and additional.

5.9.3 Finding

Implementation of Mitigation Measure 10-1 will result in additional reductions in GHG emissions. Available
information on the benefits of the mitigation measure is not sufficient to quantify the additional emission
reductions that will occur, so this analysis is qualitative and conservative in nature.

Even with incorporation of all available and feasible BMPs, project design measures, and mitigation measures
to reduce emissions, including funding of mitigation fees or purchase of offsets, it is likely that project-related
GHG emissions could continue to exceed PCAPCD’s recommended bright-line threshold of 10,000 MT

COZ2e/year. Participation in a verified GHG emission offset program cannot be assured. No additional feasible
mitigation measures are available to reduce this impact. This impact will remain significant and unavoidable.

Material Recovery Facility Operations Design Concept Evaluation

As described in Chapter 3, Project Description, and Chapter 4, Approach, proposed changes to material
recovery facility (MRF) operations could be implemented and would potentially result in changes in

5-14 FES1026220700SAC
134



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

quantities, timing, and release locations of estimated project-related GHG emissions from construction and
operations. The proposed changes would involve facility improvements to accommodate accelerated and
expanded diversion of organic material, including organic fraction of municipal solid waste (OFMSW), for
composting in covered aerated static pile (CASP) composting systems and increased recovery and diversion
of recyclables. Changes may also involve the addition of an enclosed building for organics receipt and
processing.

To accommodate the proposed increase in the quantity of material processed at the organics management
facility, facility operation would need to increase sooner than anticipated but the proposed total processing
capacity would not exceed the full buildout capacity evaluated for the Project. The proposed CASP processes
are similar to the ASP process analyzed as part of the Project and would provide similar or better control of
fugitive emissions from active composting. Use of an enclosed building for organics receipt and processing
was not specifically analyzed as part of the Project, but it is not expected to result in increased operational
GHG emissions. Processing of increased quantities of organic material and recyclables could be
accommodated within the existing MRF facility, but it may require use of additional equipment, which could
indirectly generate increased GHG emissions. Increased amounts of recyclables recovered from the MRF
would also be anticipated to result in a near-term increase in outbound traffic taking material to market and
associated GHG emissions.

The expanded use of CASP would have a corresponding increase in energy use in the near term, indirectly
increasing GHG emissions associated with the electricity used for blowers. Increased diversion would reduce
the amount of waste residuals sent to the landfill, reducing the frequency of landfill cell construction over
time and reducing the construction and operational GHG emissions associated with landfill waste disposal.
Diversion of more OFMSW from the landfill within a faster timeframe would correspond to a near-term (next
10 years) reduction in LFG production, including reduced fugitive LFG and related GHG emissions.

The conservative approach used to calculate emissions associated with construction and operation of the
Project included assessing multiple overlapping construction projects to allow flexibility in the timing of
individual projects and application of a peaking factor to address variability in material quantities received
and processed. While the proposed changes have the potential to result in near-term emissions increases for
the organics management facility and MRF, they also have the potential to result in decreased emissions from
waste disposal operations and LFG. Overall, operational activity is not expected to exceed the levels analyzed
for full buildout of the Project with implementation of the proposed changes.

PCAPCD recently issued permits to the WPWMA related to ASP composting; however, these permits would
likely require updates as the Project proceeds. The enclosed building for organics processing, if constructed,
would be equipped with an odor control system and would require preconstruction review and permitting by
PCAPCD as a stationary source. As the permitting process is undertaken, the WPWMA facility must continue
to comply with applicable regulatory and permitting requirements.

Based on this qualitative review, the proposed MRF operations design concept changes would be covered

under the current assumptions of this GHG emissions impact analysis, and the conclusions of the project-level
analysis related to GHG emissions would not change.

5.10  Greenhouse Gas Emissions—Cumulative
Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 19 for an analysis of cumulative greenhouse gas emission impacts.
5.10.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding

The SAP EIR concluded that development of the SAP and other cumulative projects will result in a significant
and unavoidable cumulative GHG impact. This impact includes specifically the generation of significant and

FES1026220700SAC 5-15
135



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

unavoidable operational GHG emissions that could conflict with the state’s ability to meet its statewide GHG
targets.

The analysis of GHG emissions associated with the Project is inherently a cumulative impact analysis. GHG
emissions from one project cannot, on their own, result in changes in climatic conditions, therefore, the
emissions of individual projects must be considered in the context of their contribution to cumulative global
emissions. The emissions estimates prepared to support this Draft EIR indicate that the level of construction
and operational emissions associated with implementation of the Project will exceed PCAPCD'’s bright line
threshold of 10,000 MT COze per year, and therefore will be cumulatively considerable. Implementation of
GHG reduction measures and mitigation measures, along with establishment of offsets or purchase of carbon
credits, will not reduce GHG emissions to less than PCAPCD significance thresholds for the life of the Project.
Because the availability and affordability of GHG offset credits in the future is uncertain, the impact remains
significant and unavoidable.

5.10.2 Finding

For the foregoing reasons, cumulative greenhouse gas emission impacts are significant and unavoidable and
consistent with the findings of the SAP EIR.

5.11 Noise—Cumulative
Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 19 for an analysis of cumulative impacts from noise.
5.11.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding

The Draft EIR tiers off the analysis included in the SAP EIR for the cumulative noise impacts analysis. The
Project will not create new cumulatively considerable noise impacts that were not considered in the SAP EIR.
The Project will generate noise levels consistent with the solid waste and industrial uses anticipated for the
site in the SAP. Therefore, cumulative noise impacts have been adequately addressed in the SAP EIR.

5.11.2  Finding

For the foregoing reasons, cumulative impacts from short-term construction noise and long-term operational
noise (stationary and transportation) will be considered significant and unavoidable. Implementation of a
noise-reduction program (SAP Program N-2) was identified as a way to minimize transportation noise
associated with cumulative development, although not to a less-than-significant level.

5.12 Transportation—Increase in Vehicle Miles Traveled

Please refer to Draft EIR Section 16 for an analysis of impacts to transportation, including from an increase in
vehicle miles traveled (VMT) (Impact 16-2).

5.12.1 Potential Effect and Rationale Supporting Finding

The increase the regional VMT in South Placer County over year 2018 existing conditions associated with
project implementation will substantially exceed the identified significance thresholds. These increases in
regional VMT will be primarily driven by the increased generation of solid waste associated with the
anticipated growth in residential development, employment, and services within the area. The Project by its
nature will accommodate the increase in waste and recyclable materials in response to the increased
population within the area.

5-16 FES1026220700SAC
136



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

The increase in VMT in South Placer County associated with project implementation is considered a
significant impact. This conclusion is consistent with the impact conclusion included in the SAP/PRSP EIR for
the project site.

Implementation of the Mitigation Measures 16-2 will reduce the potential impacts of the Project. However,
these impacts will remain significant and unavoidable, even after implementation of these mitigation
measures.

5.12.2 Required Mitigation Measures

Impacts will be reduced to the extent feasible by the following measure:

Mitigation Measure 16-2: Increase in Vehicle Miles Traveled

Prior to the initiation of project construction activities, the WPWMA will prepare a Transportation Demand
Management Plan to minimize the increase in VMT, including specific measures intended to reduce employee
vehicle trips, such as carpool and ride-share incentive strategies.

5.12.3  Finding

The identified mitigation measure will reduce VMT associated with project implementation. However,
because of the nature of the Project, which is proposed in part to accommodate growth in the waste stream
within South Placer County, a net increase in VMT will be expected with project implementation. This
increase will be greater than the identified significant threshold, and this impact will remain significant and
unavoidable.

5.13 Transportation—Cumulative (VMT)
Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 19 for an analysis of cumulative impacts on transportation VMT.
5.13.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding

The Draft EIR tiers off the analysis included in the SAP EIR for the cumulative impacts analysis. The SAP EIR
assumed the generation of substantially greater VMT from the project site than is anticipated in the Final EIR.
The SAP VMT per capita will remain above the regional average VMT per capita, as forecast in the Sacramento
Area Council of Governments 2016 Metropolitan Transportation Plan (SACOG 2016). Therefore, cumulative
transportation impacts have been adequately addressed in the SAP EIR. The Project will not create new
cumulatively considerable transportation impacts that were not considered in the SAP EIR.

5.13.2  Finding

For the foregoing reasons, the Project will result in significant and unavoidable cumulative impacts related to
the generation of VMT.

FES1026220700SAC 5-17
137



PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

138



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

6. Growth-Inducing Impacts of the Action

Section 15126.2(e) of the State CEQA Guidelines requires that an EIR “discuss the ways in which the Project
could foster economic or population growth, or the construction of additional housing, either directly or
indirectly, in the surrounding environment.” Please refer to Draft EIR Section 20.4 for an analysis of the
potential growth-inducing impacts of the Project.

In general terms, a project may induce spatial, economic, or population growth in a geographic area if it meets
any one of the four criteria: (1) removal of an impediment to growth (e.g., establishment of an essential public
service or the provisions of new access to an area); (2) economic expansion or growth (e.g,, changes in
revenue base, employment expansion, etc.); (3) establishment of a precedent-setting action (e.g., an
innovation, a change in zoning or general plan amendment approval); or (4) development or encroachment in
an isolated area or one adjacent to open space (being different from an “infill” type of project).

The Project has been developed to identify the physical and operational waste recovery and waste disposal
changes needed at the WPWMA facility to continue providing high-quality solid waste management services
in response to a fast-growing population in an increasingly complex regulatory environment and rapidly
changing global recycling markets. The area surrounding the project site consists of undeveloped open space,
and no existing residential subdivisions are located within 1 mile of the site.

The Project will provide for ongoing waste disposal and recovery operations and could increase local
employment to accommodate these operations. However, workers will be expected to come from the existing
workforce within the surrounding communities. The implementation of the complementary and
programmatic elements will further expand the demand for workers. Depending upon how quickly the
complementary and programmatic elements are developed, the increased demand for workers could increase
the demands on the local housing supply. However, the Project is consistent with the land use and zoning
designation in the SAP, and by extension, the employment, public facility development, and housing
assumptions evaluated in the SAP EIR. Implementation of the Project is expected to generate employment
opportunities for current and future residents consistent with the SAP’s goals and policies. Therefore, the
Project is not expected to induce substantial unplanned population growth or housing demand in the County
and is not expected to be growth inducing.

FES1026220700SAC 6-1
139



PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

140



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

7. Findings Regarding Alternatives to the Project

Public Resources Code Section 21002 provides that public agencies should not approve projects as proposed
if there are feasible alternatives or feasible mitigation measures available which would substantially lessen
the significant environmental effects of such projects. The same statute states that the procedures required
by CEQA are intended to assist public agencies in systematically identifying both the significant effects of
projects and the feasible alternatives or feasible mitigation measures which will avoid or substantially lessen
such significant effects.

Under CEQA Guidelines Section 15126.6, an EIR must set forth a description of a range of reasonable
alternatives to the Project or location of the Project, which would feasibly attain most of the objectives of the
Project, but would avoid or substantially lessen any of the significant effects of the Project, and the EIR must
also evaluate the comparative merits of the alternatives. The EIR must also evaluate a No Project Alternative.
Based on the requirements of CEQA Guidelines Section 15126.6 and the Project objectives identified in
Section 1.3 of this document, the following alternatives were included in Chapter 18.0 of the Draft EIR: (A) No
Project Alternative; (B) Prioritize Waste Recovery; (C) No Organics Processing; (D) Three-Bin Clean MRF
Alternative.

The Final EIR identifies the No Project Alternative as the environmentally superior alternative to the Project.
Pursuant to the CEQA requirement that, when an EIR identifies the No Project Alternative as environmentally
superior, the EIR must identify a superior alternative among the other alternatives, the EIR concludes that
Alternative C, the No Organics Processing Alternative, would have lower overall adverse environmental
effects compared to the rest of the build alternatives.

The Board finds that a good faith effort was made to evaluate all feasible alternatives in the EIR that are
reasonable alternatives to the Project and could feasibly obtain the basic objectives of the Project, even when
alternatives might impede attainment of the Project objectives and might be more costly. As a result, the
scope of alternatives analyzed in the Final EIR is not unduly limited or narrow. The Board also finds that all
reasonable alternatives were reviewed, analyzed, and discussed in the review process of the EIR and the
ultimate decision on the Project.

7.1 Plan Concept 1
7.1.1 Description
Plan Concept 1 as described in the Draft EIR includes the following elements:

Expanded Landfill Capacity—The landfill area would be expanded to the eastern property to create one
contiguous landfill footprint. The landfill’s peak elevation would increase above the current permitted
elevation by 30 feet to a total of 325 feet above mean sea level.

Existing Solid Waste Excavation—The northern closed, pre-Subtitle D-lined, portions of the existing landfill
(Modules 1, 2, 10 and 11) are proposed to be excavated and relocated to a Subtitle D-compliant lined module.
The relocation would facilitate expansion of processing and recycling operations in the northern portion of
the center property.

Expanded and Redesigned Compost Operations—Composting operations and other organics management
would be located in the central portion of the western property. The composting operations would be sized to
accommodate anticipated material growth rates.

FES1026220700SAC 7-1
141



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

Expanded and Redesigned Construction and Demolition Waste Operations—Expanded C&D would be
located within the northern portion of the center property.

Expanded and Redesigned Public Waste Drop-Off Area Operations—The expanded public waste drop-off
area would be relocated to central portion of the western property near the relocated compost facility. These
operations would be designed to ensure separation from the other waste management operations to ensure
the safety and convenience of public customers.

Complementary/Programmatic Elements—The complementary/programmatic elements for Plan Concept
1 include compatible manufacturing, pilot study areas, university research areas, and a landfill gas to
renewable fuels area. For the compatible manufacturing uses, areas have been designated in the northern and
southern portions of the western property. The same areas on the western property would also be designated
for university research uses and for pilot studies. A landfill gas to renewable fuels facility is identified as being
located on the southern portion of the western property. Although space has been initially reserved for these
elements primarily within the western property, opportunities may arise that would support locating some of
these complementary/programmatic elements in closer proximity to the solid waste project elements or
within areas not yet developed with solid waste project elements. Therefore, this plan concept assumes these
complementary/programmatic elements could be located throughout the project site.

Supporting Elements—The supporting elements for Plan Concept 1 are primarily located in the northern
portion of the center property where the majority of supporting activities currently occur. These elements
include recovered materials storage areas, administration buildings, facility parking, existing Materials
Recovery Facility (MRF), Household Hazardous Waste Facility (HHWF), maintenance area, and landfill gas-to-
energy (LFGTE) plant. Within this area, the existing waste delivery entrance on Athens Avenue is proposed to
be realigned to better accommodate customers. In addition, a new site entrance is proposed to be installed
near the southwest corner of Athens Avenue and Fiddyment Road to provide vehicle access to the western
property. A new road crossing near the south end of the MRF would consist of a tunnel, bridge, or conveyor
system to connect the waste operations on the center property to those proposed on the western property.

7.1.2 Finding

For the reasons stated in the following sections, and each of them independently of the others, the Board finds
that although Plan Concept 1 is feasible, the Board does not adopt this plan concept.

7.1.3 Facts Supporting the Finding

= Plan Concept 1 would include the implementation of the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan similar to
Plan Concept 2 with the primary difference being the location of the landfill expansion. For Plan Concept
1, the landfill expansion would occur on the eastern property rather than on the western property. Based
on the analysis included in the Final EIR, the environmental impacts of Plan Concept 1 and 2 would be
very similar. However, the eastern property has extensive vernal pool and wetland swale habitat that
would be entirely eliminated with placement of the landfill expansion on the eastern property. With Plan
Concept 2, not all of the eastern property would need to be developed with implementation of the
complementary/programmatic elements. Areas could be preserved between development footprints to
maintain a portion of the existing aquatic habitat.

» Innovation-oriented development is being proposed on the properties east and south of the eastern
property that would be compatible with the complementary/programmatic elements proposed with Plan
Concept 2 on the eastern property. These developments would be less compatible with an expanded
landfill footprint, as proposed with Plan Concept 1. Plan Concept 1 also has a smaller total landfill
disposal capacity than Plan Concept 2, which makes Plan Concept 1 less effective at achieving the
objective of ensuring that sufficient waste disposal capacity is available to accommodate anticipated long-
term growth in the Participating Agencies’ waste streams.

7-2 FES1026220700SAC
142



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

= With Plan Concept 1, substantial environmental monitoring and control systems are in place along the
eastern edge of the current landfill that will require continued access and monitoring. The construction of
a landfill mound over the top of these systems, as proposed with Plan Concept 1, would substantially
complicate continued access and monitoring. This constraint is avoided with the implementation of Plan
Concept 2.

=  Finally, Plan Concept 1 would provide less operational flexibility to the WPWMA because it would require
the removal and reburial of waste material from the waste excavation area sooner than would be
required with Plan Concept 2. The substantial cost associated with this waste removal and reburial would
limit the ability of the WPWMA to implement waste diversion activities due to funding constraints due to
the high cost of the waste removal and reburial effort.

7.2 Alternative A: No Project Alternative
7.2.1 Description

The No Project Alternative (Alternative A) described in the Draft EIR is continued operation of the WPWMA
facility under existing permits, without the Waste Action Plan. Ultimately, this results in phased closing of the
WPWMA facility, which would eventually become an MRF and transfer station with limited organics and C&D
waste processing.

Under Alternative A, the WPWMA would continue providing solid waste management services at the current
location. Activities allowed under existing permits would continue until the WRSL reached capacity, at which
time, the landfill portion of the facility would close. Solid waste management services would be constrained
by limiting operation only to the center property and only to existing permit limits. Under Alternative A, there
would be no change to how waste is collected and delivered to the site (single-stream mixed waste), and MSW
would continue to be delivered to the site and processed through the MRF building accordingly.

The organics management facilities would be limited to the existing capacity, would not be upgraded under
Alternative A to meet current regulatory requirements, and would not be expanded to a size adequate to
address compliance with any future organics regulatory requirements. As the amount of incoming organic
waste is projected to exceed the ability of the WPWMA facility to accommodate processing, the remaining
organic waste would need to be managed on a jurisdiction-by-jurisdiction basis (i.e., Member Agencies would
be given priority). Likewise, the C&D facility would be limited to the existing capacity and would not be
upgraded to handle the complete C&D needs of the jurisdictions, with additional C&D material needing to be
managed on a jurisdiction-by-jurisdiction basis.

Similar to the current use of the center property, a currently permitted landfill disposal area (Module 9) will
be dedicated to the existing organics management and C&D areas. The WPWMA estimates that the remaining
landfill capacity under Alternative A would be exhausted by 2058, at which time, the WRSL would close. After
closure of the WRSL, MSW would be transferred to a disposal facility, possibly the Recology Ostrom Road
Landfill, with the capacity to accept the MSW from the WPWMA service area. The WRSL would require a
minimum of 30 years of post-closure maintenance.

7.2.2 Finding

For the reasons stated in the following sections, and each of them independently of the others, the Board finds
that the No Project Alternative is not feasible and does not adopt this alternative.

7.2.3 Facts Supporting the Finding

Alternative A is a continuation of the existing operations under existing permits at the WPWMA facility until
closure of the WRSL, without implementation of the Waste Action Plan. Activities allowed under existing

FES1026220700SAC 7-3
143



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

permits would continue until the WRSL reached capacity, at which time, it would close. Solid waste
management services would be constrained by limiting operation only to the center property and only to the
existing permit limits.

Alternative A would avoid or substantially lessen one or more potentially significant environmental impacts
of the Project; however, those onsite impact reductions would likely be offset by increases in impacts
resulting from the waste being sent offsite to an alternate facility.

Alternative A would not significantly reduce impacts associated with aesthetics, as the existing permitted
height of the WRSL still represents a significant impact, and waste would still be delivered to the site, which
would result in the same level of offsite litter visual impact. While air quality impacts near the site would be
reduced under Alternative A as a result of fewer quantities of solid waste managed at the WPWMA's facilities,
it is assumed that additional air emissions would be produced offsite by delivery of the waste to another
facility. Alternative A would use neither the eastern property nor the northern half of the western property,
where the majority of sensitive biological resources would be affected by the proposed project; however,
there is potential for impacts to biological resources at alternate disposal locations where additional waste
management activities would need to occur to replace those that could not expand at the WPWMA facility.
While traffic impacts near the site associated with the proposed project would be reduced under Alternative
A, it is assumed that additional traffic impacts would be produced by sending waste to an alternate facility.

As shown in Table 18-1 of the Draft EIR, Alternative A does not meet any of the objectives established for the
proposed project. Alternative A will not allow the WPWMA to maintain a stable and relatively predictable
cost structure through local control of solid waste. Alternative A will not expand the site’s capacity to divert
materials from landfill disposal and contribute to greenhouse gas emissions reductions, nor optimize the site
to provide sufficient waste disposal capacity for long-term growth in the project area. Alternative A would not
provide the WPWMA with the ability to respond to an increasingly complex and evolving regulatory
environment nor allow the WPWMA to enhance customer safety by improving site access and internal
circulation. By not using the eastern and western properties, Alternative A would not facilitate the siting and
development of compatible technologies that would benefit from proximity to the WPWMA, would not
position the WPWMA facility as a hub of innovation with regard to a circular economy, and would not develop
the WPWMA'’s properties in a manner consistent with the SAP.

7.3 Alternative B: Prioritize Waste Recovery

7.3.1 Description

The Prioritize Waste Recovery Alternative (Alternative B) eliminates expansion of the WRSL onto the eastern
or western properties and adds complementary and programmatic elements to the western property. No
activity would occur on the eastern property or the northern portion of the western property.

Under Alternative B, waste relocation of the closed, pre-Subtitle D-lined, area of the landfill would occur
within the first 2 years after Project approval. The relocation of waste would allow for expansion of the public
waste drop-off area, organics management operation, and C&D operation to expand on the northern half of
the center property. Waste disposal within the WRSL would be limited to the southern portion of the center

property.

Under Alternative B, waste recovery could be implemented. The public waste drop-off area, organics
management area, and C&D facilities would be sized to accommodate current and future regulatory
requirements and would be potentially adequate to address the organic waste management needs of the
WPWMA's Participating Agencies. Similarly, the C&D facility would be upgraded to handle the complete C&D
needs of the jurisdictions.

7-4 FES1026220700SAC
144



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

Because Alternative B prioritizes waste recovery activities over waste disposal activities, the WRSL is
reduced in size from the Project and from the currently permitted landfill. Consequently, the WRSL capacity
would be exhausted in approximately 2041, and the facility would transition to a MRF and transfer station.
Upon completion of transfer station construction, MSW remaining after processing would be transferred to
an alternate waste disposal facility, assumed to be Recology’s Ostrom Road Landfill, which is anticipated to
have the capacity to accept MSW from the WPWMA'’s service area. The WRSL would require a minimum of 30
years of post-closure maintenance.

Alternative B reserves space for complementary and programmatic activities on the western property,
similar to the Project. The western property provides ample area for the 1.9 million square feet of industrial
uses that complement solid waste management included in the Project.

7.3.2 Finding

For the reasons stated in the following sections, and each of them independently of the others, the Board finds
that Alternative B is not feasible, and does not adopt this alternative.

7.3.3 Facts Supporting the Finding

Alternative B (Prioritize Waste Recovery) concentrates waste recovery operations on the center property,
restricts landfill capacity to the center property, and adds complementary and programmatic elements on the
southern portion of the western property. No activity would occur on the eastern property or the northern
portion of the western property.

Alternative B would reduce visual impacts associated with the proposed project near the WPWMA facility by
not increasing the overall permitted height of the WRSL from the currently permitted height and by avoiding
two landfill mounds as in the Project; however, it would not reduce the potential for offsite litter visual
impacts. Alternative B would significantly reduce impacts to biological resources at the site, as the alternative
would use neither the eastern property nor the northern half of the western property, where the majority of
habitat for special-status wildlife species that rely on vernal pool-type wetlands would be affected by the
proposed project.

The WPWMA has a stated objective for the Project to increase the WRSL’s permitted footprint and height to
optimize the efficient use of land for waste disposal and provide sufficient waste disposal capacity to
accommodate anticipated long-term growth in the Participating Agencies’ waste streams. Alternative B would
result in the projected closure of the WRSL in 2041 and would, therefore, not meet this Project objective.

When the WRSL closes, traffic associated with waste disposal would be relocated to a different site, assumed
to be Recology’s Ostrom Road Landfill, which would be anticipated to increase traffic volumes on roads
leading to the Recology facility, as well as adding VMT by waste vehicles traveling farther distances to deliver
waste material.

Alternative B would be consistent and nonconflicting with applicable local plans or policies, including the
general plan, specific plan, zoning ordinance, or habitat conservation plan. Alternative B would be consistent
with the existing land uses that have been occurring at the site. However, Alternative B would not fully
develop the site in a manner consistent with the land use and zoning envisioned in the SAP, which identified
industrial uses on all three of the WPWMA's properties, consistent with the site’s ECO zoning.

Alternative B partially meets the remaining Project objectives. By not fully using the eastern and western
properties, Alternative B would enhance customer safety by improving site access and internal circulation but
would only partially allow the WPWMA to expand the site’s capacity to divert materials from landfill disposal
or provide operational flexibility to accommodate an increasingly complex and evolving regulatory
environment. As Alternative B uses the southern part of the western property for complementary and

FES1026220700SAC 7-5
145



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

programmatic elements, such as compatible technologies, the alternative would facilitate the siting and
development of compatible technologies that would benefit from proximity to the WPWMA, partially develop
the WPWMA'’s properties in a manner consistent with the goals and policies of the SAP, and partially position
the WPWMA facility as a hub of innovation that promotes a circular economy.

7.4 Alternative C: No Organics Processing
7.4.1 Description

The No Organics Processing Alternative (Alternative C) excludes processing of organic waste and uses all of
the property available to WPWMA. The WRSL would be expanded onto the eastern property, creating a single
landfill mound with disposal capacity until approximately 2101. The public waste drop-off area would be
relocated to the western property, with a new entrance to the western property at the intersection of Athens
Avenue and Fiddyment Road. On the center property, the waste relocation and excavation would be expected
to occur over time, the C&D facility would be expanded, and other facilities would be expanded or redesigned
similar to the Project.

Under Alternative C, the northern and southern parts of the western property would continue to be available
for complementary and programmatic elements - industrial uses that complement solid waste management
activities. However, consideration of potential future industrial uses on the Project site would be limited to
those that do not contemplate management of organic wastes.

Alternative C would allow the WPWMA to provide long-term disposal capacity through expansion of the
WRSL. This alternative would not allow the WPWMA to address onsite processing and diversion of organic
material or provide SB 1383 compliance services to the Participating Agencies. As such, the management of
organic waste would be necessary on a jurisdiction-by-jurisdiction basis. Alternative C would allow the
WPWMA to comply with regulations associated with C&D waste. The WPWMA'’s ability to contribute to
increased recycling rates and maintain local control of solid waste management activities would be limited.

Alternative C would provide long-term recycling capacity, enhance compatibility of waste recovery and waste
disposal operations, and provide opportunities for innovation, although those opportunities would be limited
compared with the Project, as Alternative C does not include processing of organic waste.

7.4.2 Finding

For the reasons stated in the following sections, and each of them independently of the others, the Board finds
that Alternative C is not feasible, and does not adopt this alternative.

7.4.3 Facts Supporting the Finding

Alternative C (No Organics Processing) excludes processing of organic waste. Like the Project, Alternative C
uses portions of all of the property available to the WPWMA.

Alternative C would reduce the potential for significant offsite odor impacts by eliminating processing of
organic waste material at the WPWMA facility. Potentially significant impacts associated with aesthetics,
biological resources, and transportation and traffic are unlikely to be reduced under Alternative C.

Alternative C partially meets the objectives established for the Project. Alternative C would allow the
WPWMA to increase the WRSL’s permitted footprint and height to provide long-term waste disposal capacity,
enhance customer safety by improving site access and internal circulation, and continue to improve
compatibility between current and future WPWMA operations and existing and proposed adjacent land uses.
Alternative C would also encourage implementation of the PCCP and integrate environmentally conscious
practices into facility operations and allow for the development of the WPWMA'’s properties in a manner

7-6 FES1026220700SAC
146



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

consistent with the goals and policies of the SAP. Alternative C would partially allow the WPWMA to maintain
a stable and relatively predictable cost structure through local control of solid waste management operations.
By eliminating the management of organic waste material at the site under Alternative C, the WPWMA would
have limited ability to expand the site’s capacity to divert materials from landfill disposal and contribute to
greenhouse gas emission reductions, less operational flexibility to accommodate an increasingly complex and
evolving regulatory environment, and a lesser ability to position the WPWMA facility as a hub of innovation
that promotes the development of a circular economy in Placer County.

7.5 Alternative D: Waste Reduction and Alternative Technologies

7.5.1 Description

The Three-Bin Clean MRF Alternative (Alternative D) is similar to Alternative A (No Project Alternative) in
that solid waste management activities would occur only on the center property. However, the Clean MRF
Alternative makes several distinct changes regarding solid waste management. For the Clean MRF
Alternative, the current single-stream mixed-waste system for waste collection would convert to a three-bin
system that would require each Participating Agency and their designated waste haulers to comply
accordingly. Correspondingly, the existing “dirty” MRF (one that sorts incoming mixed municipal waste)
would be converted to a “clean” MRF, one that sorts only source-separated mixed recyclables (no mixed
waste, green waste, or food waste). Because there would be no mixed-waste processing, the waste bin
(referred to as a black bin) of the three-bin system would be delivered straight to the WRSL for disposal.
Consequently, once black bin waste material is received onsite, there would be no opportunity for removal of
household hazardous wastes, organics, or other recyclable materials from that part of the waste stream.

The existing area of the site designated for future Module 9 of the WRSL currently used for Waste Recovery
operations would continue to be used in this manner, restricting long-term waste disposal capacity
development. No waste excavation and relocation of the closed, pre-Subtitle D, landfill would occur.

Because Alternative D prioritizes a range of solid waste management activities occurring on the center
property, the WRSL would be reduced in size from the Project and from the currently permitted landfill.
Consequently, the WRSL capacity would be exhausted in approximately 2048, at which time it would close
and transition to a MRF and transfer station. Upon completion of transfer station construction, residual
materials remaining after the processing of source-separated recyclable materials and MSW directed to the
WRSL would be transferred to an alternate waste disposal facility, assumed to be Recology’s Ostrom Road
Landfill, which is anticipated to have the capacity to accept the MSW from the WPWMA service area. The
WRSL would require a minimum of 30 years of post-closure care.

To accommodate management of organic waste on the center property, the C&D operation would be
eliminated under Alternative D. ASP composting, as described for the Project, would be the anticipated form
of organics waste management under Alternative D. Because the C&D operation would be discontinued,
management of C&D material would be handled on a jurisdiction-by-jurisdiction basis. Self-haul MSW and
organic material would continue to be accepted and there would be no significant changes to the current
operation of the public waste drop-off area.

Waste management operations would not be expanded to either the eastern or western properties.
Accordingly, only those complementary and programmatic elements that would fit onto the center property
would be accommodated.

7.5.2 Finding

For the reasons stated in the following sections, and each of them independently of the others, the Board finds
that Alternative D is not feasible and does not adopt this alternative.

FES1026220700SAC 7-7
147



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

7.5.3 Facts Supporting the Finding

Under Alternative D, management of solid waste at the WPWMA facility would occur on the center property
only. The current mixed-waste system for waste collection would convert to a three-bin system that would
require each Member Agency and delivering entity to comply accordingly. Waste disposal capacity would be
limited, and the C&D operation would be eliminated.

Alternative D would reduce the potential for significant visual impacts associated with the proposed project
near the WPWMA facility by not increasing the overall permitted height of the WRSL from the currently
permitted height and by avoiding two landfill mounds; however, it would not reduce the potential for offsite
litter visual impacts. Alternative D would significantly reduce impacts to biological resources at the site, as
the alternative would use neither the eastern property nor the northern half of the western property, where
the majority of habitat for special-status wildlife species that rely on vernal pool-type wetlands would be
affected by the Project.

There are no objectives of the Project that would be fully met by Alternative D. Alternative D would allow the
WPWMA to partially maintain a stable and relatively predictable cost structure through continued local
control of select solid waste management operations, partially expand the site’s capacity to divert materials
from landfill disposal and contribute to greenhouse gas emission reductions, and partially enhance customer
safety by improving site access and internal circulation. Alternative D would not allow the WPWMA to secure
long-term waste disposal capacity and would not provide the WPWMA with the operational flexibility to
accommodate an increasingly complex and evolving regulatory environment. Alternative D would not
contribute to improved compatibility between current and future WPWMA operations and existing and
proposed adjacent land uses, would not develop the WPWMA properties in a manner consistent with the
goals and policies of the SAP, would not facilitate the siting and development of compatible technologies that
would benefit from proximity to WPWMA, and would not position the WPWMA facility as a hub of innovation
that promotes the development of a circular economy in Placer County.

7.6 Environmentally Superior Alternative

State CEQA Guidelines Section 15126.6(e)(2) requires the designation of an Environmentally Superior
Alternative to the Project and, if the Environmentally Superior Alternative is the No Project Alternative,
selection of an Environmentally Superior Alternative from among the remaining alternatives.

The Final EIR identifies the No Project Alternative as the Environmentally Superior Alternative to the Project.
The remaining alternatives, Alternatives B (Prioritize Waste Recovery), C (No Organics Processing), and D
(Three-Bin Clean MRF), each have the potential to avoid or reduce some of the significant and unavoidable
impacts of the proposed project. By not fully using the WPWMA'’s eastern and western properties,
Alternatives B and D eliminate the loss and degradation of habitat for special-status wildlife species that rely
on vernal pool-type wetlands for at least part of their lifecycle, including federally listed vernal pool fairy
shrimp and vernal pool tadpole shrimp and western spadefoot, a California species of special concern.
However, the PCCP would address potential impacts to vernal pool-type wetlands on a Countywide basis,
with or without implementation of the Project. Comparatively, by eliminating the processing of organic waste
at the WPWMA facility, Alternative C would significantly reduce the potential for offsite odor impacts.
Because offsite odor impacts have the potential to significantly affect adjacent residents, the WPWMA
determined that reducing the potential for odor impacts was of greater concern than reducing impacts to
vernal pools.

As such, the WPWMA has determined that, other than the No Project Alternative, Alternative C (No Organics
Processing) is the Environmentally Superior Alternative.

7-8 FES1026220700SAC
148



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

8. Findings Regarding Monitoring Program

Section 21081.6 of the Public Resources Code requires that when a public agency is making the finding
required by Section 21081 (a)(1) of the Public Resources Code, the public agency shall adopt a reporting or
monitoring program for the changes made to the Project or conditions of Project approval adopted to
mitigate or avoid significant effects on the environment.

The Board hereby finds that the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program, which is presented as
Appendix A in the Final EIR, meets the requirements of Section 21081.6 of the Public Resources Code.

FES1026220700SAC 8-1
149



PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

150



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

9.

Location and Custodian of Record of Proceedings

In accordance with Public Resources Code Section 21167.6(e), the record of proceedings for the WPWMA'’s
decision on the Project includes the following documents:

The Notice of Preparation and all other public notices issued by the WPWMA in conjunction with the
Project

The Draft EIR for the Project (WPWMA 2021), including Appendices

All comments submitted by agencies or members of the public during the Draft EIR comment period
Documents cited or referenced in the Draft EIR and Final EIR

The mitigation monitoring and reporting program for the Project

Findings and resolutions adopted by the Board in connection with the Project and all documents cited or
referred to therein

Reports, studies, memoranda, maps, staff reports, or other planning documents relating to the Project
prepared by the WPWMA, consultants to the WPWMA, or responsible or trustee agencies with respect to
the WPWMA'’s compliance with requirements of CEQA and with respect to the WPWMA's action on the
Project

Documents submitted to the WPWMA by other public agencies or members of the public in connection
with the Project, up through the close of the Board’s decision on the Project

Any minutes and/or transcripts of all information sessions, public meetings, and public hearings held by
the WPWMA or Board in connection with the Project

Any documentary or other evidence submitted to the WPWMA or Board at such information sessions,
public meetings, and public hearings

Any documents expressly cited in these findings, in addition to those cited previously

Any other materials required for the record of proceedings by Public Resources Code Section 21167.6(e)

The custodian of the documents and other materials that constitute the record upon which these findings are
based is the WPWMA. The record shall be available for public review at the WPWMA office, located at 3013
Fiddyment Road, Roseville, CA 95747.

FES1026220700SAC 9-1

151



PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

152



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

10. Lead Agency’s Independent Judgment

Pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 21082.1(c), the Board hereby finds that the lead agency
(WPWMA) has independently reviewed and analyzed the Final EIR, and that the Final EIR reflects the

independent judgment of the lead agency.

FES1026220700SAC
153



PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

154



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

11. Nature of Findings

Any finding made by the Board shall be deemed made, regardless of where it appears in this document. All of
the language included in this document constitutes findings by the Board, whether or not any particular
sentence or clause includes a statement to that effect. The Board intends that these findings be considered as
an integrated whole, and, whether or not any part of these findings fail to cross reference or incorporate by
reference any other part of these findings, that any finding required or committed to be made by the Board
with respect to any particular subject matter of the Final EIR, shall be deemed to be made if it appears in any
portion of these findings.

FES1026220700SAC
155



PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

156



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

12. Reliance on Record

Each and all of the findings and determinations contained herein are based on substantial evidence, both oral
and written, and shall be contained within the entire administrative record of proceedings relating to the
Project. The findings and determinations constitute the independent findings and determination of this Board
in all respects and are fully and completely supported by substantial evidence in the record as a whole.

FES1026220700SAC
157



PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

158



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

13. Statement of Overriding Considerations

The Final EIR has identified and discussed significant environmental effects that will occur as a result of
project implementation. With implementation of the mitigation measures and project design features
discussed in the Final EIR, these effects can be mitigated to levels considered less than significant except for
significant, unavoidable adverse impacts in the areas of aesthetics, air quality, construction and operational
greenhouse gas emissions, noise, and transportation, as described in Section 5 of this document. Specifically,
implementation of the Project will result in the following significant impacts even after imposition of all
feasible mitigation measures and requires adoption of a Statement of Overriding Considerations.

13.1 Impact Summaries
13.1.1  Aesthetics (Project-Level and Cumulative)

The Final EIR finds that aesthetic impacts to visual character and quality and offsite litter will remain
significant and unavoidable. The Project will expand the landfill’s final elevation substantially above the
surrounding area, and mitigation measures intended to visually screen the landfill from local and distant
viewpoints will be ineffective. The WPWMA will implement offsite litter and truck tarping programs to
manage and prevent litter but the impact of increased litter through the extended life of the WRSL will be
considered significant and unavoidable.

13.1.2  Air Quality (Project-Level and Cumulative)

The Final EIR finds that air quality impacts for the following areas will be significant and unavoidable:

=  Construction Emissions of Criteria Air Pollutants and Ozone Precursors: Construction emissions, even
after mitigation, could contribute further to the nonattainment status of the Placer County and the SVAB
for PMi, and PM:s.

=  Operational Emissions of Criteria Air Pollutants and Ozone Precursors: Operational emissions, even after
mitigation, could contribute further to the nonattainment status of the SVAB for ozone, PM 1, and PM:s. No
additional feasible mitigation measures are available to reduce this impact.

= Objectionable Odors Affecting a Substantial Number of People: The Project will implement numerous
facility improvements, including more efficient waste management operations and odor-abatement
strategies. However, the nature and effectiveness of these strategies are unknown, there are no
quantifiable thresholds of significance for odor impacts, and there is no existing fee program or other
mechanism by which to fund odor mitigation.

13.1.3  Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Climate Change (Project-Level and Cumulative)

The Final EIR finds that Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Climate Change impacts related to construction and
operational impacts will be significant and unavoidable. Even with incorporation of all available and feasible
BMPs, project design measures, and mitigation measures to reduce emissions, including funding of mitigation
fees or purchase of offsets, it is likely that project-related GHG emissions could continue to exceed PCAPCD’s
recommended bright-line threshold of 10,000 MT COze/year. Participation in a verified GHG emission offset
program cannot be assured. No additional feasible mitigation measures are available to reduce this impact.

13.1.4 Noise (Cumulative)

The Final EIR finds that impacts related to short-term construction noise and long-term operational noise
(stationary and transportation) will be significant and unavoidable. Implementation of a noise-reduction

FES1026220700SAC 13-1
159



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

program (SAP Program N-2) was identified as a way to minimize transportation noise associated with
cumulative development, although not to a less-than-significant level.

13.1.5 Transportation (Project-Level and Cumulative)

The Final EIR finds that transportation impacts related to an increase in vehicle miles traveled will be
significant and unavoidable. The nature of the Project is proposed in part to accommodate growth in the
waste stream within south Placer County, and as a result, a net increase in VMT will be expected with project
implementation.

13.2 Regulatory Background

PRC Section 21081 provides that no public agency shall approve or carry out a project for which an EIR has
been certified, which identifies one or more significant effects on the environment that would occur if the
project were carried out, unless the agency makes specific findings with respect to those significant
environmental effects. Where a public agency finds that economic, legal, social, technological, or other
considerations make infeasible the mitigation measures or alternatives identified in the EIR, and thereby
leave significant unavoidable effects, the public agency must also find that, “specific economic, legal, social,
technological, or other considerations, including considerations for the provision of employment
opportunities for highly trained workers, make infeasible the mitigation measures or alternatives identified
in the EIR”

In making this determination, the Lead Agency is guided by CEQA Guidelines Section 15093, which provides
as follows:

(a) CEQA requires the decision-making agency to balance, as applicable, the economic, legal, social,
technological, or other benefits, including regionwide or statewide environmental benefits, of a proposed
project against its unavoidable environmental risks when determining whether to approve the project. If
the specific economic, legal, social, technological, or other benefits, including regionwide or statewide
environmental benefits, of a proposal project outweigh the unavoidable adverse environmental effects,
the adverse environmental effects may be considered "acceptable.”

(b) When the lead agency approves a project which will result in the occurrence of significant effects
which are identified in the final EIR but are not avoided or substantially lessened, the agency shall state in
writing the specific reasons to support its action based on the final EIR and/or other information in the
record. The statement of overriding considerations shall be supported by substantial evidence in the
record.

(c) If an agency makes a statement of overriding considerations, the statement should be included in the
record of the project approval and should be mentioned in the notice of determination. This statement
does not substitute for, and shall be in addition to, findings required pursuant to Section 15091.

13.3 Statement of Overriding Considerations

Having considered the unavoidable adverse significant impacts of the Project, the Board hereby determines
that all feasible mitigation measures have been adopted to minimize, substantially reduce, or avoid the
significant impacts identified in the Final EIR, and that no additional feasible mitigation is available to further
reduce significant impacts. Further, the Board finds that economic, social, and other considerations of the
Project outweigh the significant and unavoidable impacts described previously, and adopts the following
Statement of Overriding Considerations. In making this Finding, the Board has balanced the benefits of the
Project against its significant and unavoidable environmental impacts and has indicated its willingness to
accept those risks. The following statements support the WPWMA'’s action based on the Final EIR and/or

13-2 FES1026220700SAC
160



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

other information in the administrative record. Any one of these overriding considerations, in itself and
independently of the other listed considerations, is sufficient to support the Board’s determinations herein.

= The Project will assist the WPWMA in maintaining a stable and relatively predictable cost structure
through continued local-government control of solid waste management operations that improve
operational efficiencies and extend the operational life of the current WPWMA facility.

= The Project will expand the site’s capacity to divert materials from landfill disposal and contribute to
greenhouse gas emission reductions through expanded organics management, improved recovery of C&D
materials, recycling, and public buy-back activities.

= The Project will increase the WRSL'’s permitted footprint and height to optimize the efficient use of land
for Waste Disposal and so that sufficient Waste Disposal capacity is available to accommodate anticipated
long-term growth in the Participating Agencies’ waste streams.

= The Project will enhance customer safety by improving site access and internal circulation, which will
minimize potential conflicts between commercial vehicles and public users.

= The Project will provide the WPWMA with operational flexibility to accommodate an increasingly
complex and evolving regulatory environment and verify that operations associated with Project
implementation are conducted in the most environmentally responsible manner possible.

= The Project will facilitate the siting and development of compatible technologies that will benefit from
proximity to the WPWMA. Compatible technologies could include both proven and innovative recycling
strategies intended to capitalize on an evolving local recyclable materials market and potentially reduce
dependence on foreign markets.

= The Project will assist the WPWMA in developing compatible technologies that could help achieve state-
mandated waste diversion goals, offset costs associated with ongoing solid waste operations, and
generate innovative and creative economic opportunities within the County consistent with the SAP’s
objectives (Placer County 2019).

= The Project will assist the WPWMA in continuing to improve compatibility between current and future
WPWMA operations and existing and proposed adjacent land uses based on the surrounding area’s
anticipated transition to a more urban environment.

»  The Project will encourage implementation of the Placer County Conservation Program and the
integration of environmentally conscious practices into facility operations.

*  The Project will develop WPWMA properties consistent with the goals, policies, and implementation
programs identified in the SAP (Placer County 2019).

*  The Project will position the WPWMA facility as a hub of innovation that promotes the development of a
circular economy’ in Placer County.

s A circular economy aims to redefine growth, focusing on positive societywide benefits. It entails gradually decoupling economic activity from the
consumption of finite resources, and designing waste out of the system. Underpinned by a transition to renewable energy sources, the circular
model builds economic, natural, and social capital. It is based on three principles: design out waste and pollution, keep products and materials
in use, regenerate natural systems. (https://www.ellenmacarthurfoundation.org/circular-economy/concept)

FES1026220700SAC 13-3
161



PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

162



CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

14. References

BioCycle. 2004. Fire Prevention at Composting, Mulch Facilities. December 16. Accessed June 22, 2021.
https://www.biocycle.net/fire-prevention-at-composting-mulch-facilities/.

California Air Resources Board (CARB). 2015. Risk Management Guidance for Stationary Sources of Air Toxics,
California Air Pollution Control Officers Association. July.

California Air Resources Board (CARB). 2020. Final Statement of Reasons for Rulemaking, Including Summary
of Comments and Agency Response and Final Regulation Order, April 16, 2020. Incorporated the Initial
Statement of Reasons (ISOR), Proposed 2019 Amendments to Area Designations for State Ambient Air Quality
Standards, with Appendix C: Maps and Tables of Area Designations for State and National Ambient Air Quality
Standards. https://ww3.arb.ca.gov/regact/2019/sad19/isorappc.pdf.

California Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery (CalRecycle). 2021. SWIS Facility/Site Activity
Details: Western Regional Landfill (31-AA-0210). Accessed July 1, 2021.
https://www?2.calrecycle.ca.gov/SolidWaste/SiteActivity /Details/2542?site]D=2273

California Department of Transportation (Caltrans). 2015. Annotated Noise Study Report. April.

California Governor’s Office of Emergency Services (CA OES). 2001. Guidelines for Developing a Facility’s
Consolidated Hazardous Materials and Waste Management Plan (Draft). November.

Churchwell White, LLP. 2019. Memorandum from Robin R. Baral to Clayton Cook of the Office of Placer
County Counsel regarding Odor Mitigation for the Sunset Area Plan/Placer Ranch Specific Plan EIR (State
Clearinghouse No. 2016112012). Sent on behalf of the Western Placer Waste Management Authority.
Sacramento, CA. August 22.

City of Lincoln. 2021. City of Lincoln 2020 Urban Water Management Plan. June.

City of Roseville. 2020. Pleasant Grove Wastewater Expansion. Accessed November 6, 2020.
https://www.roseville.ca.us/cms/One.aspx?portalld=7964922&pageld=16723418.

City of Sacramento. 2021. Klotz Ranch Apartments Projects, Mitigation Monitoring Plan. Prepared by
Environmental Science Associates. January 27.

El Dorado County Air Quality Management District, Feather River Air Quality Management District, Placer
County Air Pollution Control District, Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District, and Yolo-
Solano Air Quality Management District. 2017. Sacramento Regional 2008 NAAQS 8-Hour Ozone Attainment
and Reasonable Further Progress Plan. July 24.
http://www.airquality.org/ProgramCoordination/Documents/Sac%20Regional%202008%20NAAQS%20Att
ainment%20and%20RFP%20Plan.pdf.

Golder Associates. 2017a. Joint Technical Document, Western Regional Sanitary Landfill Placer County,
California, Volume 1. August.

Idriss, .M., 2001. Estimation of Earthquake Ground Motions, Western Regional Sanitary Landfill Site, Placer
County, California. June 25.

Michael Baker International. 2015. Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan, Western Placer Waste Management
Authority, 3033 Fiddyment Road, Roseville, CA. June 29.

FES1026220700SAC 14-1
163


https://www.biocycle.net/fire-prevention-at-composting-mulch-facilities/
https://ww3.arb.ca.gov/regact/2019/sad19/isorappc.pdf
https://ww3.arb.ca.gov/regact/2019/sad19/isorappc.pdf
https://ww3.arb.ca.gov/regact/2019/sad19/isorappc.pdf
https://www2.calrecycle.ca.gov/SolidWaste/SiteActivity/Details/2542?siteID=2273
https://www.roseville.ca.us/cms/One.aspx?portalId=7964922&pageId=16723418
http://www.airquality.org/ProgramCoordination/Documents/Sac%20Regional%202008%20NAAQS%20Attainment%20and%20RFP%20Plan.pdf
http://www.airquality.org/ProgramCoordination/Documents/Sac%20Regional%202008%20NAAQS%20Attainment%20and%20RFP%20Plan.pdf

CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

Federal Highway Administration (FHWA). 2012. Manual for Uniform Traffic Control Devices for Streets and
Highways. U.S. Department of Transportation. May.

Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment (OEHHA). 2015. Risk Assessment Guidelines: Guidance
Manual for Preparation of Health Risk Assessments. Air, Community, and Environmental Research Branch.
February.

Placer County. 1994. Placer County General Plan Update Countywide General Plan Final Environmental Impact
Report, State Clearinghouse No. 93082012, Auburn, CA. July 26

Placer County. 2013. Countywide General Plan Policy Document. Last update, May 21, 2013. Auburn, CA.
https://www.placer.ca.gov/DocumentCenter/View/10156 /Placer-County-General-Plan-PDF.

Placer County. 2020a. Placer County Sustainability Plan. Adopted January 28, 2020.
https://www.placer.ca.gov/DocumentCenter/View/42940/PCSP-ADOPTION?bidId=.

Placer County. 2020b. “Appendix A: Western Placer County Habitat Conservation Plan and Natural
Community Conservation Plan.” Placer County Conservation Program. (ICF 04406.04.) Prepared by ICF, San
Francisco, CA. February.

Placer County. 2020c. Placer County Conservation Program Final Environmental Impact
Statement/Environmental Impact Report. May. (ICF 04406.04.) Prepared by ICF, San Francisco, CA.

Placer County. 2020d. “Appendix B: Western Placer County Aquatic Resources Program.” Placer County
Conservation Program. (ICF 04406.04.) Prepared by ICF, San Francisco, CA. February.

Placer County. 2021. Placer Vineyards. Accessed June 22, 2021. https://www.placer.ca.gov/3563/Placer-
Vineyards.

Placer County Air Pollution Control District (PCAPCD). 2017a. CEQA Air Quality Handbook. November 21.
https://www.placer.ca.gov/1801/CEQA-Handbook.

Placer County Air Pollution Control District (PCAPCD). 2017b. Cost-Effectiveness Amount for CEQA Mitigation
and Amendment of “Review of Land Use Projects Under CEQA” Policy. Board Agenda #9. October 12.
https://www.placerair.org/DocumentCenter/View/2069/Board-Memo-and-Policy-Amendment-PDF.

Placer County Air Pollution Control District (PCAPCD). 2021a. District Off-Site Mitigation Fee Program.
https://www.placerair.org/1806/District-Off-Site-Mitigation-Fee-Program.

Placer County, Community Development Resource Agency, Planning Services Division. 2018. Draft
Environmental Impact Report: Sunset Area Plan/Placer Ranch Specific Plan. Auburn, CA.
https://placerair.org/2702/Sunset-Area-Plan---Placer-Ranch-Specific.

Placer County, Community Development Resource Agency, Planning Services Division. 2019. Final
Environmental Impact Report for the Sunset Area Plan/Placer Ranch Specific Plan. October.
https://placerair.org/2702/Sunset-Area-Plan---Placer-Ranch-Specific.

Placer County Water Authority (PCWA). 2016. 2015 Urban Water Management Plan. June 2.

Placer County Water Authority (PCWA). 2017. Senate Bill (SB) 610 Request for the Sunset Area Plan.
November 3.

14-2 FES1026220700SAC
164


https://www.placer.ca.gov/DocumentCenter/View/10156/Placer-County-General-Plan-PDF
https://www.placer.ca.gov/DocumentCenter/View/42940/PCSP-ADOPTION?bidId=
https://www.placer.ca.gov/3563/Placer-Vineyards
https://www.placer.ca.gov/3563/Placer-Vineyards
http://www.placerair.org/landuseandceqa/ceqaairqualityhandbook
http://www.placerair.org/landuseandceqa/ceqaairqualityhandbook
https://www.placerair.org/DocumentCenter/View/2069/Board-Memo-and-Policy-Amendment-PDF
https://www.placerair.org/1806/District-Off-Site-Mitigation-Fee-Program
https://placerair.org/2702/Sunset-Area-Plan---Placer-Ranch-Specific
https://placerair.org/2702/Sunset-Area-Plan---Placer-Ranch-Specific

CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
Regarding the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan

Sacramento Area Council of Governments (SACOG). 2016. 2016 Metropolitan Transportation Plan/Sustainable
Communities Strategy: Building a Sustainable System. https://www.sacog.org/sites/main/files/file-
attachments/mtpscs complete.pdf?1489089196.

Schmidt, CE and TR Card. 2019. Technical Report #2: Odor Mitigation Measures Related to Proposed
Development within the WRSL Buffer Zone. Letter memorandum to Robin Baral of Churchwell White, LLP. Red
Bluff, CA. August 2.

Springsteen, Bruce. 2021. Personal communication between Bruce Springsteen, Placer County Air Pollution
Control District, and Pamela Vanderbilt, Jacobs. February 16.

State of California Department of Conservation, Geological Survey (CGS). 2018. Earthquake Fault Zones, A
Guide for Government Agencies, Property Owners/Developers, and Geoscience Practitioners for Assessing Fault
Rupture Hazards in California, Special Publication 42.

State of California, Department of Finance. 2020. E-4 Population Estimates for Cities, Counties, and the State,
2011-2020, with 2010 Census Benchmark. Sacramento, California, May.

United States Census Bureau (Census). 2019. QuickFacts: Placer County, California. Access June 22, 2021.
https: //www.census.gov/quickfacts/placercountycalifornia.

Western Placer Waste Management Authority (WPWMA). 2020. Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan.
https://renewableplacer.com/.

Western Placer Waste Management Authority (WPWMA). 2021. Renewable Placer: Waste Action Plan Draft
Environmental Impact Report. October. Prepared by Jacobs.

FES1026220700SAC 14-3
165


https://www.sacog.org/sites/main/files/file-attachments/mtpscs_complete.pdf?1489089196
https://www.sacog.org/sites/main/files/file-attachments/mtpscs_complete.pdf?1489089196
https://www.census.gov/quickfacts/placercountycalifornia
https://renewableplacer.com/

PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

166



MEMORANDUM
WESTERN PLACER WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

TO: WPWMA BOARD OF DIRECTORS DATE: NOVEMBER 10, 2022
FROM: KEN GREHM / ERIC ODDO &0
SUBJECT: FISCAL YEAR 2022/23 FINAL BUDGETS

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Approve the Fiscal Year 2022/23 Final Budgets for the Operating Fund,
Closure/Postclosure Fund, Self-Insurance Fund and Odor Management Fund as
presented in Exhibits A, B and C.

BACKGROUND:
The WPWMA operates within four budgets:

1. The Closure/Postclosure Fund, the purpose of which is to ensure adequate
funding for corrective action, final closure and post-closure monitoring and
maintenance of the landfill;

2. The Self Insurance Fund, which was established to cover expenses from
claims, lawsuits and damage assessments against the WPWMA;

3. The Odor Management Fund', which covers expenses related specifically to
odor monitoring, management, and public outreach; and

4. The Operating Fund, which covers all other expenses of the WPWMA, including
the MRF and landfill operating agreements.

On May 12, 2022, your Board approved the WPWMA's Fiscal Year 2022/23 Preliminary
Budgets and directed staff to return to your Board for consideration of the Final
Budgets.

The Final Budgets were developed based on the Financial Forecast (Exhibit D) and the
following parameters:

1. Tipping Fee Structure — At the July 21, 2022 meeting, your Board approved a
three-year tipping fee schedule to ensure sufficient revenues will be available to
pay ongoing operations and maintenance costs, fund debt service requirements,
and meet the bond coverage covenants. The next approved rate adjustment is
scheduled to take effect January 1, 2023.

2. Projected Tonnage — 527,237 total tons accepted, composed of mixed solid
waste, sludge, green waste, commercial food waste, construction and demolition
debris, wood waste and inerts.

Staff estimates that, after taking into account tonnages associated with one-time
projects, the potential for customers to deliver materials to other facilities, and the

" Odor management costs are technically included in the Operating Fund. Staff are presenting these odor-related costs and
revenues as a separate “fund” solely for the purposes of transparency and clarity as it relates to the WPWMA's ongoing efforts
related to facility odors.

167



WPWMA BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FISCAL YEAR 2022/23 FINAL BUDGETS
NOVEMBER 10, 2021

PAGE 2

current state of the economy, the WPWMA will realize a decrease in waste
tonnages of 4.4% compared to the quantities received in FY 2021/22.

Specifically, compared to the projections included in the Preliminary Budget, staff
have reduced quantity and corresponding revenue estimates for MSW by 4.7%,
miscellaneous materials (primarily large appliances) by 17.5% and wood waste
by 5.5%. The reduction in these material streams is anticipated as a result of
current inflationary pressures affecting discretionary spending. Conversely, staff
have increased the quantity and corresponding revenue estimates for
greenwaste by 1.1%, inert materials (concrete, rock, and soil) by 5.0% and
foodwaste by 29.0%. The current trend related to the acceptance of inert
materials would suggest the tipping fee increase implemented on July 1, 2022 is
having less of an adverse impact than expected. While the relative increase in
foodwaste quantities is significant, likely the result of continued expansion of
organics collection by the Participating Agencies, the overall tonnage received is
relatively low.

Debt Service and Coverage — As a result of the sale of bonds in early September
for the MRF improvements and current landfill liner construction, annual principle
and interest costs will be presented in future Operations Budgets. For

FY 2022/23, the WPWMA will be required to pay $2,215,000 in principle and
$3,448,615 in interest payments. These payments are due and payable by

June 1, 2023.

As a covenant of the bonds, the WPWMA is obligated to demonstrate it has
generated net revenues, after paying operating and maintenance costs, equal to
at least 125% of the annual debt service (referred to as “Coverage”). In its
financial proforma presented to S&P Global Ratings, the WPWMA presented
annual Coverage rates in excess of 150%, which contributed to achieving a
rating of “AA”. The proposed FY 2022/23 Final Budget is expected to result in a
Coverage rate of 153%.

Rate Stabilization Fund — Historically, any unspent revenues remaining at the
end of a fiscal year were identified in the subsequent fiscal year’'s budget as
“‘retained earnings” and treated as a source of available revenue. Beginning in
FY 2022/23, and in accordance with Resolution 22-08 adopted by your Board at
the August 11, 2022 meeting, any unspent revenues in the Operations Budget
remaining at the end of the fiscal year will be deposited into a Rate Stabilization
Fund. These monies will be available to your Board for future expenditures
including, but not limited to, early retirement of the bonds.

Construction Projects — As shown at the bottom of the second page of Exhibit A,
$58,891,588 is budgeted for the following anticipated projects:

a. Continued design, equipment fabrication and facility construction of MRF and
composting system upgrades by FCC ($50,015,278).

b. Soil excavation and stockpiling as part of development of landfill Module 6
($6,853,000).

c. Completion of the expansion and lining of the north compost pond and
installation of electrical control panel ($1,238,710).

168



WPWMA BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FISCAL YEAR 2022/23 FINAL BUDGETS
NOVEMBER 10, 2021

PAGE 3

d. Potential installation of a groundwater pump and treat system and compost
groundwater monitoring wells ($400,000).

e. Install replacement landfill gas wells in Modules 1, 2, 10 and 11 ($200,000).

f. Install continuous flow and pH monitoring systems and sewer lift station to
conform to new City of Roseville discharge permit ($65,000).

g. Upgrade and expansion of the CCTV system ($60,000).

h. Decommission and abandon on-site water production well near closed portion
of the landfill ($30,000).

i. Procure and install an on-site radio communications system ($29,600).

6. Reserve Accounts — A net increase to reserves totaling $943,671. Staff
recommends utilizing $695,000 from the Operating Fund — Contingencies
Reserve Account for landfill-related construction projects and $3,500,000 from
the Operating Fund — Rate Stabilization fund to be used to supplement operating
year revenues. Immediate use of the Rate Stabilization funds for this purpose
were anticipated and identified in the Bond proforma and when the Rate
Stabilization fund was initially established.

Total fund balances and reserves at the end of the prior and current fiscal years are
projected as follows:

FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23
Operating Fund $19,139,855 $18,746,054
Closure/Postclosure Fund $14,453,043 $15,381,604
Self-Insurance Fund $4,369,399 $4,762,259
Odor Management Fund $85,734 $101,785
Total Reserves $38,048,031 $38,991,702

ENVIRONMENTAL CLEARANCE:

Approval of the Final Budgets does not constitute a "Project" under the California
Environmental Quality Act, per CEQA Guidelines Section 15378(b)(5), because your
Board does not fully commit to any individual project when approving the budgets.
Appropriate environmental review will be conducted prior to your Board’s approval of

individual projects.
FISCAL IMPACT:

The Preliminary Budgets include sufficient funding to generate retained earnings for future

use. Cancellation of reserves, other than the effective transfer of funds from the

Closure/Postclosure General Reserve to the Landfill Closure/Postclosure Liability account,

is not anticipated.
ATTACHMENTS: EXHIBIT A— OPERATING FUND

EXHIBIT B — CLOSURE/POSTCLOSURE FUND AND SELF-INSURANCE FUND

EXHIBIT C — ODOR MANAGEMENT FUND
EXHIBIT D — FINANCIAL FORECAST

169



EXHIBIT A

OPERATIONS FUND 2021/22
Final Budget
SOURCES OF FUNDS

Retained Earnings 6,614,214
42010: Investment Income 109,229
42030: Rents and Concessions

Rent 108,736

Royalties 303,741
44270: State Aid - Other Programs 0
46240: Road and Street Services 33,018
46250: Solid Waste Disposal 42,514,953
46430: Insurance Settlements 0
48030: Miscellaneous 7,500

49060: Contributions from Other Funds: Closure/Postclosure
49060: Contributions from Other Funds: Self Insurance
49140: Bond Proceeds

Reserve Cancellations

Fixed Asset Acquisition 0
Road Improvement 0
HHW Closure 0
Imprest Cash 0
Contingencies 5,400,000
Rate Stabilization 0
TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS 55,091,391
USES OF FUNDS
Ongoing Operations 32,492,791
Major Construction Projects 10,458,140
Land Acquisition 0
Contribution to Reserves
Fixed Asset Acquisition 12,106,741
Road Improvement 33,018
HHW Closure 701
Imprest Cash 0
Contingencies 0
Rate Stabilization
Auditor's Year End Adjustment 0
Retained Earnings 0
TOTAL USES OF FUNDS 55,091,391
OPERATING FUND RESERVE BALANCES
Fixed Asset Acquisition 23,325,866
Road Improvement 125,431
HHW Closure 35,997
Imprest Cash 8,600
Contingencies 6,849,428
Rate Stabilization 0
TOTAL OPERATING FUND RESERVE BALANCES 30,345,321

170

2021/22
Actual

6,614,214

78,716

49,546
477,029
67,976
34,293
44,185,046
1,944,129
84,238

2,610,858

10,500,000

O O o oo

66,646,044

28,679,780
31,931,270
0

34,293
701

0

0
6,000,000

0

66,646,044

719,125
126,705
35,997
8,600
12,249,428
6,000,000

19,139,855

2022/23
Final Budget

104,614

93,429

499,148

0

31,617

45,173,775

208,637
1,170,560

57,867,742

[eNelNoNe]

695,000
3,500,000

109,344,521

46,775,449
58,891,588
0

500,000
31,617
715

0

0
3,268,867

0

109,468,236

1,219,125
158,322
36,712
8,600
11,554,428
5,768,867

18,746,054

Notes



APPROPRIATIONS BY ACCOUNT

51010: Wages and Salaries

51040: Overtime and Call Back Pay
51090: Cafeteria Plans (Non-PERS)
51120: Uniform Allowance

51210: Retirement

51220: Payroll Taxes

51240: Other Postemployment Benefits
51310: Employee Group Insurance
52030: Clothing and Personal

52040: Communication Services Expense
52050: Food

52060: Household Expense

52080: Insurance

52140: Parts

52160: Maintenance

52161: Maintenance - Buildings

52170: Fuels and Lubricants

52180: Materials - Buildings & Improvements
52240: Professional / Membership Dues
52250: Services and Supplies

52260: Misc Expense

52320: Printing

52330: Office and Other Supplies
52340: Postage

52360: Prof. & Special Svcs - General
52370: Prof. & Special Svcs - Legal

52380: Prof. & Special Svcs - Tech., Eng. & Env.

52390: Prof. & Special Svcs - County
52400: Prof. & Special Svcs - IT
52440: Rents and Leases - Equipment

52450: Rents and Leases - Buildings & Improvements

52460: Small Tools & Instruments
52480: PC Acquisition

52510: Director's Fees

52540: Signing & Safety Material
52560: Small Equipment

52570: Advertising

52580: Special Department Expense
52785: Training / Education

52790: Transportation and Travel
52800: Utilities

52810: Operating Materials

53020: Bond Principle

53050: Debt Issuance Costs

53060: Bond Interest

53190: Taxes and Assessments
53250: Contributions to other Agencies
53390: Transfer Out A-87 Costs
54410: Land

54430: Buildings and Improvements
54450: Equipment

54470: Infrastructure

54480: Land Improvements

55510: Operating Transfer Out

55550: Transfer to County for Road Improvements

55550: Transfer to Closure/Postclosure Fund
55550: Transfer to Self Insurance Fund
59000: Appropriation for Contingencies

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

SUMMARY OF APPROPRIATIONS
Related to Ongoing Operations
Related to Construction Projects
Related to Land Acquisition

2021/22

Final Budget
1,247,715
0
0
0
460,131
93,685
147,073
239,094
3,500
35,000
1,500
3,000
212,000
1,500
32,746
25,000
300
300
2,600
200
2,000
8,000
25,000
3,500
4,730,305
75,000
23,276,928
126,000
40,000
100
100
1,000
12,500
6,000
10,000
100
30,000
14,060
10,000
50,000
300,000
1,000
0

0

749,302
266,553
250,000

0

0

385,000
2,025,000
8,048,140

O OO oo

42,950,931

32,492,791
10,458,140
0

171

2021/22
Actual

1,095,913
32,243
55,311
2,184
389,226
84,353
56,944
237,599
1,574
16,551
1,361
495
232,587
238
5,432
21,138
1,912
782
3,371
871
920
32,213
20,142
4,100
3,004,596
155,317
21,761,669
223,646
127,049
0
0
619
0
5,700
48
0
15,671
4,075
3,521
45,002
130,217
0
0
0
0
596,951
262,870
45,369
0
1,134,651
29,187,189
0
1,609,430

O O O oo

60,611,050

28,679,780
31,931,270
0

2022/23
Final Budget

1,258,855
33,565
57,579
2,400
405,184
87,727
59,278
247,340
6,000
16,882
1,000
3,000
341,907
3,000
32,911
30,000
2,000
1,000
5,000
1,000
0
32,200
25,000
4,110
2,975,659
160,000
32,365,152
249,600
135,200
100
100
1,000
12,500
6,000
10,000
100
20,000
10,000
10,000
48,000
250,000
1,000
2,215,000
999,464
3,488,615
549,512
269,442
84,000
0
30,603,376
19,701,502
695,000
7,891,710

105,667,037

46,775,449
58,891,588
0

Notes



SUB-ACCOUNT DETAIL

52360: Prof. & Special Svcs - General
2810: Financial Services
2880: Administration
2900: Audit Costs
2920: Aerial Surveys and Mapping Services
2940: Consulting Services
2950: Professional Engineering Services
2977: Website Services
3020: Armored Car Services
3045: Temporary Worker Services

52380: Prof. & Special Svcs - Tech., Eng. & Env.
3140: Building Maintenance, Installation & Repairs
3180: MRF Operations
3190: Landfill Operations
3200: New Building Construction Services
3320: Envrionmental and Ecological Services
3322: Hazardous Waste (Temporary HHW events)

53190: Taxes and Assessments
4870: Taxes and Assessments - Disposal Taxes
4870: Taxes and Assessments - Property Taxes
4870: Taxes and Assessments - Permit Fees
4870: Taxes and Assessments - Fines and Penalties

MAJOR CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS

54430: Buildings and Improvements
Building Expansions, Retrofits and Modifications

54450: Equipment
MRF Equipment
LFG Equipment
Composting Systems
Information and Communications Technology
Security Systems
Misc Equipment

54470: Infrastructure
Power
Water
Leachate/Sewage
LFG Wells and Piping
LFG Monitoring Systems
Water Monitoring Systems

54480: Land Improvements
Liner Systems
Cover Systems
Compost Pads and Ponds
Other

MAJOR CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS TOTAL

2021/22
Final Budget

155,299
500
20,000
5,500
793,139
3,683,867
0

12,000
60,000

5,000
19,397,601
2,764,327
0
1,000,000
110,000

448,689

613
200,000
100,000

200,000

25,000
100,000
60,000

565,000
1,220,000
240,000

2,648,140
5,400,000

7,665,327

172

2021/22
Actual

155,020

0

0

5,386
450,903
2,318,478
6,125
6,305
62,380

0
18,826,822
2,577,934
0

356,914

0

502,608

705

93,638

0

1,134,651

29,187,189

1,609,430

31,931,270

2022/23
Final Budget

160,412

0

20,000

5,500
701,000
1,984,500
6,248
8,000
90,000

5,000
29,208,676
2,791,477
0

300,000
60,000

448,262
750
100,000
500

30,603,376

19,411,902
200,000

29,600
60,000

30,000
65,000
200,000

400,000

1,038,710
6,853,000

58,891,588

Notes

MRF upgrades by FCC

MRF upgrades by FCC

Compost electrical system
On-site radio system
Upgrade CCTV system

Decommission onsite well
Install continuous monitoring at discharge
Replace gas wells on Mods 1, 2, 10 and 11

Pump and Treat and GW wells near compost

Complete North Compost Pond liner project
Module 6 soil excavation



TIPPING FEE STRUCTURE

Tipping Fee ($ per ton)
MSW
C&D

Sludge and Mixed Inerts

Green Waste

Wood Waste

Food Waste

Inerts

H20 Sludge
Roseville Recyclables
Bulk Tires

Tipping Fee ($ per cubic yard)

MSW

C&D

Green Waste
Wood Waste
Inerts

Tipping Fee ($ per unit)
Appliances
CFC Devices
Car Tires
Truck Tires
Tractor Tires

MATERIAL QUANTITIES

MSW
Tonnage
Yardage
C&D
Tonnage
Yardage
Sludge and Mixed Inerts
Green Waste
Tonnage
Yardage
Wood Waste
Tonnage
Yardage
Food Waste
Inerts
Tonnage
Yardage
Appliances
CFC Devices
Tires
Car
Truck
Tractor
Bulk Tonnage
H20 Sludge
Treated Wood Waste

2021/22
Final Budget

88.00
88.00
50.00
66.00
40.00
46.50
25.00
9.23
188.00
205.00

20.00
20.00
14.00
12.50
25.00

8.25
38.00
3.75
20.50
82.00

251,783
148,520

106,820
41,364
20,065

55,026
47,713

6,692
9,885
2,344

42,672
23,638
9,766
3,985

6,345
96

60

37
1,009
409

173

2021/22
Actual

88.00 / 95.50
88.00/95.50
50.00 / 54.25
68.00/74.00
40.00
68.00/74.00
25.00
10.00/11.00
193.00/210.25
210.00/228.75

20.00/21.75

20.00/21.75

16.00/17.50
12.50
25.00

8.50/9.50
39.00/42.50
4.00/4.50
21.00/23.00
84.00/91.50

256,574
169,187

120,468
0
20,993

57,503
39,732

8,256
5,961
2,437

44,672
19,335
11,263

4,712

6,698
110
47

52
1,231
257

2022/23
Final Budget

103.75
103.75
59.00
80.50
55.00
80.50
60.00
11.50
216.50
235.50

23.75

23.75

19.00
16.00
60.00

10.00
43.75

4.75
23.75
94.25

246,889
151,216

119,396
0
18,471

58,073
38,509

7,793
5,580
3,176

27,923
11,599
7,171
4,000

5,686
93
40
44

1,045

218

Notes



EXHIBIT B

CLOSURE / POSTCLOSURE FUND 2021/22 2021/22 2022/23
Final Budget Actual Final Budget
SOURCES OF FUNDS
Retained Earnings 0 0 0
42010: Investment Income 76,073 30,448 91,054
46250: Solid Waste Disposal 322,684 348,342 579,440
258,066
General Reserve Cancellations 0 387,008 240,103
TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS 398,757 765,798 1,168,663
USES OF FUNDS
Closure/Postclosure Liability Adjustment (9,951) 765,798 1,123,401
Contribuition to General Reserves 408,708 0 45,262
Contribution to Operating Fund 0 0 0
Retained Earnings 0 0 0
TOTAL USES OF FUNDS 398,757 765,798 1,168,663
CLOSURE/POSTCLOSURE FUND BALANCE
Closure/Postclosure Liability 13,411,978 14,200,297 15,323,698
General Reserves 1,074,352 252,746 57,906
TOTAL CLOSURE/POSTCLOSURE FUND BALANCE 14,486,330 14,453,043 15,381,604
SELF INSURANCE FUND 2021/22 2021/22 2022/23
Final Budget Actual Final Budget
SOURCES OF FUNDS
Retained Earnings 0 0 365,333
42010: Investment Income 39,581 15,772 27,527
46250: Solid Waste Disposal 0 0 0
Future Occurances Reserve Cancellations 65,449 3,065,449 0
TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS 105,030 3,081,221 392,860
USES OF FUNDS
52360: Prof. & Special Svcs - General 0 0 0
52370: Prof. & Special Svcs - Legal 0 0 0
52380: Prof. & Special Svcs - Tech., Eng. & Env. 0 0 0
52390: Prof. & Special Svcs - County 0 0 0
53140: Judgements and Damages 0 0 0
55550: Transfer to Operating Fund 0 2,610,858 0
Contribuition to Reserve for Future Occurances 105,030 105,030 392,860
Retained Earnings 0 365,333 0
TOTAL USES OF FUNDS 105,030 2,715,888 392,860
SELF INSURANCE RESERVE BALANCE
Reserve for Future Occurrences 7,369,398 4,369,399 4,762,259

174

Notes



EXHBIT C

ODOR MANAGEMENT FUND 2021/22 2021/22 2022/23
Final Budget Actual Final Budget
SOURCES OF FUNDS
Retained Earnings 0 0 127
42010: Investment Income 380 444 600
46250: Solid Waste Disposal 232,527 243,878 228,106
49060: Contributions from Other Funds
PRSP towards Capital Improvements 0 0 0
PRSP towards Operations and Maintenance 0 0 0
SAP towards Capital Improvements 0 0 0
SAP towards Operations and Maintenance 0 0 0
Odor Management Reserve Cancellations 0 0 0
TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS 232,907 244,321 228,833
USES OF FUNDS
Ongoing Operations 210,536 98,108 212,782
Major Construction Projects 0 0 0
Contribution to Reserves
SAP/PRSP Capital and Operating 0 0 0
Non SAP/PRSP Capital and Operating 22,371 22,371 16,051
Rate Stabilization Fund 0 123,715 0
Auditor's Year End Adjustment 0 0 0
Retained Earnings 0 127 0
TOTAL USES OF FUNDS 232,907 244,321 228,833
ODOR MANAGEMENT FUND RESERVE BALANCES
SAP/PRSP Capital and Operating 0 0 0
Non SAP/PRSP Capital and Operating 85,734 85,734 101,785
TOTAL ODOR MANAGEMENT FUND RESERVE BALANCES 85,734 85,734 101,785
APPROPRIATIONS BY ACCOUNT
51010: Wages and Salaries 31,267 27,172 28,259
51040: Overtime and Call Back Pay 0 601 625
51090: Cafeteria Plans (Non-PERS) 0 729 758
51120: Uniform Allowance 0 21 22
51210: Retirement 11,531 8,373 8,708
51220: Payroll Taxes 2,348 2,099 2,183
51240: Other Postemployment Benefits 3,686 1,160 1,206
51310: Insurance 5,992 3,566 3,708
52050: Food 0 0 0
52140: Parts 0 0 0
52160: Maintenance 120,486 98,020 122,892
52260: Misc Expense 0 0 0
52320: Printing 2,800 0 2,800
52330: Other Supplies 0 0 0
52340: Postage 0 88 90
52360: Prof. & Special Svcs - General 0 0 0
52380: Prof. & Special Svcs - Tech., Eng. & Env. 80,000 0 80,000
52460: Small Tools & Instruments 0 0 0
52480: PC Acquisition 0 0 0
52560: Small Equipment 0 0 0
52570: Advertising 5,000 0 5,000
52580: Special Department Expense 250 0 0
54430: Buildings and Improvements 0 0 0
54450: Equipment 0 0 0
54470: Infrastructure 0 0 0
54480: Land Improvements 0 0 0
59000: Appropriation for Contingencies 0 0 2,000
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 263,358 98,108 212,782

175

Notes



EXHIBIT D

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27
OPERATIONS FUND
SOURCES OF FUNDS
Retained Earnings 6,614,214 0 0 0 0 0
42010: Investment Income 78,716 104,614 89,222 107,766 124,014 96,604
42030: Rents and Concessions
Rent 49,546 93,429 70,951 69,768 0 0
Royalties 477,029 499,148 0 0 0 0
44270: State Aid - Other Programs 67,976 0 0 0 0 0
46240: Road and Street Services 34,293 31,617 31,685 32,309 32,366 32,675
46250: Solid Waste Disposal 44,185,046 45,173,775 50,841,143 53,764,694 54,925,666 56,791,742
46430: Insurance Settlements 1,944,129 208,637 0 0 0 0
48030: Miscellaneous 84,238 1,170,560 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000
49060: Contributions from Other Funds: Closure/Postclosure
49060: Contributions from Other Funds: Self Insurance 2,610,858
49140: Bond Proceeds 57,867,742 41,511,268 1,589,799
Reserve Cancellations
Fixed Asset Acquisition 10,500,000 0 0 0 0 0
Road Improvement 0 0 0 0 0 0
HHW Closure 0 0 0 0 0 0
Imprest Cash 0 0 0 0 0 0
Contingencies 0 695,000 6,000,000 0 0 0
Rate Stabilization 0 3,500,000 0 0 0 7,230,000
TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS 66,646,044 109,344,521 98,559,270 55,579,335 55,097,046 64,166,021
USES OF FUNDS
Ongoing Operations 28,679,780 46,775,449 47,995,937 51,668,415 51,782,649 60,320,723
Major Construction Projects 31,931,270 58,891,588 47,914,268 1,589,799 0 1,566,100
Land Acquisition 0 0 0 0 0 0
Contribution to Reserves
Fixed Asset Acquisition 0 500,000 0 250,000 250,000 250,000
Road Improvement 34,293 31,617 31,685 32,309 32,366 32,675
HHW Closure 701 715 729 744 759 774
Imprest Cash 0 0 0 0 0 0
Contingencies 0 0 0 0 1,000,000 750,000
Rate Stabilization 6,000,000 3,268,867 2,616,651 2,038,068 2,031,272 1,245,749
Auditor's Year End Adjustment 0 0 0 0 0 0
Retained Earnings 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL USES OF FUNDS 66,646,044 109,468,236 98,559,270 55,579,335 55,097,046 64,166,021
OPERATING FUND RESERVE BALANCES
Fixed Asset Acquisition 719,125 1,219,125 1,219,125 1,469,125 1,719,125 1,969,125
Road Improvement 126,705 158,322 190,008 222,317 254,683 287,358
HHW Closure 35,997 36,712 37,441 38,185 38,944 39,718
Imprest Cash 8,600 8,600 8,600 8,600 8,600 8,600
Contingencies 12,249,428 11,554,428 5,554,428 5,554,428 6,554,428 7,304,428
Rate Stabilization 6,000,000 5,768,867 8,385,518 10,423,586 12,454,858 6,470,607
TOTAL OPERATING FUND RESERVE BALANCES 19,139,855 18,746,054 15,395,119 17,716,240 21,030,638 16,079,836

176



2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27

APPROPRIATIONS BY ACCOUNT
51010: Wages and Salaries 1,095,913 1,258,855 1,310,468 1,362,887 1,386,737 1,411,005
51040: Overtime and Call Back Pay 32,243 33,565 34,942 36,339 36,975 37,622
51090: Cafeteria Plans (Non-PERS) 55,311 57,579 54,000 54,000 54,000 54,000
51120: Uniform Allowance 2,184 2,400 2,400 2,400 2,400 2,400
51210: Retirement 389,226 405,184 421,796 438,668 446,345 454,156
51220: Payroll Taxes 84,353 87,727 91,237 94,886 96,547 98,236
51240: Other Postemployment Benefits 56,944 59,278 61,709 64,177 65,300 66,443
51310: Employee Group Insurance 237,599 247,340 257,481 267,780 272,467 277,235
52030: Clothing and Personal 1,574 6,000 2,500 2,550 2,601 2,653
52040: Communication Services Expense 16,551 16,882 17,220 17,564 17,916 18,274
52050: Food 1,361 1,000 1,020 1,040 1,061 1,082
52060: Household Expense 495 3,000 3,060 3,121 3,184 3,247
52080: Insurance 232,587 341,907 359,003 376,953 395,801 415,591
52140: Parts 238 3,000 3,060 3,121 3,184 3,247
52160: Maintenance 5,432 32,911 33,400 33,898 34,407 34,925
52161: Maintenance - Buildings 21,138 30,000 30,600 31,212 31,836 32,473
52170: Fuels and Lubricants 1,912 2,000 2,040 2,081 2,122 2,165
52180: Materials - Buildings & Improvements 782 1,000 1,020 1,040 1,061 1,082
52240: Professional / Membership Dues 3,371 5,000 5,100 5,202 5,306 5,412
52250: Services and Supplies 871 1,000 1,020 1,040 1,061 1,082
52260: Misc Expense 920 0 0 0 0 0
52320: Printing 32,213 32,200 32,844 33,501 34,171 34,854
52330: Office and Other Supplies 20,142 25,000 25,500 26,010 26,530 27,061
52340: Postage 4,100 4,110 4,108 4,106 4,104 4,102
52360: Prof. & Special Svcs - General 3,004,596 2,975,659 2,454,857 2,510,655 2,561,231 2,613,901
52370: Prof. & Special Svcs - Legal 155,317 160,000 163,200 166,464 169,793 173,189
52380: Prof. & Special Svcs - Tech., Eng. & Env. 21,761,669 32,365,152 33,212,451 36,780,450 36,814,228 37,999,329
52390: Prof. & Special Svcs - County 223,646 249,600 259,584 269,967 274,692 279,499
52400: Prof. & Special Svcs - IT 127,049 135,200 140,608 146,232 148,791 151,395
52440: Rents and Leases - Equipment 0 100 102 104 106 108
52450: Rents and Leases - Buildings & Improvements 0 100 102 104 106 108
52460: Small Tools & Instruments 619 1,000 1,020 1,040 1,061 1,082
52480: PC Acquisition 0 12,500 2,500 2,550 30,000 5,500
52510: Director's Fees 5,700 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000
52540: Signing & Safety Material 48 10,000 1,000 1,020 1,040 1,061
52560: Small Equipment 0 100 102 104 106 108
52570: Advertising 15,671 20,000 10,900 10,798 10,694 10,588
52580: Special Department Expense 4,075 10,000 5,000 5,100 5,202 5,306
52785: Training / Education 3,521 10,000 10,200 10,404 10,612 10,824
52790: Transportation and Travel 45,002 48,000 48,960 49,939 50,938 51,957
52800: Utilities 130,217 250,000 255,000 260,100 265,302 270,608
52810: Operating Materials 0 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000
53020: Bond Principle 0 2,215,000 3,135,000 3,290,000 3,450,000 10,850,000
53050: Debt Issuance Costs 0 999,464 0 0 0 0
53060: Bond Interest 0 3,488,615 4,631,285 4,478,825 4,318,825 4,151,043
53190: Taxes and Assessments 596,951 549,512 541,361 446,897 363,646 368,353
53250: Contributions to other Agencies 262,870 269,442 276,178 283,082 290,159 297,413
53390: Transfer Out A-87 Costs 45,369 84,000 84,000 84,000 84,000 84,000
54410: Land 0 0 0 0 0 0
54430: Buildings and Improvements 1,134,651 30,603,376 2,751,366 294,988 0 0
54450: Equipment 29,187,189 19,701,502 37,162,902 1,294,811 0 0
54470: Infrastructure 0 695,000 0 0 0 0
54480: Land Improvements 1,609,430 7,891,710 8,000,000 0 0 1,566,100
55510: Operating Transfer Out 0 0 0 0 0 0
55550: Transfer to County for Road Improvements 0 0 0 0 0 0
55550: Transfer to Closure/Postclosure Fund 0 258,066
55550: Transfer to Self Insurance Fund 0 0
59000: Appropriation for Contingencies 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 60,611,050 105,667,037 95,910,205 53,258,214 51,782,649 61,886,823
SUMMARY OF APPROPRIATIONS

Related to Ongoing Operations 28,679,780 46,775,449 47,995,937 51,668,415 51,782,649 60,320,723

Related to Construction Projects 31,931,270 58,891,588 47,914,268 1,589,799 0 1,566,100

Related to Land Acquisition 0 0 0 0 0 0

177



SUB-ACCOUNT DETAIL

52360: Prof. & Special Svcs - General
2810: Financial Services
2880: Administration
2900: Audit Costs
2920: Aerial Surveys and Mapping Services
2940: Consulting Services
2950: Professional Engineering Services
2977: Website Services
3020: Armored Car Services
3045: Temporary Worker Services

52380: Prof. & Special Svcs - Tech., Eng. & Env.
3140: Building Maintenance, Installation & Repairs
3180: MRF Operations
3190: Landfill Operations
3200: New Building Construction Services
3320: Envrionmental and Ecological Services
3322: Hazardous Waste (Temp Events & Sac County)

53190: Taxes and Assessments
4870: Taxes and Assessments - Disposal Taxes
4870: Taxes and Assessments - Property Taxes
4870: Taxes and Assessments - Permit Fees
4870: Taxes and Assessments - Fines and Penalties

MAJOR CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS

54430: Buildings and Improvements
Building Expansions, Retrofits and Modifications

54450: Equipment
MRF Equipment
LFG Equipment
Composting Systems
Information and Communications Technology
Security Systems
Misc Equipment

54470: Infrastructure
Power
Water
Leachate/Sewage
LFG Wells and Piping
LFG Monitoring Systems
Water Monitoring Systems

54480: Land Improvements
Liner Systems
Cover Systems
Compost Pads and Ponds
Other

MAJOR CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS TOTAL

2021/22

155,020

0

0

5,386
450,903
2,318,478
6,125
6,305
62,380

0
18,826,822
2,577,934
0

356,914

0

502,608

705

93,638

0

1,134,651

29,187,189

1,609,430

31,931,270

178

2022/23

160,412
0

20,000
5,500
701,000
1,984,500
6,248
8,000
90,000

5,000
29,208,676
2,791,477
0

300,000
60,000

448,262
750
100,000
500

30,603,376

19,411,902
200,000

29,600
60,000

30,000
65,000
200,000

400,000

1,038,710
6,853,000

58,891,588

2023/24

181,025
0

20,400
5,610
511,020
1,630,470
6,372
8,160
91,800

5,100
30,017,951
2,824,400
0

301,500
63,500

438,088
773
102,000
500

2,751,366

37,112,902

50,000

8,000,000

47,914,268

2024/25

191,346
0

20,808
5,722
521,240
1,663,079
6,500
8,323
93,636

5,202
33,547,993
2,859,160
0

303,008
65,088

341,561

796

104,040

500

294,988

1,294,811

1,589,799

2025/26

195,535
0

21,224
5,837
531,665
1,696,341
6,630
8,490
95,509

5,306
33,537,788
2,899,897
0

304,523
66,715

256,205
820
106,121
500

0

2026/27

200,892
0

21,649
5,953
542,299
1,730,268
6,762
8,659
97,419

5,412
34,667,954
2,951,535
0

306,045
68,383

258,766
844
108,243
500

1,566,100

1,566,100



2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27

TIPPING FEE STRUCTURE
Tipping Fee ($ per ton)

MSW 88.00 88.00/95.50 103.75 106.50 108.50 110.50
C&D 88.00 88.00/95.50 103.75 106.50 108.50 110.50
Sludge and Mixed Inerts 50.00 50.00/54.25 59.00 60.50 61.50 62.50
Green Waste 66.00 68.00/74.00 80.50 82.75 84.25 85.75
Wood Waste 40.00 55.00 56.75 58.25 59.25 60.25
Food Waste 46.50 68.00/74.00 80.50 82.75 84.25 85.75
Inerts 25.00 60.00 61.75 63.50 64.75 66.00
H20 Sludge 9.23 10.00/11.00 11.50 12.00 12.00 12.00
Treated Wood Waste 188.00 193.00/210.25 216.50 222.00 226.25 230.75
Bulk Tires 204.00 210.00/228.75 235.50 241.50 246.25 251.00

Tipping Fee ($ per cubic yard)

MSW 20.00 20.00/21.75 23.75 24.50 24.75 25.00
C&D 20.00 20.00/21.75 23.75 24.50 24.75 25.00
Green Waste 14.00 16.00/17.50 19.00 19.50 19.75 20.00
Wood Waste 12.50 16.00 16.50 17.00 17.25 17.50
Inerts 25.00 60.00 61.75 63.50 64.75 66.00

Tipping Fee ($ per unit)

Appliances 8.25 8.50/9.50 10.00 10.50 10.50 10.50

CFC Devices 38.00 39.00/42.50 43.75 45.00 45.75 46.50

Car Tires 3.75 4.00/4.50 4.75 5.00 5.00 5.00

Truck Tires 20.25 21.00/23.00 23.75 24.50 24.75 25.00

Tractor Tires 81.50 84.00/91.50 94.25 96.75 98.50 100.25

MATERIAL QUANTITIES

MSW

Tonnage 256,574 246,889 247,889 249,006 250,027 252,619

Yardage 169,187 151,216 151,841 152,525 153,151 154,738
C&D

Tonnage 120,468 119,396 120,260 121,614 123,140 124,247

Yardage 0 0 0 50,000 50,627 51,083
Sludge and Mixed Inerts 20,993 18,471 17,035 15,747 12,823 12,956
Green Waste

Tonnage 57,503 58,073 58,799 59,534 60,278 60,963

Yardage 39,732 38,509 38,990 39,478 39,971 40,425
Wood Waste

Tonnage 8,256 7,793 7,793 8,183 8,211 8,217

Yardage 5,961 5,580 5,580 5,859 5,879 5,884
Food Waste 2,437 3,176 3,208 3,240 3,273 3,305
Inerts

Tonnage 44,672 27,923 27,911 28,126 28,291 28,409

Yardage 19,335 11,599 11,594 11,684 11,752 11,801
Appliances 11,263 7,171 7,259 7,348 7,438 7,530
CFC Devices 4,712 4,000 4,049 4,099 4,149 4,200
Tires

Car 6,698 5,686 5,756 5,827 5,899 5,972

Truck 110 93 95 96 97 98

Tractor 47 40 40 40 40 40

Bulk Tonnage 52 44 45 45 46 46
H20 Sludge 1,231 1,045 1,058 1,071 1,084 1,097
Treated Wood Waste 257 218 221 224 226 229

179



180

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27

CLOSURE / POSTCLOSURE FUND
SOURCES OF FUNDS

Retained Earnings 0 0 0 0 0 0

42010: Investment Income 30,448 91,054 96,904 102,070 107,402 112,991

46250: Solid Waste Disposal 348,342 579,440 723,077 744,251 779,696 438,902

49060: Contributions from Other Funds: Operating 258,066

General Reserve Cancellations 387,008 240,103 0 0 0 0
TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS 765,798 1,168,663 819,981 846,321 887,097 551,893
USES OF FUNDS

Closure/Postclosure Liability Adjustment 765,798 1,123,401 714,275 605,227 521,115 531,470

Contribuition to General Reserves 0 45,262 105,706 241,094 365,982 20,423

Contribution to Operating Fund 0 0 0 0 0 0

Retained Earnings 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL USES OF FUNDS 765,798 1,168,663 819,981 846,321 887,097 551,893
CLOSURE/POSTCLOSURE FUND BALANCE

Closure/Postclosure Liability 14,200,297 15,323,698 16,037,973 16,643,200 17,164,315 17,695,785

General Reserves 252,746 57,906 163,612 404,706 770,688 791,111
TOTAL CLOSURE/POSTCLOSURE FUND BALANCE 14,453,043 15,381,604 16,201,585 17,047,906 17,935,003 18,486,896
SELF INSURANCE FUND
SOURCES OF FUNDS

Retained Earnings 0 365,333 0 0 0 0

42010: Investment Income 15,772 27,527 30,002 30,191 30,381 30,573

46250: Solid Waste Disposal 0 0 0 0 0 0

Future Occurances Reserve Cancellations 3,065,449 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS 3,081,221 392,860 30,002 30,191 30,381 30,573
USES OF FUNDS

52360: Prof. & Special Svcs - General 0 0 0 0 0 0

52370: Prof. & Special Svcs - Legal 0 0 0 0 0 0

52380: Prof. & Special Svcs - Tech., Eng. & Env. 0 0 0 0 0 0

52390: Prof. & Special Svcs - County 0 0 0 0 0 0

53140: Judgements and Damages 0 0 0 0 0 0

55550: Transfer to Operating Fund 2,610,858 0 0 0 0 0

Contribuition to Reserve for Future Occurances 105,030 392,860 30,002 30,191 30,381 30,573

Retained Earnings 365,333 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL USES OF FUNDS 2,715,888 392,860 30,002 30,191 30,381 30,573
SELF INSURANCE RESERVE BALANCE

Reserve for Future Occurrences 4,369,399 4,762,259 4,792,261 4,822,452 4,852,834 4,883,407



2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27
ODOR MANAGEMENT FUND
SOURCES OF FUNDS
Retained Earnings 0 127 0 0 0 0
42010: Investment Income 444 600 712 795 924 2,364
46250: Solid Waste Disposal 243,878 228,106 228,110 238,996 240,868 248,159
49060: Contributions from Other Funds
PRSP towards Capital Improvements 0 0 0 0 180,869 184,486
PRSP towards Operations and Maintenance 0 0 0 0 8,878 17,756
SAP towards Capital Improvements 0 0 0 0 0 0
SAP towards Operations and Maintenance 0 0 0 0 0 0
Odor Management Reserve Cancellations 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS 244,321 228,833 228,822 239,791 431,539 452,765
USES OF FUNDS
Ongoing Operations 98,108 212,782 217,034 221,371 225,795 230,308
Major Construction Projects 0 0 0 0 0 0
Contribution to Reserves
SAP/PRSP Capital and Operating 0 0 0 0 189,747 202,242
Non SAP/PRSP Capital and Operating 22,371 16,051 11,788 18,419 15,997 20,215
Rate Stabilization Fund 123,715 0 0 0 0 0
Auditor's Year End Adjustment 0 0 0 0 0 0
Retained Earnings 127 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL USES OF FUNDS 244,321 228,833 228,822 239,791 431,539 452,765
ODOR MANAGEMENT FUND RESERVE BALANCES
SAP/PRSP Capital and Operating 0 0 0 0 189,747 391,989
Non SAP/PRSP Capital and Operating 85,734 101,785 113,573 131,992 147,989 168,204
TOTAL ODOR MANAGEMENT FUND RESERVE BALANCES 85,734 101,785 113,573 131,992 337,736 560,193
APPROPRIATIONS BY ACCOUNT
51010: Wages and Salaries 27,172 28,259 29,389 30,565 31,100 31,644
51040: Overtime and Call Back Pay 601 625 650 676 687 699
51090: Cafeteria Plans (Non-PERS) 729 758 788 820 834 849
51120: Uniform Allowance 21 22 23 24 24 25
51210: Retirement 8,373 8,708 9,057 9,419 9,584 9,751
51220: Payroll Taxes 2,099 2,183 2,270 2,361 2,402 2,444
51240: Other Postemployment Benefits 1,160 1,206 1,255 1,305 1,328 1,351
51310: Employee Group Insurance 3,566 3,708 3,857 4,011 4,081 4,152
52050: Food 0 0 0 0 0 0
52140: Parts 0 0 0 0 0 0
52160: Maintenance 98,020 122,892 125,346 127,850 130,403 133,008
52260: Misc Expense 0 0 0 0 0 0
52320: Printing 0 2,800 2,856 2,913 2,971 3,031
52330: Other Supplies 0 0 0 0 0 0
52340: Postage 88 90 92 94 96 98
52360: Prof. & Special Svcs - General 0 0 0 0 0 0
52380: Prof. & Special Svcs - Tech., Eng. & Env. 0 80,000 81,600 83,232 84,897 86,595
52460: Small Tools & Instruments 0 0 0 0 0 0
52480: PC Acquisition 0 0 0 0 0 0
52560: Small Equipment 0 0 0 0 0 0
52570: Advertising 0 5,000 5,100 5,202 5,306 5,412
52580: Special Department Expense 0 0 0 0 0 0
54430: Buildings and Improvements 0 0 0 0 0 0
54450: Equipment 0 0 0 0 0 0
54470: Infrastructure 0 0 0 0 0 0
54480: Land Improvements 0 0 0 0 0 0
59000: Appropriation for Contingencies 0 2,000 2,040 2,081 2,122 2,165
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 98,108 212,782 217,034 221,371 225,795 230,308

181



	MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	Minutes of the Board Meeting held October 13, 2022  
	Amendment to the WPWMA’s Conflict of Interest Code (Eric Oddo)
	Landfill Gas Utilization (Eric Oddo)  
	Authorize the Executive Director or designee, upon review and approval of WPWMA Counsel, to sign the First Amendment to the Agreement with Tetra Tech for closure plan review and closure cost estimate services for the Western Regional Sanitary Landfill (WRSL) for a total of $30,000, increasing the total not-to-exceed cost of the Agreement to $67,916.
	ADP11C6.tmp
	a.  Minutes of the Board Meeting held August 11, 2022

	ADPAD2A.tmp
	BACKGROUND:

	ADP8BA6.tmp
	ENVIRONMENTAL CLEARANCE:

	ADP66F5.tmp
	RECITALS

	WPWMA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations_FINAL (1).pdf
	TABLE OF CONTENTS
	Acronyms and Abbreviations
	1. Introductory Findings
	1.1 Project Selection
	1.1.1 Landfill Capacity
	1.1.2 Avoidance of Biological Disturbances
	1.1.3 Compatibility with Planned and Existing Neighboring Land Uses
	1.1.4 Design and Operational Flexibility
	1.1.5 Landfill Design and Construction Challenges

	1.2 Project Description
	1.3 Project Objectives
	1.4 Background

	2. Potential Environmental Impacts Determined to be Less Than Significant During the Scoping Process
	3. Potential Environmental Impacts that are Not Significant (No Mitigation Required)
	3.1 Aesthetics—Light or Glare
	3.1.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	3.1.2 Finding

	3.2 Aesthetics—Cumulative (Glare)
	3.2.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	3.2.2 Finding

	3.3 Air Quality—Mobile-Source Concentrations of Carbon Monoxide
	3.3.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	MRF Operations Design Concept Evaluation

	3.3.2 Finding

	3.4 Air Quality—Exposure of Sensitive Receptors to Toxic Air Contaminants
	3.4.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	MRF Operations Design Concept Evaluation

	3.4.2 Finding

	3.5 Air Quality—Cumulative
	3.5.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	3.5.2 Finding

	3.6 Biological Resources—Interference with Wildlife Movement Corridors
	3.6.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	3.6.2 Finding

	3.7 Biological Resources—Conflicts with an Adopted HCP, NCCP, or Other Approved Local, Regional, or State Habitat Conservation Plan
	3.7.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	3.7.2 Finding

	3.8 Biological Resources—Cumulative
	3.8.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	3.8.2 Finding

	3.9 Cultural Resources—Disturbance of Historic Resources
	3.9.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	3.9.2 Finding

	3.10 Cultural and Tribal Resources—Cumulative
	3.10.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	3.10.2 Finding

	3.11 Geology, Soils, and Paleontological Resources—Seismic Activity
	3.11.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	Sitewide
	Landfill Expansion

	3.11.2 Finding

	3.12 Geology, Soils, and Paleontological Resources—Soil Loss or Erosion
	3.12.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	Landfill Expansion
	In-Place Waste Excavation
	Complementary and Programmatic Elements

	3.12.2 Finding

	3.13 Geology, Soils, and Paleontological Resources—Unstable Soils
	3.13.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	Sitewide
	Landfill Expansion

	3.13.2 Finding

	3.14 Geology, Soils, and Paleontological Resources—Cumulative
	3.14.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	3.14.2 Finding

	3.15 Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Climate Change—Consistency with Applicable Plans, Policies, or Regulations Adopted to Reduce Greenhouse Gas Emissions
	3.15.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	Material Recovery Facility Operations Design Concept Evaluation

	3.15.2 Finding

	3.16 Hazards, Hazardous Materials, and Wildfire—Potential for Solid Waste Operating Activities to Release Hazardous Materials into the Environment
	3.16.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	3.16.2 Finding

	3.17 Hazards, Hazardous Materials, and Wildfire—Risk of Wildfire
	3.17.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	Sitewide
	Complementary and Programmatic Elements

	3.17.2 Finding

	3.18 Hazards, Hazardous Materials, and Wildfire—Cumulative
	3.18.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	3.18.2 Finding

	3.19 Hydrology and Water Quality—Potential for Solid Waste Project Elements to Violate Water Quality Standards or Substantially Degrade Surface Water Quality
	3.19.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	Surface Water Quality

	3.19.2 Finding

	3.20 Hydrology and Water Quality—Potential for Solid Waste Project Elements to Violate Waste Discharge Requirements or Substantially Degrade Ground Water Quality
	3.20.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	Groundwater Quality

	3.20.2 Finding

	3.21 Hydrology and Water Quality—Potential for Programmatic Elements to Degrade Water Quality
	3.21.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	3.21.2 Finding

	3.22 Hydrology and Water Quality—Potential to Decrease Groundwater Supplies or Interfere with Groundwater Recharge
	3.22.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	3.22.2 Finding

	3.23 Hydrology and Water Quality—Potential to Increase Runoff and Localized or Downstream Flooding
	3.23.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	3.23.2 Finding

	3.24 Hydrology and Water Quality—Potential Conflicts with Applicable Water Quality Control Plan
	3.24.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	3.24.2 Finding

	3.25 Hydrology and Water Quality—Potential for Waste Excavation and Relocation to Conflict with or Obstruct Implementation of a Water Quality Control Plan
	3.25.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	3.25.2 Finding

	3.26 Hydrology and Water Quality—Cumulative
	3.26.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	3.26.2 Finding

	3.27 Land Use and Planning—Physically Divide an Established Community
	3.27.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	3.27.2 Finding

	3.28 Land Use and Planning—Consistency with Land-Use Plans and Policies
	3.28.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	3.28.2 Finding

	3.29 Land Use and Planning—Cumulative
	3.29.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	3.29.2 Finding

	3.30 Noise—Construction Activity Noise Impacts
	3.30.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	3.30.2 Finding

	3.31 Noise—Exposure of Sensitive Uses to Vibrations
	3.31.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	3.31.2 Finding

	3.32 Noise—Traffic-Generated Permanent Increases in Ambient Noise Levels
	3.32.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	3.32.2 Finding

	3.33 Noise—Cumulative (Vibration)
	3.33.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	3.33.2 Finding

	3.34 Public Services—Require New or Expanded Fire Protection Facilities
	3.34.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	3.34.2 Finding

	3.35 Public Services—Require New or Expanded Law Enforcement Facilities
	3.35.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	3.35.2 Finding

	3.36 Public Services—Require New or Expanded Schools and Parks
	3.36.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	3.36.2 Finding

	3.37 Public Services—Require New or Expanded Roadway Maintenance
	3.37.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	3.37.2 Finding

	3.38 Public Services—Cumulative
	3.38.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	3.38.2 Finding

	3.39 Transportation—Conflict with Traffic Circulation Plan or Program
	3.39.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	Operation
	Construction

	3.39.2 Finding

	3.40 Transportation—Increase in Vehicle Hazards
	3.40.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	Operations
	Construction

	3.40.2 Finding

	3.41 Transportation—Inadequate Emergency Vehicle Access
	3.41.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	Construction
	Operation

	3.41.2 Finding

	3.42 Transportation—Cumulative (Local Roadways and Freeway Interchanges)
	3.42.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	3.42.2 Finding

	3.43 Utilities and Service Systems and Energy—Require the Construction or Relocation of Utility Facilities
	3.43.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	Water Supply
	Wastewater
	Reclaimed Water
	Electricity and Natural Gas
	Telecommunications

	3.43.2 Finding

	3.44 Utilities and Service Systems and Energy—Have Sufficient Water Supplies
	3.44.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	3.44.2 Finding

	3.45 Utilities and Service Systems and Energy—Have Adequate Wastewater Treatment Capacity
	3.45.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	3.45.2 Finding

	3.46 Utilities and Service Systems and Energy—Generate Solid Waste in Excess of Standards or Infrastructure Capacity or Impair the Attainment of Solid Waste Reduction Goals
	3.46.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	3.46.2 Finding

	3.47 Utilities and Service Systems and Energy—Comply with Solid Waste Reduction Statutes and Regulations
	3.47.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	3.47.2 Finding

	3.48 Utilities and Service Systems and Energy—Result in Wasteful, Inefficient, or Unnecessary Consumption of Energy Resources
	3.48.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	3.48.2 Finding

	3.49 Utilities and Service Systems and Energy—Conflict with a State or Local Plan for Renewable Energy or Energy Efficiency
	3.49.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	3.49.2 Finding

	3.50 Utilities and Energy—Cumulative
	3.50.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	3.50.2 Finding


	4. Potential Environmental Impacts that have Been Mitigated to a Level of Insignificance
	4.1 Air Quality—Consistency with Applicable Air Quality Plans
	4.1.1 Potential Effect and Rationale Supporting Finding
	4.1.2 Required Mitigation Measures
	MRF Operations Design Concept Evaluation

	4.1.3 Finding

	4.2 Biological Resources—Impacts on Special-Status Plant Species
	4.2.1 Potential Effect and Rationale Supporting Finding
	4.2.2 Required Mitigation Measures
	4.2.3 Finding

	4.3 Biological Resources—Impacts on Vernal Pool Branchiopods and Western Spadefoot
	4.3.1 Potential Effect and Rationale Supporting Finding
	4.3.2 Required Mitigation Measures
	4.3.3 Finding

	4.4 Biological Resources—Impacts on Valley Elderberry Longhorn Beetle
	4.4.1 Potential Effect and Rationale Supporting Finding
	4.4.2 Required Mitigation Measures
	4.4.3 Finding

	4.5 Biological Resources—Impacts on Special-Status Bird Species, Including Raptors
	4.5.1 Potential Effect and Rationale Supporting Finding
	4.5.2 Required Mitigation Measures
	4.5.3 Finding

	4.6 Biological Resources—Impacts on Wetlands or Other Sensitive Natural Communities
	4.6.1 Potential Effect and Rationale Supporting Finding
	4.6.2 Required Mitigation Measures
	4.6.3 Finding

	4.7 Biological Resources— Conflicts with Local Ordinances
	4.7.1 Potential Effect and Rationale Supporting Finding
	4.7.2 Required Mitigation Measures
	4.7.3 Finding

	4.8 Cultural and Tribal Cultural Resources—Disturbance of Tribal Cultural Resources Discovered during Construction
	4.8.1 Potential Effect and Rationale Supporting Finding
	4.8.2 Required Mitigation Measures
	4.8.3 Finding

	4.9 Cultural and Tribal Cultural Resources—Disturbance of Archaeological Resources Discovered during Construction
	4.9.1 Potential Effect and Rationale Supporting Finding
	4.9.2 Required Mitigation Measures
	4.9.3 Finding

	4.10 Cultural and Tribal Cultural Resources—Disturbance of Human Remains
	4.10.1 Potential Effect and Rationale Supporting Finding
	4.10.2 Required Mitigation Measures
	4.10.3 Finding

	4.11 Geology, Soils, and Paleontological Resources—Presence of Expansive Soils
	4.11.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	4.11.2 Required Mitigation Measures
	4.11.3 Finding

	4.12 Geology, Soils, and Paleontological Resources—Potential Destruction of Paleontological Resources
	4.12.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	4.12.2 Required Mitigation Measures
	4.12.3 Finding

	4.13 Hazards, Hazardous Materials, and Wildfire—Potential for Construction Activities to Expose the Public or the Environment to Hazardous Materials
	4.13.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	Sitewide
	Complementary and Programmatic Elements

	4.13.2 Required Mitigation Measures
	4.13.3 Finding

	4.14 Hazards, Hazardous Materials, and Wildfire—Potential for Landfill Gas to Accumulate in Occupied Structures
	4.14.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	4.14.2 Required Mitigation Measures
	4.14.3 Finding

	4.15 Hazards, Hazardous Materials, and Wildfire—Potential for Waste Relocation Activities to Release Hazardous Materials into the Environment
	4.15.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	4.15.2 Required Mitigation Measures
	4.15.3 Finding

	4.16 Hazards, Hazardous Materials, and Wildfire—Potential Conflict with an Adopted Emergency Response Plan
	4.16.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	4.16.2 Required Mitigation Measures
	4.16.3 Finding

	4.17 Hazards, Hazardous Materials, and Wildfire—Risk of Vectors
	4.17.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	4.17.2 Required Mitigation Measures
	4.17.3 Finding

	4.18 Hydrology and Water Quality—Potential for Waste Excavation and Relocation to Degrade Surface Water or Groundwater Quality
	4.18.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	4.18.2 Required Mitigation Measures
	4.18.3 Finding

	4.19 Noise—Increase in Operational Noise Levels
	4.19.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	4.19.2 Required Mitigation Measures
	4.19.3 Finding


	5. Unavoidable Significant Environmental Impacts that Cannot be Mitigated to a Less-than-Significant Level
	5.1 Aesthetics—Impacts to Visual Character and Quality
	5.1.1 Potential Effect and Rationale Supporting Finding
	5.1.2 Required Mitigation Measures
	5.1.3 Finding

	5.2 Aesthetics—Impacts from Offsite Litter Generation
	5.2.1 Potential Effect and Rationale Supporting Finding
	5.2.2 Required Mitigation Measures
	5.2.3 Finding

	5.3 Aesthetics—Cumulative (Light)
	5.3.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	5.3.2 Finding

	5.4 Air Quality—Construction Emissions of Criteria Air Pollutants and Ozone Precursors
	5.4.1 Potential Effect and Rationale Supporting Finding
	5.4.2 Required Mitigation Measures
	5.4.3 Finding
	MRF Operations Design Concept Evaluation


	5.5 Air Quality—Operational Emissions of Criteria Air Pollutants and Ozone Precursors
	5.5.1 Potential Effect and Rationale Supporting Finding
	5.5.2 Required Mitigation Measures
	Mitigation Measure 6-3: Operational emissions of criteria air pollutants and ozone precursors.
	Mitigation Measure 6-3(a): Fund NOx emissions reductions through an Offsite Mitigation Fee Program.
	Mitigation Measure 6-3(b): Fund PM10 emissions reductions through an Off-Site Mitigation Fee Program.

	5.5.3 Finding
	MRF Operations Design Concept Evaluation


	5.6 Air Quality—Objectionable Odors Affecting a Substantial Number of People
	5.6.1 Potential Effect and Rationale Supporting Finding
	5.6.2 Required Mitigation Measures
	Mitigation Measure 6-6: Implement Odor Reduction Measures

	5.6.3 Finding
	MRF Operations Design Concept Evaluation


	5.7 Air Quality—Cumulative
	5.7.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	Construction Emissions of Criteria Air Pollutants and Ozone Precursors
	Operational Emissions of Criteria Air Pollutants and Ozone Precursors
	Exposure of Sensitive Receptors to TACs
	Creation of Objectionable Odors Affecting a Substantial Number of People

	5.7.2 Finding

	5.8 Cultural and Tribal Resources—Cumulative
	5.8.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	5.8.2 Finding

	5.9 Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Climate—Construction and Operational Greenhouse Gas Emissions
	5.9.1 Potential Effect and Rationale Supporting Finding
	5.9.2 Required Mitigation Measures
	5.9.3 Finding
	Material Recovery Facility Operations Design Concept Evaluation


	5.10 Greenhouse Gas Emissions—Cumulative
	5.10.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	5.10.2 Finding

	5.11 Noise—Cumulative
	5.11.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	5.11.2 Finding

	5.12 Transportation—Increase in Vehicle Miles Traveled
	5.12.1 Potential Effect and Rationale Supporting Finding
	5.12.2 Required Mitigation Measures
	5.12.3 Finding

	5.13 Transportation—Cumulative (VMT)
	5.13.1 Potential Effects and Rationale Supporting Finding
	5.13.2 Finding


	6. Growth-Inducing Impacts of the Action
	7. Findings Regarding Alternatives to the Project
	7.1 Plan Concept 1
	7.1.1 Description
	7.1.2 Finding
	7.1.3 Facts Supporting the Finding

	7.2 Alternative A: No Project Alternative
	7.2.1 Description
	7.2.2 Finding
	7.2.3 Facts Supporting the Finding

	7.3 Alternative B: Prioritize Waste Recovery
	7.3.1 Description
	7.3.2 Finding
	7.3.3 Facts Supporting the Finding

	7.4 Alternative C: No Organics Processing
	7.4.1 Description
	7.4.2 Finding
	7.4.3 Facts Supporting the Finding

	7.5 Alternative D: Waste Reduction and Alternative Technologies
	7.5.1 Description
	7.5.2 Finding
	7.5.3 Facts Supporting the Finding

	7.6 Environmentally Superior Alternative

	8. Findings Regarding Monitoring Program
	9. Location and Custodian of Record of Proceedings
	10. Lead Agency’s Independent Judgment
	11. Nature of Findings
	12. Reliance on Record
	13. Statement of Overriding Considerations
	13.1 Impact Summaries
	13.1.1 Aesthetics (Project-Level and Cumulative)
	13.1.2 Air Quality (Project-Level and Cumulative)
	13.1.3 Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Climate Change (Project-Level and Cumulative)
	13.1.4 Noise (Cumulative)
	13.1.5 Transportation (Project-Level and Cumulative)

	13.2 Regulatory Background
	13.3 Statement of Overriding Considerations

	14. References

	ADPD3A7.tmp
	BACKGROUND:

	ADPCCD2.tmp
	FISCAL IMPACT:

	ADP94AE.tmp
	FROM:  KEN GREHM / ERIC ODDO
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:
	Environmental clearance:
	Fiscal impact:

	Sept-2022-charts revised.pdf
	Charts

	ADP5B0B.tmp
	MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	Minutes of the Board Meeting held October 13, 2022  
	Amendment to the WPWMA’s Conflict of Interest Code (Eric Oddo)
	Landfill Gas Utilization (Eric Oddo)  
	Authorize the Executive Director or designee, upon review and approval of WPWMA Counsel, to sign the First Amendment to the Agreement with Tetra Tech for closure plan review and closure cost estimate services for the Western Regional Sanitary Landfill (WRSL) for a total of $30,000, increasing the total not-to-exceed cost of the Agreement to $67,916.


